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for a changing world

“2013 was a year of good progress m which our order
book, underlying revenue and underlying profit, all
grew. Our focus remains on the 4 Cs: Customer,
Cost, Cash and Concentration.”

John Rishton, Chief Executive
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INTRODUCTION

Rolls-Royce is a global company, providing
mmtegrated power solutions for customers
n civil and defence aerospace, marine,

energy and power markets.

Our vision is to deliver ‘better power
for a changing world".

2013 2012*" % change
Order book -
firm and announced £71,612m  £60,146m +19%
Underlying revenue® £15,505m  £12,209m +27%
Underlying profit before tax*  £1,760m  £1,434m +23%
Reported revenue £15,513m £12,161m +28%
Reported profit before tax £2,019m £2,766m 27%
Net cash £1,939m £1,316m

See explanation in note 2 on page 54

** Restated toreflect the adoption to tAS19 Employee Benefits and change in accounting pohicy on the
treatment of Risk and Revenue Sharing Arrangement entry fees — seenote 1
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Forward locking statements

This report ¢contains forward looking statements

Any statements that express forecasts expectations
and projections are not guarantees of future
performance and wil) not be updated By their nature
these statements invobve risk and uncertamty and
anumber of factors could cause material diffarences
tathe actual results or developments

This reportisintended to pravidenfarmation to
shareholders 15 not designed to be relied upon by any
other party or for any other purpose and the Company
andits directars accept ne hability to any other parsan
other than that required under Enghsh law
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GROUP AT A GLANCE
As 1n previous years, our business priorities remam
the 4 Cs: Customer, Concentration, Cost and Cash.

GROUP OVERVIEW 2013

2013 revenue by business segment + The order book increased 19 per cent to « Underlying profit before tax increased
£71 6 tallion This ncluded a £1 6 bithon 23 per cent to £1 8 ilhen, including
contnbution from Power Systems £257 mithon from Tognum

+ Orderintake was £26 9 bilhon inthe year

+ Underlying revenue increased to
£15 5 billion, with 53 per cent from
origmal equipment (OF) and 47 per cent
from services revenue

42% Cwil aetospace
17% Defence aerospace
7%  Energy

16% Manne

18% Power Systems

CIVIL AEROSPACE
Revenue mix £6 6 55 First flight of the Arrbus A350 XWB powered by
’ m Trent XWB engines

First flight of the Boeing 787 9 powerted by
Trent 1000 engines
Major new orders from JAL IAG Lufthansa,

Urited, Stngapore and Etthad
£844| I l Delwvered 3 000th BR700 series engine

Underlying tevenue 2013

Underlying profit 2013 The Cwvil aetospace segment 1 a major
manufacturer of aeto engines for the airhme and
46% OEF revenue corporate Jet markets Rolls-Royce powers more
54% Services Trevenue than 30 types of commeraial arrcraft and has

almost 13,000 engmes 11 service around the world

DEFENCE AEROSPACE

Revenue mix £ 2 59 1 TP400-powered A400M entered serTvice
[} I I | MissionCare™ contract for Saud) Araban EJ200
engines secured
1 500th AE 2100 engine delivered
Upgraded AE 1107 engines for V-22 Osprey
Ts6 engme enhancemnent kits gained first sales

£43 8m Delivered 40th Rolls-Royce LiftFan® for

F-35B Lightming Il fighter pregramme

Underlying revenue 2013

Underlying profit 2013 RTM322 helicopter engine pregramme sold
to Turbomeca
50% OErevenue
46% Services revenue Rolls-Royce 15 the second largest provider of defence
4%  Development aero engmne products and services globally with

around 16,000 engines 1n service with over 160
rmihtary customers in nore than 100 countmies
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MARINE

Revenue mix

57% OCfrevenue
43% Services revenue

£2 527m

Underlying revenue 2013

£281m

Underlying profit 2013

Range of world firsts of LNG-powerted vessel
types delwered

MT30 selected for new UK MaD Type 26 Frigate
£800 milhon contract agreed wath UK MoD

for provision of future nuclear submarine
propulsion systems

New UT 830 seismic survey vessel launched
COSCO ordeted new wave-piercing design of
offshore vessels

« Third service centre in China opened

-

+

The Marine segment has 4,000 customers and
equipment nstalled on over 25 000 vessels
worldwide mcluding those of 70 navies

ENERGY

Revenue mix

40% OE revenue
B0% Services revenue

£1,048m

Underlymng revenue 2013

£26m

Underlywing profit 2013

33 RB211s ordered for eil and gas applications
Major seTvice contract secured with Petrobras
New Santa Cruz, Brazil assembly plant
operational

Signed tripartite agreement with Rosatom and
Fortum to assess nuclear reactor design for UK
new build

Renewed agreement with Westinghouse to
provide nuclear inspection services in US

.

To date, Energy has sold 4 600 gas turbines
with 180 muilhon operating hours recorded
Rolls-Royce has over 50 years of expenience
m the nuclear mdustry

POWER SYSTEMS

Revenue mix

71% OE revenue
29% Services Tevenue

£2,831m

Underlymg revenue 2013

£294m

Underlying profit 2013

.

MTU Powerpacks ordeted for UK Intercity
Express Programme

Fjord Line ordered Bergen engines for crurse
fernies

UK MoD selects MTU gensets alongside MT30
gas turbine

Polish partnership created to supply and
maittain cogeneration plants

Mining trucks powered by MTU delivered to
Rio Tinto 1n Austraha

Rolls-Royce Pawer Systerns 1s headquartered in
Germany and specialises 1n reciprocating engines,
propulsion systems and distributed energy systems
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

In 2013, Rolls-Royce continued to grow

1ts order book and expand 1ts portfoho

The Group increased 1ts underlying profits,
and underlying revenues The order book
mcreased to £71 6 billon

This performance demonstrates both the
long-term demand for our products and
services, and the confidence our customers
place mus

We strive contimually to improve qualty,
performance and cost To that end we invest
wnnovation, infrastructure and in the
global workforce upon whose ability and
ambition our current and future success
entirely depends | am impressed every day
by the commitment and professianalism of
my colleagues around the world and | thank
them for their hard work

The leaders of the Group have devoted
considerable time and energy into
articulating the vision, values, strategy and
busmness pnonties that we share, as well
as setting out the standards of behaviours
expected from everybody at Rolls-Royce
Previding clarity on these core behefs,

and making sure they are understood by
everycne 1n the Group will enable us to
better serve our customers and secure

a profitable future for our employees and
shareholders

Vision better power for a changing world
Values trusted to dehver excellence

Strategy customer, mnovation,
profitable growth

These are described 1n greater length on
pages 6and 7

Our business prionties in 2013 remained
the same as n previous years, and have been
charactensed as ‘The 4 Cs’

Customer — deliver on the promises
we have made

Concentration —decide where to grow
and where not to

Cost and Cash —1mprove finanaal
performance

In 2013, we have made pregress n all of
these, although thete Temains much more
todo

Customer

it 15 essential that we deliver on the promises
made to our customers Across the business
we have sigmificantly improved on-time
delivery This foundational step wall
strengthen our customer relationships and
drive more efficient use of resources, such
as inventory In Civil aerospace, on-time
dehvery to our wide-body custormers was
100 per cent 1n 2013 for the first tirme

in 2013, major milestones were achieved

in a numbert of important programmes

The Airbus A350 XWB flew for the first time
powered by our Trent XWB engines We have
now recerved orders for more than

1,600 Trent XWBs, making tins our best-
selling Trent engime The Trent 1000 engine,
which powers the Boeing 787 Dreamhner,
has achieved the best performance of any
new wide-body engine entening service, with
2999 per cent despatch reliabihty in June, 1t
was selected by Singapore Airlines to power
50 Boeing 787 awcraft In Marnne, the first of
our nnovative Environships went to sea This
vessel combines a wave-piercing bow,

gas-powered engines and advanced ‘
propulsion systems that together reduce CO; w
emissions by 40 per cent, compared with

equivalent diesel-powered vessels Lastly,

BAE Systems announced that the UK's Type 26

Destroyer programme will feature four MTU

diesel gensets from Power Systems, together

with our Trent-derived MT30 gas turbines

Concentration

Concentration means deciding where to
invest for future growth and where not

We have two technology platforms gas
turbines and reciprocating engines Within
gas turbines, we have a strong Civil aerospace
busimess, with over £60 bilhon n orders

We will continue to mvest here, including m
the next generation of narrow-body aircraft
engmes Wewill also look for opportunities
to expand i reciprocating engines

In 2013, we acquired Hyper-Therm HTC,

a specialist ceramics company, to increase
our capabilities in ceramic matnx matenals
that will, in the future, play a cnitical partin
improving the performance of gas turbine
engines We also acquired a Norwegian
company, SmartMotor AS, a leader in the
permanent magnet technology employed

n our Marine business We integrated PKM)
Technical Services, a Us-based nuclear
engineering services busmess with expertise
mm extending the hfe of nuclear plants

Areas where we have decided not to grow
include the sale of our 50 per cent holding

in the RTM322 helicopter engine programme
to Turbomeca, a Safran company
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Cost

The highly regulated nature of the aerospace
industry means that it will take both time
and tenacity to drive cost out of the
business, and we are shill not where we need
to be However there are a number of areas
where progress 1s being made We reduced
mdirect headcount by 11 per cent, with
further savings dentified for 2014 Umt cost
fellin Manine, Energy and Power Systems,
although this was more than offset by an
increase in Civil, where capacity growth has
preceded volume growth and the cost per
unit has predictably nsen We are building
newer, more efficient facilities and capacity
thatwill support a doubling of production
of Trent engines We are moving production
away from high cost countres, and we are
consohidating our supply chain These
actions will deliver benefits over time

We have priontised investment that
mproves operational performance, adds
to our techmical capability and reduces cost
This ncludes a shop floor IT modermsation
programme that wiil increase operational
efficiency and an Integrated Production
Systems programme that will improve
delvery to customers while reducing cost

Cash

The Group delivered a cash inflow of

£359 milhion (£312 milhon excluding
Tognum), after payments to shareholders,
prior to acquisitions, disposals and foreign
exchange Inventory has been an area of
significant focus While substanbially
improving our on-time delvery to customers
and preparing for the ramp-up in volumes,
we have improved inventory turns from

3 times to 3 4 times, excluding Tognum
This 1s one of the largest one-year
improvements 10 our stock turns

We continue to invest sigmficantly to deliver
our order book In 2013, capital expenditure
was £687 rmihon (£590 mithon excludimg
Tognium and £491 rlThon in 2012) This
included two new aeto-engime test facihties
one at the NASA Stenms Space Centerin
Mississippt, US, and the other at Dahlewntz,
Germany We have extended our global
Marine services network with a new facility
1n Guangzhou, China An advanced aerofoil
machining facility at Crosspointe in Virginia,
Us, will begin production in 2014 In the UK,
production has started at cur new state-of-
the-art fan disc factory in Washington, Tyne
and Wear and we are also close to completing
anew turbine blade factory in Rotherham

In January 2013, we appointed Lord Gold to
lead a review of our process and procedures
regarding compliance and business ethics
This followed our report to the Serous Fraud
Office (SFO) of concerns about bribery and
corruption mvolving mntermedianes in
overseas markets In December, the SFO
confirmed that it had begun a formal
mvestigation into these matters We have
co-operated fully with the regulatory
authonties and will continue to do so

During the year, we published a new Global
Code of Conduct Under a programme
implemented in 2013, all employees are
asked to certify they have receved a copy
of the Global Code, read and understood 1t,
will comply with it, and have recewved a
management briefing | have madent
explicit that we will not tolerate /mproper
busmess conduct of any sort We have
updated and re-launched our confidential
reporting lime for employees, now known
as the Ethics Line, available 24 hours a day,
to make sure that we can hear about and
address any matters of concern

It 15 important that everyone at Rolls-Royce
recogmses that they are an ambassador for
the Group We have set out three common
behaviours that will make sure we mamtam
high ethical standards, build trust with our
customers and each other and help secure
the long-term success of our business

win nght - securing business fair
and square,

focus with firm resolve — decide what
needs to be done, then focus relentlessly
on delvery — refusing to be distracted, and

commumcate — simply, consistently
and often

Every aspect of the Group's performance
results from the endeavours of the 55,000
men and women who share a vision of
delvering ‘better power for a changing
world’ it s their ingenuity and commitment
alongside our continued mvestment in
technology, that allows us to seize the
opportunities that our changng world
presents and to face the future with
confidence

John Rishton
Chief Executive

12 February 2014
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OUR VISION, BUSINESS MODEL, STRATEGY AND VALUES

Rolls-Royce is a global Group, providing integrated power
solutions for customers in civil and defence aerospace,

marne, energy and power markets. Our products work
in mission-critical environments where safety is paramount.

Read more on pages 12 to 21

OUR VISION

Better power for a changing world

Since its earhest days, Rolls-Royce has been striving to
achieve ever ligher standards Our vision 15 delivering
“better power for a changing world’

Better: we will succeed only by continually raising
standards We constantly improve quality, performance
and cost We are inquisitive, energetic and ‘better’ every
day Even when we may be the best, we rnust continue
to get better

Power. we are a power systerns company that develops,
sells and services mission-cmitical products Our customers
demand innovation that improves performance and
reduces the environmental impact of our power systems

Changing world: the world around 1s changing
rapidly and the pace of change1s accelerating New
markets are emerging, shifting the balance of economic
power Regulation s, nghtly, driving the tequitement for
cleaner power and setting new standards for business
conduct Our continuous investment in technology, our
ingenuity and our commtment to excellence allow us to
seize the opportumties that change presents and to face
the future with confidence

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Our business model places emphasis on reducing
costs so that we can generate the funds we need
to deliver our vision of ‘better power for a
changing world’

The business model 1s built around our core strategic themes

of customer, mnovation and profitable growth We are a power
systems company based on two technology platforms, gas
turbines and reciprocating engines Continuous investment

n mnovation delivers better products and services on behalf
of customers This allows us to meet their needs and grow
profitably to the benefit of our shareholders

Around the core strategic themes of the model we

Grow sales for oniginal equipment and the assocrated aftermarket
through developing strong routes to market based on customer
relationships, understanding and knowledge Allocate capital

n a disciplined way, choosing wherte to grow, and where not to
Reduce costs and generate cash, to enable profitable growth from
our order book and the mantenance of a strong balance sheet
Fund research, development, infrastructure and future
programmes Our financial resilience and resources provide a
firm foundation from which to invest Risk and Revenue Shanng
Arrangements are a particular feature of the cwvil aerospace
sector as a means of sharing risk due to the scale of

mvestment required for large gas turbines

OUR STRATEGY

We operate in competitive markets Our
competitors are well-funded, ambitious
and full of smart people

Our strategy wili enable us to win by focusing
on three powerful themes customer,
mnovation and profitable growth

CUSTOMER

Customer placing the customer at the heart of our orgamsation
1s key We need to histen to our customers, share ideas, really
understand their needs and then relentlessly focus on
delvenng our promises
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Profitable

Deliver. part of being trusted We
must deliver on our promises, meeting
our customers’ requirtements for quahty,
delwvery, tesponsiveness and rehability,
always recognising that the safety of our
products and our people 1s paramount

Excellence: ifwe are trusted, and
we dehver, then we wall beregarded
as excellent
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OUR VALUES )
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We say we are 'trusted to delver ey

excellence’, but simply being Rolis-Royce g

does not ge us the nght to make that 3

claim Frust takes along time toearn v
and can be lost in an mstant

Trust. is earned by doing what we say o

we will It demands care, consistency, 3

courage and competence Trust commits 5

us to high ethical standards —it1s g

central to who and what we are %

3

INNOVATION

Innovation 1s our hifeblood We must continually innovate

to remain competitive To drive innovation, we create the
nght environment — curious, chailenging, unafraid of fallure,
disciphined, open-minded and able to change wath pace

But most lrnportantly, we ensure our mnovation s relevant
to our customers’ needs

PROFITABLE GROWTH

Prefitable growth by focusing on our customers, and offering
them a competitive portfolio of products and services, we

will create the opportunity to grow our market share Of course
we have got to make sure that we are not just growing, but
grow1ng profitably That means ensuring our costs are
competitive We look after our cash and we win nght
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REVIEW

Summary Restated

2013 2012 Change
Order book £bn 716 601 +19%
Underlying revenue £m 15,505 12,209 +27%
Underlying profit before tax £m 1,760 1,434 +23%
Reported revenue £m 15,513 12,161 +28%
Reported profit before tax £m 2,019 2,766 27%
Netcash £m 1,939 1316

350 (144)

Average net cash

2012 figureshave been restated to reflect the adoption of amendments 1o 1AS 19 Employee 8enefits and the change in accounting

pohcy for RRSAS

2013 was another good year for the Group,
with significant growth in our order book,
good growth in underlying revenues and
profits, coupled with a cash inflow, but as
ever, there are some areas where progress
has been slower than | would have liked Our
confidence n the future remains ligh, but
as you would expect me to say we have more
to do on cost and cash across the Group to
delwver the future performance imphcit in
this confidence

The results reflect the full consolidation of
Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG (formerly
Tognum AG) from 1 January 2013 Previously,
Tognum was accounted for as a joint
venture

Order intake 1n the year of £26 9 lilhon saw
the order book grow vet again to reach
record levels This reflects £2 5 ilhon from
Power Systems and £18 9 billion from our
Civil business reflecting a very successful
year for the Trent XWB This vote of
confidence from our customers gives good
visibihty and underpins our confidence to
nvest for the future

Underlying revenues and profit before tax
increased by 27 per cent and 23 per cent
trespectwely Prior to the impact of
consolhdating Power Systems, underlying
Tevenue growth was six per cent and profit
advanced by 11 per cent The 11 per cent
growth in profits reflected strong margmns
n Defence, the benefit of the International
Aero Engines AG {IAE) restructuring which
was executed in the middle of 2012 and a
lower research and development charge
against profits Profits were adversely
ympacted by price pressure in our Marine
business and the pace of cost reduction in
our Cwil business

Our largest business, Civil aerospace, was
the backbone of the Group's order increase
and saw revenue grow steadily The mstalled
base saw more engines flying more hours
Profit benefited from the higher volumes,
the new IAE trading arrangements and
higher entry fees from our partners

However, our Civil profits were held back by
igher unit costs where progress has lagged
our expectations, but the actions we have
taken 1n 2013 will yield savings in 2014

Defence aerospace performed very well

In 2013, largely due to ugher export sales
and lower research and development (R&D)
spend Services held up well, albeit with
some softness on flying hours of

mihtary transport aircraft We expect

a 15-20 per cent dechne m both Defence
revenue and profit in 2014 as we complete
some major export deltvery schedules

We expect oniginal equipment revenue

to decrease by 30-40 per cent due to fewer
deliveries of engines to power the C130ls,
V-22 Ospreys and Typhoons, as well as
fewer Adour engine kits

As always, 1t 1s important to put this into
perspective Qur Defence business has had
two very good years of revenue and profit
growth Which means the numbers we are
gwiding for in 2014, bring us back only to
2011 revenue levels, and we expect growth
againn 2015

Manme's offshore and merchant markets
continue to see intense competitiondriven
by overcapacity and price pressure This
affected the order intake during the year
that sees order cover for 2014 at a lower level
than we started 2013 In this challenging
environment, we made some good progress
on cost, but have more to do 1f we are to
compete more effectively Our Naval
business remains stable

Energy saw some imptovermnent in 2013 and
we continue to work hard to /mprove further
its financial performance

Power Systems delivered a very strong
second half performance, contnibuting

£2 6 mlhon to revenue 1n 2013 {miln 2012)
and an underlying profit before tax of

£257 milhion {2012 £77 rmilion) We are very
pleased with Power Systems and it remains a
key part of our desire to go to market via two
strong technology platforms gas turbines
and reciprocating engines

Our cost base can be broadly spht between
85 per centrelating directly to our delivered
product, ten per cent indirect (commercial
and admimstration) and five per cent on
R&D We continue to push hard on product
cost as we work with the internal and
external supply chains and although Civil
umit costs mcreased in 2013, we did realise
improvements 1 Marine and Energy We
expect to see progress across all our
segments in 2014 In terms of indirect cost,
we achieved our objectives to reduce
headcount by 11 per cent, primarily through
voluntary severance arrangements After
taking into account the related restructuring
costs duning the year, the benefits to this
reduction will be seen in future years

We were pleased with the cash inflow

of £359 milhon at Group level, prior to
acquisttions, disposals and foretgn exchange,
which included an mflow of £47 rmlhon
from Power Systerns Net working capital
improved slightly, reflecting a good second
half performance on inventory and higher
deposits, mainly in Cwvil, flowing from the
order mtake We made good progress on
mventory, improving turns from 3to 3 4
times {excluding Power Systems), helped
by a consistent focus inthe second half

of the year

Cost and cash remain areas of intense focus
goimg forward

In terms of financial reporting, please note
the following

1 Tobetter ahgn our reporting structure
with our organisation, going forward we
will report as Aerospace and Manne &
Industnal Power Systems (MIPS)
Aerospace comprises of Civil aerospace
and Defence aerospace MIPS comprises
our Marne, Power Systemns, Energy and
Nuclear businesses Qur Nuclear
Submarines busmess will be reported
within Energy and Nuciear We will
continue to report the same level of
financial detail for our business segments
aswe normally do

N

Consistent with past practice and IFRS
accounting standards, the Group provides
both reported and underlying figures We
believe underlying figures are more
representative of the trading
performance, by exctuding the ympact of
year end mark-to-market adjustments,
principally the GBP/USD hedge book In
addition, post-retirement financing and
the effects of acquisition accounting are
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excduded The adjustments between the
underlying income statement and the
reported mcome statement are set out in
mote detail in note 2 to the fimancial
statements This basis of presentation has
been applied consistently sice the
transition to IFRS 1n 2005

3 The Group has changed 1ts accounting
pohcy in respect of entry fees ansing from
Risk and Revenue Sharing Arrangements
(RRSAS) following discussions with the
Conduct Commttee of the Finanaial
Reporting Council {FRC) This1s covered
further n note 1 to the financial
statements

RRSAs with key suppliers are a feature of our
Civil aetospace business Under these
arrangements the workshare partner shares
m the nisks and costs of developing an
engine and during the production phase,
supplies components and receives a share of
the programme revenues over the life of the
engine programme The share of
development costs borre by the workshare
partner and of the revenues it receives
treflect the proportionate forecast cost of
providing thewr parts compared to the overall
forecast manufactunng cost of the engine

The contnbution to the development costs 1s
achieved by the workshare partner
performing ther own development work,
providing parts i the development phase
and paying a non-tefundable cash entry fee,
such that both parties bear their
proporhionate share of the forecast non-
recurning development costs

Historically, we tecognised the entry fee as
mcome when recewved, which we beheved
matched 1t to the recognition of non-
recurring development costs mcurred on
behalf of the workshare partner However,
this did not take account of the fact that we
capitalise some of our non-recurring
development costs Therefore, where we
capitalise those costs, we will now defer the
equivalent portion of the entry fee receved
and recogmse 1t as the related costs are
amortised in the production phase As

required by Adopted IFRS, we have made this
change retrospectively, the impact of the
change n policy in 2012 has been to increase
profit before tax by £25 mihon and to
reduce net assets at 31 December 2011

and 2012 by £184 rmllon and £170 million
respectively Had the policy not been
amended, profit before tax m 2013

would have been £39 rmihon higher and

at 31 December 2013 net assets

£208 mmllion higher

Adopted IFRS does not exphcitly deal with
payments of this nature from suppliers and
so, 1n developing an accounting treatment
for entry fees that best reflects the
commercial objectives of the contractual
arrangement, we have analysed key features
of RRSAs in the context of relevant
accounting pronouncements and have had
to weigh the i1mportance of each feature m
farthfully representing the overall
commercial effect Consequentlythisisa
judgemental area The judgements we have
taken it respect of this matter are set outin
detail in note 1 to the financial statements
In summary, our view 1s that the
development and production phases of the
contract should be considered separately in
accounting for the RRSA, which results in the
entry fee being matched against the
non-recurrng development costs as
described above

The FRC Conduct Commmttee’s view 1s that
the RRSA contract cannot be dvided into
separate development and production
phases, as the fees and development
components receved by the Group during
the development phase are exchanged for
the obligation to pay the supplher a
predetermined share of any sales receipts
during the production phase On thisbasis
the entry fees received would be deferred in
therr entirety and recognised over the period
of production

The FRC Conduct Committee has confirmed
that, inview of the change to the policy and
the additional disclosure we have made, 1t
does not intend to pursue 1ts consideration
ofthis accounting policy further We will
keep the size of the difference under review,
and do not currently expect the difference
between the two approaches to become
matenal in the foreseeable future

We consider that the policy we have adopted
best reflects the commercial effect of the
agreements and 15 1n accordance with
Adopted IFRS So far as we can tell 1it1s also
ahgned with the approach taken by others
in our mdustry under both IFRS and US
accounting standards (which we beleve
does not conflict with IFRS in this regard}

The impact of the different approaches on profit before tax and net assets 15 as follows

yoda: mbayeys
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2013 2012
Reported  Underlying Reported  Underlying
profit profit profit prafit
before tax  before tax Netassets before tax before tax Netassets
£m £m £m fm £m £m
Previous pollcy 2,058 1,799 8,342 2,741 1409 6,886
Oifference (39} {39) {208} 25 25 (170}
Adopted pohcy 2,019 1,760 8,134 2,766 1,434 6716
Difference (37) {37} (365) (10) {10} (323)
Alternative pohcy! 1,982 1,723 7,769 2,756 1,424 6393

t Consistent with FRC Conduct Committee s view
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER'S REVIEW

Underlying income statement

Underlying revenue increased £3 3 bilhon to
£155 bilhon, of which £2 6 bilhon was due to
the inclusion of Rolls-Royce Power Systems
AG (RRPS) from 1 January 2013 The remaming
ncrease {s1x per cent) reflects a seven per cent
growth 1n OF revenue and a four per cent
Increase In seTvices revenue Oniginal
equipment performance included growth of
21 percentn Energy, 13 per centin Defence
aerospace and 12 per cent in Manne
Undertying services revenue continues to
represent around half (47 per cent) of the
Group's underlying revenue In 2013, services
revenue grew n all businesses, as the
installed base of products continued te grow
and the services network expanded

Underlying profit before financing and
taxation increased 22 percent to

£1 8 bilhon, ncluding £190 milhon from the
consohdation of RRPS from 1 January 2013
Excluding RRPS, the increase was dueto a
number of factors increased revenue,
continued strong margins m Defence
aerospace and the restructured relationship
with 1AE

Further discusston of trading 1s inciuded
nthe busmess segment reports on pages
12to21

Underlying financing costs increased
18 per cent to £72 mlhon, including
£10 mulion from RRPS

Underlying taxation was £434 rmlhon,
an underlying tax rate of 24 7 per cent
compared with 22 1 per centn 2012
The Group's tax payments are described
on page 111

Net R&D charged to the iIncome statement
mmcreased by 18 per cent to £624 rmillion
mcluding £174 rmilhon from RRPS, reflecting
acombination of increased spend of

£33 milhon more offset by higher net
capitahsation of £61 rmihon (due to the
phasing of major new programmes, 1in
particular the certification of the Trent XW8
84%), R&D tax credits of £28 milhion and net
deferral of RRSA entry fees of £26 rmllhion
The Group continues to expect net R&D
investment to remamn within four to

five per cent of Group underlymg revenue

Reported profit before tax has reduced from
£2,766 miihon to £2,019 milhon In addition
to the changes in underlying profit before
tax descnibed above, reported profit before

tax has been affected by the impact of
mark-to-market adjustments on dervative
contracts (£497 million reduchon), (n) the
mmpact of consohdating RRPS (£65 million
reduction, comprising the unreahised profit
onreclassification to a subsidiary and the
additional amortisation on recognised
ntangible assets), (m) the net impact of
disposals (483 milhon reduction, disposal of
RTM3221n 2013 more than offset by the
restructuring of IAE 1n 2012), and {iv) the
cost of providing discretionary pension
Increases (£64 million) The reported tax
charge 1s affected by the related tax impact
of these 1items and the reduction of tax rates
in the UK This 1s set out in more detail m
note 2 to the financial statements

Balance sheet

The balances recognised on 1 January 2013
as a result of the consohdation of Rolls-Royce
Power Systemns AG are set out in note 24

Intangible assets (note 8) represent long-
term assets of the Group These assets
mcreased by £121 milhon with additional
development, certification and software
costs being largely offset by annual
amorhisation charges

Underlymng income statement

The carrying values of the mtangible assets
are assessed for imparment agamst the
present value of forecast cash flows
generated by the intangible asset The
principal nisks remain reductions in assurmed
market share, programme timings, increases
in unit cost assumptions, and adverse
movements in discount rates There have
been no significant imparrmentsn 2013

Property, plant and equipment (note 9}
mcreased by £283 milhion due to the ongomng
development and refreshment of facilities
and tooling as the Group prepares for
increased production volumes

Net post-retirement scheme deficits (note 18)
reduced by £100 rmllion as a result of
adopting the amendments to IAS 19 Durning
the year, the net deficit fell by £49 rihon,
principally due to the movements mthe
assumptions used to value the underlying
assets and habilities in accordance with

1AS 19 This reduchion n the defiot was after
agreeing to fund additional pension
mcreases in the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund,
where there 1s no mdexation for pre-1997
service, at a cost of £64 rmihon

Restated*
£ millon 2013 2012 Change
Revenue 15,505 12 209 +27%
Cvil aerospace 6,655 6,437 +3%
Defence aerospace 2,591 2,417 +7%
Marine 2,527 2249 +12%
Energy 1,048 962 +9%
RRPS 2,831 287 +886%
Intra segment (147) {143)
Profit before financing costs and taxation 1,832 1,495 +23%
Crvil aerospace 844 743 +14%
Defence aerospace 438 335 +11%
Marine 281 294 4%
Energy 26 19 +37%
Power Systemns 294 109 +170%
Intersegment 2 (11)
Central costs {53) {54)
Net financing costs (72) (61) -18%
Profit before taxation 1,760 1,434 +23%
Taxation (a34) (317) -37%
Profit for the year 1,326 1,117 +19%
Other items
Gross R&D tnvestment 1,118 919 +22%
Net R&D charged to the income statement 624 589 +18%

2012 figueres have been testated to reflect the adoption of amendments 10 IAS 19 Employee Benefits and the change 1n accounting

pohicy for RRSAs
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Overall funding across the schemes has
improved 1n recent years as the Group has
adopted a lower nisk investment strategy
that reduces volatility going forward and
enables the funding position to remamn
stable nterest rate and inflation risks are
largely hedged, and the exposure to equities
15 around 11 per cent of scheme assets

The Group's funding of its defined benefit
schemes 1s expected to increase modestly m
2014, largely as a result of funding the
discretionary benefits

Net funds increased by £0 6 billion to

£1 9 bithon due n part to the £250 milhon
proceeds recewed on the sale of the Group's
interest n the RTM322 engine Average net
funds were £350 rmihon

Investment in joint ventures and associates
mcreased by 15 per cent, largely as a resuit
of retamed profits i existing joint ventures

Provisions largely relate to warranties and
guarantees provided to secure the sale of
OE and services

Net financial assets and habhties relate to
the fair value of foreign exchange,
commodity and interest rate contracts and
financial RRSAs, set out in detail in note 16
The change largely relates to movements in
the GBP/USD exchange rate on the valuation
of foreign exchange contracts

The USD hedge book increased ten per cent
to LUS524 7 ilhon This represents around
four years of net exposure and has an
average book rate of £1 to U551 59

Net TotalCare assets to Long-Term Service
Agreement (LTSA) contracts in the Civil
aerospace business, mcluding the flagship
services product TotalCare These assets
represent the timing difference between
the recognition of income and costs in the
income staternent and cash receipts

and payments

Customer financing facilitates the sale of OF
and services by providing financing support
to certain customers Where such support1s
provided by the Group, 1t 1s generally to
customers of the Givil aerospace business
and takes the form of vanous types of credit
and asset value guarantees These exposures
produce contingent habilities that are
outhned in note 17 The contingent habibties
represent the maximum aggregate
discounted gross and net exposure n

Balance sheet

1 January 2013 Restated
including 31 December
£ million 2013 Power Systems 2012
Intangible assets 4,987 4 866 2901
Property, plant and equipment 3,392 3,109 2564
Net post retirement scheme deficits (793) (842) {445}
Net working capital {1,013) (275) (777
Net funds 1,939 1353 1316
Pravisions {733) (741) (461)
Net financial assets and habihites 287 23 50
Jomnt ventures and associates 601 522 1,800
Assets held for sale & 4 4
Other net assets and habilities {539) (519) (238)
Net assets 8,134 7,500 6716
Other items
USD hedge book (USS billion) $247 $225
TotalCare assets ! 1,901 1629
TotalCare habihties 2 (314) (317)
Net TotalCare assets 1,587 1332
Gross customer finance contingent habilities 356 569
Net customer finance contingent iabilities 59 70

2012 figures have been restated ta reflect the adoption of amendments to IAS 19 fmployee Benefits and the change 1n accounting

policy for RRSAs
! Included in ameounts recoverable on contracts {note 12)
1 mecludedinaccruals and deferred income (note 15)
respect of delivered aircraft, regardless of
the pont m time at which such exposures
may arise

During 2013, the Group's gross exposure
reduced by £213 million to £356 million, due
largely to the expiry of guarantees Cn anet
basis, exposures reduced by £11 rmilhon

Segmental reporting

During 2013, we have revised the internal
structure of the business to focus on

{1) aerospace, and (1) marine and industral
markets The internal reperting structure
has been developed to reflect this
Consequently, in accordance with IFRS 8
Operating Segments, from 1 January 2014,
we will report the Group's segments as
follows

Aetospace — comprising Civil aerospace and
Defence aerospace, and

Manne and industmal Power Systems (MIPS)
- comprising Maring, Power Systems, Energy
and Nuclear

The 2013 figures on the revised basis are
ncluded 1n note 25 to the financial
statements

Group 2014 guidance

For the full year 2014, we expect underlying
Group revenue and profit to be flat This
reflects a sgmficant dechine in Defence
revenue, as we complete the detivery phase
of a number of major export programmes
Additronally, the largest part of our Marine
business, Offshore, will generate lower
revenue in 2013 We expect growth to
resume n 2015 as Civil and Defence
delveries increase

We expect profitability to be much stronger
n the second half of 2014, reflecting the
timing and mix of trading and cost
reduction To be more consistent with
market practice, our cash guidance in the
future will be based on free cash flow We
expect our 2014 free cash flow to be similar
t0 2013 (£781 lhon)

Addrtional financial mformation can be
found on pages 111 and 112
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CIVIL AEROSPACE

OVERVIEW

Underlying revenue (Em) Revenue mix 2013 Revenue by sector 2013

6,437 6,655

5,572

aas1 }|%919

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

46% OE revenue 57% Wide-body
’ l l l 54% Services revenue 32% Corporate and regional
11% Narrow body

Underlymng revenue 2013

Highhghts Key financial data 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
« First fhght of the Airbus A350 XWB Order book £m' 47102 48490 51,942 49608 60,296
powered by Trent XWB engines +8% +3% +7% 4%  +22%
« First fiight of the Boeng 787-9 powerted Engine delveries’ 844 846 952 668 753
by Trent 1000 engines Underlying revenue £m 4481 4919 5572 6437 6,655
- Major new Trent orders from JAL, IAG, 0% +10% +13% +16% 3%
Lufthansa, United, Singapore and Etthad 3nger:y 1ng OF revenue £m - ;'2;: ;‘ggi ;;i; ;‘gzg :':::
ndertying service revenue fm 2 3 4
* Delwered the 3,000th BR700 series engine Underlimg profit before financing £m 493 392 499 743 844

*13% -20% +27% +49% +14%

allyears before 2012 ,nclude 1AE order book and engine dehvenes include IAE V2500
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Rolls-Royce powers more
than 30 types of commercial
awrcraft and has almost
13,000 engines 1n service
around the world.

Whatwe do

The Civil aetospace segment 15 a major
manufacturer of aero engines for the
airlimer and corporate jet markets We have
particular strengths in the wide-body
market where Rolls-Royce has a 54 per cent
share of aircraft on order Demand for our
products and services remains robust

2013 fmanoial review

The order book mncreased 22 per cent,
mcluding new orders of £18 9 billion

(£10 3 llhon i 2012) Trent engimes and
aftermarket services now constitute

73 per cent of the Cwvil aerospace order book

Revenue increased three per cent, including
three per cent growth mn OE revenue There
was a 20 per cent increase n business jet
engine deliveries and a small increase in
Trent engines Profit increased 14 per cent,
reflecting mgher volumes, the £112 rihon
higher benefit from the restructured
trading relationship wath JAE and £26 rmilhen
highet RRSA entry fees

In 2014, we expect modest growth n
revenue and good growth in profit

How we are performing

The airhne industry saw global passenger
traffic up around five per cent 1n 2013
Awrlines in developed markets benefited
from a modest economic recovery In many
developing markets there were sigmficant
Increases in traffic supported by economic
growth and market hberahsation

Gwvillarge Engines Nearly 1,400 Trent 700
engines for the Airbus A330 have been
delivered to date and during 2013 Airbus

dehvered the 1,000th aircraft The rilestone
arcraft and its Trent 700 engines were
accepted by Cathay Pacific, the first airlme
to put the Trent 700 nto service in 1995

Important milestones were achieved in
two major Civil Large Engine programmes
In June, the first flight of the new Aitbus
A350 XWB was powered by our Trent XWB
engines Thenn September, the Boeing
787-9 version of the Dreamliner took to the
skies for the first time, powered by our
Trent 1000 engines

Singapore Arlines Group placed a major
order with us to power 50 Boeing 787
aircraft with Trent 1000 engines

In July, we celebrated the first delivery of
two new Rolls-Royce powered arrcraft to the
British Airways fleet — the Airbus A380 and
the Boemng 787 Dreambhiner

In September, we announced that, due to the
current regulatory environment, we would
not proceed with a planned joint venture
with Umted Technologies Corporation to
develop an engine to power future mid-size
awcraft Rolls-Royce remains fully comrmtted
to this important market segment and we
continue tonvest in technologies that will
enable us to take advantage of opportunities
asthey anse

The Trent XWB will enter service in 2014
with Qatar Airways This 1s the best-selling
Trent engine yet, with more than 1,600
engines already on order

Sigmficant orders for the Trent XWB came
from awhnes m Europe, North America, the
Middle East and Asia and these included a
landmark first ever engine order for
Rolls-Royce from Japanese airline JAL

Corporate and regional In our corporate
and regional engine business, we delivered
the 3,000th BR700 senes engine This engine
seTies powers the Gulfstream G500 and
G550, the Bombardier Global 5000 and
Global 6000 (BR710), the Boeing 717 (BR715)
and the Gulfstrearmn G650 {BR725}

The first production version of the Cessna
Citation X business Jet flew in August,
powered by our AE 3007C engines Deliveries
of the new aircraft are due to beginin

early 2014

Services Revenue from services for civil
arrhners increased by three per cent 1 2013,
reflecting continued growth n the fleet of
widebodied engimes More than 1,100
aircraft in service are covered by TotalCare

Some 1,500 business awcraft are covered

by CorporateCare® and in 2013 more than
70 per cent of customers for new Rolls-Royce
powered business jets enrolled in
CorporateCare

Future pnorties and opportumties

In 2014, particular priority will be given to
supporting the smooth entry into service

of the Aitbus A350 XWB Rolls-Royce 15 the
sole engine suppher for this new arcraft,
and orders for the Trent XWB represent

53 per cent of the Cwvil aerospace order book.

Sigmficant management attention

will continue to be paid to financial
performance, \n particular reducing costs
and improving imventory turn

Developing new technaology for future
engme programmes and enhancing existing
products remains a major prionty

Market cutlock We estimate that the
global cvil engine market wili be worth
approximately US$1,750 billion over the next
20 years, with US5$1,050 bilhon being for
oniginal equipment and US$700 hilhon of
aftermarket services Over half of this value
comprises engmes for twin aisle airflimers
and large business jets, where Rolls-Royce1s
currently the number one engine supplier
n terms of market share OQur forecasts are
based on our own internal forecasting tools,
data from Ascend Online Fleets and airline
schedules from Offiaial Airline Guide (OAG)
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DEFENCE AEROSPACE

OVERVIEW

Underlying revenue (£€m) Revenue rmx 2013 Revenue by sector 2013

2,591

2,417

2010 2,123 2,235

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

50% CE revenue 38% Combat
£ ,5 1' ll 46% Services Tevenue 48% Transport

4%  Development 14% UAV/trainer
Underlying revenue 2013
Highhghts Key financial data 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
+ TPAQD-powered A400M entered service Order book £m 6451 6506 6035 5157 4,071
« MissionCare contract for Saudy Arabian +17% +1% 7% -15% -21%
EJ200 engines secured Engine deliveries 662 710 814 864 893
+ 1,500th AE 2100 engine delvered Undertlying revenue £m Zflo 2,162; 2,253; 2 4819: 2,579;
+19% + + + +
* Upgraded AE 1107 engines for V-22 0sprey e o oF ravene £m 964 1020 1102 1,231 1,385
* T56 enhancement kits gamed first sales Underlying service revenue Em 1046 1103 1,133 1186 1,206
+ Delwered 40th RO“S-RDyCE LiftFan for F-35B Underlying profit before financing £m 53 309 376 395 438
Lightring |l fighter programme +13%  +22%  +22% +5%  +11%

+ RTM322 helicopter engine programme
sold to Turbomeca
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We are the second largest
provider of defence
aero-engine products
and services globally, with
around 16,000 engines

M service with over 160
military customers in
more than 100 countries

Whatwe do

Our engines power aircraft 1n every major
market sector ncludmg transport, combat,
patrol, tramers, helicopters, and unmanned
aenal vehicles

2013 finanaal review
The Defence order book dechined 21 per cent
(15 per cent decrease in 2012) reflecting

continued budgetary pressures on our major
customers The net orderintake of £1 & bilhon

was five per cent higher than the previous
year Revenue increased seven per cent,
reflecting a 13 per centincrease mOEand a
two per cent increase 1n services Strong OE
growth was driven by higher export sales,
particularly of our E1200 and Adour engine

programmes Profit increased 11 per cent due

to mgher volumes and lower R&D spending

In 2014, we expect a dechine in revenue and
profit of between 15-20 per cent before
growth resurnes in 2015 This one year
dedline 1s the consequence of well publicised
cuts in defence spending among major
customers, and the completion of the
delvery phase of a number of major export
programmes After two record years, this
re-basing, supported by cost reduction
programmes, will position the business well
for future growth

How we are performing

2013 was a challenging year as traditional
markets continued to experence
unprecedented budgetary pressures While
this environment creates nisks for existing
business, 1t also presents opportumties for
us to develop innovative solutions to meet
the evolving needs of our customers
Nowhere 15 this more evident thanin

the area of services where we have the
opportumty to help customers manage
their budgets and costs more efficiently

We also contnue to pursue new equipment
sales opportunities in global markets such
as Asia and the Middle East where budgets
ate less constramed

MissionCare contracts worth £492 rilhion
weTe secured in 2013 These included the
first MissionCare contract for the support
of EJ200 engines 1n Saudi Aratna

In order to get closer to our customers, we
are expanding our presence at operational
bases During 2013, we opened a new
support facihty at RAF Marham n the UK
and announced another at Tinker Air Force
Base in the US

In-service fleets continue to benefit from
technology enhancements, with the

upgraded AE 1107 now providing 17 per cent

more power for the V-22 Osprey aircraft
The latest T56 enhancement kits achieved

Federal Aviation Authonty (FAA) certification

and recorded their first sales in the US,
where fuel savings m the US Air Force C-130
fleet could amount to billons of dollars

Qur leading position 1n transport was
underpinned by the entry into service of
the A400M powered by TP400 engines,
broademng our portfoiio 1n a market where
the Rolls-Royce powered C-13015 the leading
player This year we delwered our 1,500th
AE 2100 engine for the C¢-130)

The Rolls-Royce LiftSystem® continued to
perform well as the F-35B Lightming il
arcraft expanded its fight test programme
and deliveries to the US Marme Corps
accelerated We delivered the 40th
Rolls-Royce LiftFan and the 50th 3 Bearing
Swivel Module (3BSM)

In order to concentrate our resources on
markets where we can add greatest value,
we sold our share in the RTM322 helicopter
engine programme to Turbomeca, a Safran
company, n September 2013 To further
improve efficiency, we have reconfigured
our orgamsation to bring us closer to our
major customers

We expect our services business to
continue to grow as we continue to provide
customers with greater capability

Future prionities and opportumties
We are focused on managing costs to ensure
we maximise our ability tocompete and win
n an increasingly uncertain market

Curinclusion in the Hawk Advanced Jet
Traimng System team to pursue the US Air
Force T-X training contract provides just one
of several paths to growth Customers also
continue to invest in therr transport arcraft
fleets, where we have a strong position
Defence apphcations for the Trent 700
should increase as the Airbus A330 tanker
awcraft s selected by more malttary
customers The UK's fleet of tankers
contimues to expand with Rolls-Royce
benefiting both as the engine supplier

and as an AnTanker shareholder

Market outlook We estimate a business
opportunity over the next 20 years of
US5155 billion 1n original equipment and
US$260 ilhon i semices Source Forecast
International 2014
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MARINE .

OVERVIEW

Underlying revenue (£m) Revenue rmix 2013 Revenue by sector 2013

2,589 |[2,591 7527
2,271 |[2.249

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

57% OE revenue 37% Naval
’ III 43% Services revenue 15% Merchant

48% Offshore

Underlying revenue 2013

Highhghts . _ Key financial data 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
« Atange of wotld ‘firsts’ of LNG-powered Order book £m 3526 2,977 2737 3954 3,996
vessel types delivered -32% -16% -8%  +44% +1%
« MT30 selected for the new UK MoD Underlying revenue £m 2583 2591 2271 2,249 2,527
Type 26 Frigate +17% +0%  -12% -1%  +12%
- £800 million contract agreed with UK MoD Underlying OE reveniue £m 1,804 1719 1322 1,288 1,438
for provision of future nuclear submanne 3”3”}3‘ ng Ser‘;‘:?i"e“‘;e £m - ;:3 g;: 3;3_ 321 1'223
nderlywing profit before financing £m
propulsion systems +44%  +26% 1A% +2% -4%

« New UT B30 se1smic survey vessel launched

« COSCO ordered new wave-piercing design
of offshore vessels

« Third setvice centre in China opened

* 2011 figures restated due to transfer of Bergen to Power Systems segment
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The Marme segment has
4,000 customers and
equipment installed on over
25,000 vessels worldwide,
includimg those of 70 navies

What we do

We are leaders in the provision and
integration of complex, mission-cntical
systems for offshore oil and gas, merchant
and naval vessels We are located in 35
countries, and have a global service network
supporting our customers’ operations
around the dock

Qur advanced ship designs combine the
latest technologies to offer highly-efficient
solubions for ship owners and operators
ncluding a range of engmes using hquefied
natural gas {LNG}

2013 fmanoal review

The order book increased one per cent
nciuding new orders of £2 7 bilthon

{£3 3 bilion 1n 2012) In 2013, we saw stable
order inflow 1n our Merchant and Naval
busmesses This was offset by weaker

order flow in Offshore, where the phasing
of projects has slowed growth 1n some of our
key products Revenue increased 12 per cent,
reflecting higher sales in both new
equipment and in services Growth was
particularly strong wn Offshore and 1n Naval,
offset by further weakening in our Merchant
business, which declined 11 per cent Profit
decreased four per cent as volume growth
was more than offset by pricing pressure
and a less favourable mix in 2013,
profitability was also offset by investments
n Marine to better position the business for
future growth, induding hhgher spending on
R&D and restructunng costs

In 2014, we expect a modest decline in
revenue, with a modest increase in profit
The nuclear submarine busmess will be
reported in the Energy and Nuclear segment
gowng forward

How we are perforrming

The global shipbwilding sndustry has had

a challenging year Impertant factors driving
the market continue to be ship efficiency,
environmental performance and value

for maney

Merchant The adoption of LNG as a marine
fuel 15 gaining momentum the first
LNG-powered cargo vessel of our Environship
design took to the seas in May, the world's
first LNG-powered cruise ferry entered
service during the summer, and the world’s
first LNG-powered tug boat was delivered
We also won our first contract to converta
diesel-powerted cargo ship to LNG Bergen
engines using LNG fuel are all provided via
the Power Systems business segment

Naval OQur MT30 gas turbine was
successfully installed in the Royal Navy's new
aircraft carrer, HMS Queen Ehzabeth The
MT30was also selected by BAE Systems for
the UK's new Type 26 Frigate programme and
has now been selected by navies in the UK,
US and South Korea, across five types of ship
We delvered a new design of water et to the
US Navy's Littoral Combat Ship programme

This year we opened a new facility in Derby,
UK, to support our Submarine business In
February, we agreed an £800 milhon
contract with the MoD for the provision of
nuciear propulsion systems for the UK's
submanne flotilla A critical design gate was
successfully passed by our new nuclear plant
design, PWR 3

Offshore We delivered one of our most
advanced vessels to date, when aUT 830
seisric survey ship was launched It features
awealth of Rolls-Royce equipment
integrated wnto our own vessel design

Its now at work identifying ol and gas
reserves around the world

Our wave-prercing hull design was chosen for
the first time in Asia, when Chinese customer
COSCO announced an order for two UT
vessels, with options for four more These will
feature a range of Rells-Royce equipment,
and include MTU diesel gensets from our

Rolls-Royce Power Systemns AG subsidiary
Several contracts were won to supply our
largest azimuth thrusters for dnll ships

We enhanced our technology portfolio
through the acqinsition of a Norwegian
company, SmartMotor AS, a leader in
permanent magnet technology

Services We offer customers aglobal

service capability through a network of 37
workshops In 28 countries With more than
1,100 service engineers, we provide round-
the-clock support wherever our customers
need 1t and offer not only repair and overhaul
but also a growing number of vessel
upgrades to improve efficiency We also train
our customers in the operation of our
equipment in our traiming centres in Norway,
smgapore and Brazil This year, we opened
our third wotkshop in southern China

Future prnontes and opportumtes

The key priorities for the Marine segment
are to increase our competitivenessina
challenging market and continue to develop
innovatve technologies

We will continue to develop the synergies
between the Marine and Power Systems
segments We are working with a number
of o1l majors, in developing the avallability
of LNG The aftermarket offers growth
opportumties as we continue to utilise
our growing global network of service
engmneers and workshops In Submarines,
our focus 15 on mantaimng customer
confidence by achieving our savings
commitment to the MaD through
ncreased operational efficiency

Market outlook We see a business
opportunity over the next 20 years of
US5270 bilhon for onigmal equipment and
US5125 bilhon for services (not including
nuclear submarine business) Based on our
own forecasting tools
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ENERGY

OVERVIEW

Underlying revenue {(Em) Revenue mix 2013 Revenue by market sector 2013

1,233

1,083
1,028 962 1,048

2009 (| 2010 2011 2012 2013

40% OE revenue 68% Oilandgas
1’ 4 I I l 60% Services Tevenue 21% Power generation

11% Cwil Nuclear/other

Undertlying revenue 2013
Highhghts Key finanaaldata 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
* 33 RB211s ordered for o1l and gas Order book £m 1262 1180 1420 1290 1,469
applications +1% 6%  +20% 9% +14%
+ Major service contract secured with Engme deleries 87 95 48 49 56
Petrobras Underlying revenue £m 1,028 1233 1,083 962 1,048
- New Santa Cruz, Brazil, assembly plant +36%  +20% 2% ll% +9%
operational Underlyng OF revenue £m 558 691 527 344 415
Undertlying service tevenue £m A70 542 556 618 633
- Signed tnpartite agreement with Rosatom
Underlymg profit before financing £m 24 27 16 19 26
and Fortum to assess nudlear reactor +1300%  +13% 4% +19%  +37%

design for UK new build

- Renewed agreement with Westinghouse
to provide nuclear inspection services
in the Us

* 2011 figures restated due to transfer of Betgen to Pawer Systems segment
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Energy has sold 4,600 gas
turbines with 180 milhon
operating hours recorded

Rolls-Royce has over
50 years of experience
n the nuclear industry.

What we do

Qur Energy segment supplies customers
with aero-derivative gas turbines,
compressors and related services

In Cwil Nuclear, we provide products and
services spanming the nuclear reactor
life-cycle from concept designand
mstatlation to obsolescence management
and plant life extension We have a strong
position in nuclear instrumentation and
control systems

2013 fmanaal review

The order book Increased by 14 per cent
with new orders of £1 1 bilhon (£0 8 bilhon
m 2012) The business saw a strong Tecovery
mn order ntake in o1l and gas Power
generation markets remam suppressed

In Cwvil Nuclear, we continue to extend the
surte of products and services that we offer
to nuclear utihities to enable them to achieve
safe, efficient and rehable hfetime reactor
operations Revenue increased mne per cent,
driven by higher OE vofumes in our o1l and
gas business Profit mcreased by £7 million,
reflecting higher volumes, partially offset
by strong pricing pressure and continued
investment in our Cvil Nuclear business

We continue to work to improve the
financial performance of the business

In 2014, Energy will include nuclear
submarines to form our Energy and Nuclear
business We expect good growth m revenue
and profit, with further ymprovement in the
return on sales

How we are performing

1l and gas In total, 33 RB211 gas turbines
were ordered for ol and gas applications,
22 of which were for pipeline compression
projects This includes a US5175 rmilion
contract from Asia Gas Pipeline for 12 umts

Our new purpose-built packaging, assembly
and test facility m Santa Cruz, Brazil, became
operational and the first umits were delwered
to Petrobras for use in its deepwatet offshore
production actvities

Power generation Demand continued to be
subdued for new power generation capacity
m mature economies Seven Trent 60 units
werte ordered, including five for the SARB
offshore oilfield project in the UAE

We released enhanced power ratings for
the Trent 60 gas turbine, consohdating
1ts position as the most powerful aero
derivative available

Services We continue to strengthen both our
aftermarket products and services capability
as well as our penetration of the mstalled
fleet, resulting 1n a s1x per cent year-on-year
increase in aftermarket revenue

Currently 24 per cent of the core engine

fleet 1s underlong-term service agreements
During the year we recewed several new major
service contracts mchuding a Us$138 milhon
five-year contract from Petrobras to support
15 of its RB211 1ndustmnal gas turbine power
generation units installed on four ol
platforms operating in the Campos Basn

Cwil Nudlear We strengthened our strategic
relationships during the year with AREVA,
Westmghouse, Hitach, EDF and Rosatom

Our acquisition of PKMJ Techmical Services
in the US means we now provide services to
every nuclear utility m the US and Canada

We continued to deliver the instrumentation
and control )&C) upgrade for EDF's fleet of
1,300MW nuclear reactors in France and
provided I&C systems and components for
seven new nudear reactors currently under
construction i China

Future prionties and epportunities

Our focus 1s on growing our market position
n ol and gas, ncluding opportumties in
pipelines and LNG In power generation, we
will benefit from any recovery n industnial
demand for electnicity

In Civil Nuclear our priorities will contimue
to be satisfying our customers, winmng new
orders and high-quality delivery Improving
operational efficiency will be a key feature
for the Nuclear business duning 2014

We will assess potential mvestments in
high-value manufacturing in order to
contnibute positively to a successful new
build pregramme for the UK

In international markets, we will extend the
suite of products and services that we offer
to nuclear utilities to enable them to achieve
safe, efficent and rehable Iifetime nuclear
reactor operations

Market outlook In the o1l and gas, and
power genetation sectors, the Group's
20-year forecast values demand for total
aero-derwative gas turbine and compressor
systems at more than U$$60 ilhon and
associated services at around US560 billion
Sources McCoy Power reports, LEK Consulting,
Booz & (o, IEA, infield Systerns and our own
forecasting tools We estimate a demand for
nuclear mssion-critical equipment, systems,
engneering and support services of

US$610 bilhon over the next 20 years

Based on nuclear capacity forecasts fram

the International Energy Agency, the World
Nuclear Association, the International
Atormic Energy Agency and the Us
Department of Enerqy
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POWER SYSTEMS

OVERVIEW

Underlyng revenue {Em) Revenue mix 2013 Revenue by market sector 2013

2,846 |]2,831

2012 2013

71% OE revenue 35% Manne 27% Energy
’ 1 I I l 29% Services revenue 26% Industrial 12% Defence and other

Underlying revenue 2013
Highhghts Key financial data 2012 2023 Change
+ MTU Powerpacks ordered for UK Intereity  Grder book £m 1823 1927 +57%

Express Programme Underlying revenue £m 2846 2831 -05%
- Ford bine ordered Bergen engines for Undetlying OE revenue £m 1,938 2,004 +34%

cruise ferries Underlying services tevenue £m 908 827 -89%
. Upgraded Seres 1163 engines introduced Undetlying profit before financing £m 293 294 +03%
+ UK MoD selects MTU gensets alongside The table above shaws a trading companisen as if both Tognum and Bergen Engines had been fully consohdated in

MT309a5 turbine 2012 as well as1n 2013

« Polish partnership to be created to supply
and mamtam cogeneration plants

+ Mining trucks powered by MTU delivered
to RioTinto 1 Austraha
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Rolls-Royce and Daimler AG
each has a 50 per cent
shareholding in Rolls-Royce
Power Systems Holding
GmbH

Power Systems 1s based in Friedrichshafen
m Southern Germany and, together withits
worldwide subsidianes, employs around
11,000 people it speciahses inreciprocating
engmes, propulsion systems and distnbuted
energy systems The company previously
operated under the name of Tognum AG

In 2013, Bergen Engimes AS, including its
subsidiaries, was contributed to the busimess

Whatwe do

The product portfolio includes MTU-brand
high-speed engmes and propulsion systems
for ships, for heavy land, rail and defence
vehicles, and for the oil and gas industry
Under the MTU Onsite Energy brand, the
company markets diesel and gas gensets for
apphcations such as emergency, base load,
peak Joad or cogeneration Bergen Engmes
AS manufactures medium-speed engines for
marine and power generation apphcations
LOrange completes the portfoho, producing
fuel imjection systems for large engines

2013 fmanaal review

The order book increased 6 per cent, with new
orders of £2 7 ilhion (£2 8 bilhon n 2012} The
final quarter of 2013 saw strong sales, driven
by the pre-purchase of engines for industnal,
induding agnicultural, applications ahead of
the introduction of tighter environmental
standards in Europe Marine revenue 1s well
supported by demand from navies in Asia
andthe US Indefence, major programmes to
power military tanks provide stability despite
continued pressure on government spending
Revenue decreased 0 5 per cent with good
growth in the Marine and Industnal
divisions offset by lower revenue 1n oil

and gas, mediumn-speed engines and

lower aftermarket sales Profitincreased

0 3 per cent, reflecting a strong second half

In 2014, we expect modest growth in revenue
and good growth 1n profit driven by growth
n marine and land power systems markets

How we are performing

2013 proved a challenging year Headwinds
confronting the business included the
Eurozone crisis, US fiscal challenges and
slowing of growth 1n emerging countries
General nervousness about the global
econormic environment led to constramed
order activity within the market

Despite these adverse market conditions, a
number of sigmificant orders and contracts
were achieved

As outlined in the Mamnne segment review,
Power Systems also benefited from contracts
awarded by Chinese customer COSCO and
from the UK MoD for the generator sets of
the Royal Navy's future Type 26 Frigate The
Type 26 propulsion system will consist of a
combnation of four MTU diesel gensetsand a
Rolls-Royce MT30 gas turbine These examples
mghhght the synergies and benefits of
complementary product portfohos

MTU mtroduced the upgraded Series 1163
marine engines for IMO Tier Il and IMO

Tier lll ermssion standards These are cleaner
and more fuel-efficient than the previous
generation and offer a better power-to-
weight ratio

For the British Intercity Express Programme,
MTU received orders of rail Powerpacks with
Series 1600 engimes The Powerpacks will
dnve Hitacht's future high-speed trains
which are scheduled to go into service from
2017 on Great Western Main Line and East
Coast Main bine routes Twenty locomnotives
built by Chinese manufacturer, Dahan
Locomotive & Rolling Stock and powered by
MTU engines went into service in Argentina

China-based Xiangtan Electric Manufacturing
Corperation shipped its first ever export of
mine dump trucks to the Pitbara mine site

m Austraha for Rio Tinto Each of the 230
metnicton trucks 1s powered by an MTU
mining engme

The Fjord Line shipping company ordered
Bergen gas-powered engines Its
Stavangerfjord and Bergensfjord cruise
ferries, both 170 metres long, are each to be
equipped with four Bergen B-gasengines
The engines ensure that these ships already
meet future IMO Tier {0l linmits as well as
satisfying mandatory EU requlations
projected for 2015, for sulphur ermissions
from fernes

In addition to these contract wins, we
continue to build capacity through joint
ventures and partnerships LOrange has
estabhished a consortium with Hoerbiger, for
the supply of equipment for large-scale diesel
and dual-fuel engines for the Asian market
Onsite Energy and regional Pohsh energy
supplier Kogeneracja Zachod intend to form
a partnership for the supply and maintenance
of cogeneration plants Over the coming years,
both compames plan on working exclusively
with each ather to supply small- to medium-
sized Pohsh cities with envitonmentally-
friendly energy from CHP plants

Future pnionities and opportumties

Our long-term growth rehes on five pillars
power, propulsion, services, Tegional
expansion and, the product portfolio

In 2014, we expect most markets to stabihise
although some segments are expected to
remam difficult Thisleads us to expect
continued volatihity in revenues Overall we
expect to see a positive performance
primanly driven by marme apphcations

we will nvest in future technologies to
maintam our technological leadership We are
configuring our different engine seties to
meet tougher ermission standards At the same
time we will improve efficiency and keep a
focus on costs and cash in all other areas

Market outlock We estimate the total
market apportunity for mgh-speed engine
oniginal equipment over the next ten years
to be €280 bilhon The forecast data 1s taken
from a range of sources including Global
Insight, Oxford Economics, Diesel and Gas
Turbine Worldwide, Clarkson Research and
our own mternal forecasting tools
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ENGINEERING AND TECHNOLOGY

In 2013, we imvested £1,118 million m gross
research and development (R&D) of which
£746 milhon was funded by the Group, pner
to receipts from risk and revenue sharing
arrangements

We contimually pursue innovation that will
improve the performance of our power
systemns and benefit our custorners

We have developed and actvely deployed
anew innovation portal to improve the
exchange of 1deas around the world as we
nvest to improve the efficiency of our
global R&D footprint

People

We have an engineering resource nside the
Croupof around 16,600 engineers Many
work as integrated teamns across borders on
our major programmes and a number of our
top engineers, or Rolls-Royce Fellows, are
recogmsed as world-renowned experts in
their fields

We continued our commitment to recruit
and develop the very best engmeers and
scientists, and the first cohort of our
evolving internal Specialist Academy has
graduated in October 2013 The Academy
has been designed for technologists who
have the potential to join the Rolls-Royce
Fellowship at the very top of our specialist
career ladder

Research and technology

World-class technology gves us competitive
product performance We generate the
largest number of patents of any UK
company, 549 new patent applications were
approved for fihng in 2013 (including
Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG) To further
expand our capabilrties, we acquired
Hyper-Therm HTC, a US-based specialist

In ceramic matenials, and SmartMeoter, a
world leader in permanent-magnet machimes
and drives technology, headquartered in
Norway In addition, we acquired from GKN

the 49 per cent of Composite Technology
and Apphcations Limted (CTAL) that we
did not already own, giving us 100 per cent
ownership CTAL1s engaged n the
development of composite fan blades and
containment cases for the next generation
of advanced turbofan engines

In 2013, we further increased our
nvestment in early-stage research and
technology to about 20 per cent of the net
R&D spend We have good visibility of stable,
long-term government match-fundg for
research investments n aerospace
technologes following the creation in the
UK of the Aerospace Technology Institute,
and in the EU through the Clean Sky 2 loint
Technology imitiatve 1n Horizon 2020 and
contiuous German support via
Luftfahrtforschungsprogramm (LuFo) V

University Technolegy Centres

In addrtion to our sigmficant in-house R&D
capability, we pursue advanced technologies
via aglobal network of 29 Unwversity
Technology Centre (UTC) partnerships

Each centre 1s part-funded by the Group and
works closely with our engineening teams,
undertaking specialist work led by world-
class acadermics In 2013, Nanyang
Technoleqical University joined this network
with the launch of the Rolls-Royce @NTU
Corporate Lab, a joint investment of
SCD575 milhon (£38 5 milhon) between
Rolls-Royce, Nanyang Umiversity and the
National Research Foundation (NRF)

of Singapore

Our model of developing technology
through collaboration with acadermia

and other partners was recogmsed by the
German Fraunhofer Institute for Production
Technology which benchmarked 160
European companies Rolls-Royce was one
of five comparies to receive the "Successful
Practices’ award in technology
management in 2013

Research and development

Fhght test results have shown the Trent XWB
to be the world's most efficient large, cwil,
aero engine

The Trent 1000 Package C receved EASA
certificationin September and a few weeks
later powered the newest version of the
Dreamiiner, the Boeing 787-9 onats first
fhght from Seattle, USA

The Joint Strike Fighter F-35B, with short
take-off and vertical landing (STOVL)
capability provided by the Rolls-Royce
LiftSystem®, successfully completed 1ts
second set of carrer tmals aboard the USS
Wasp 1n August 2013 In September, the T56
engine Series 3 5 technology enhancement
program recewved FAA approval and has now
been chosen to power the "Hurncane
Hunter’ aircraft of the US National Oceamic
and Atmosphenc Administration

In 2013, we teceived the Green Ship
Technology Award for our Envitonship
concept — a design for cargo ships that
reduces CO, emissions by up to 40 per cent
compared to similar diesel powered vessels

Gross research and development (£m)

1,118

YY) 923 908 919

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
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OPERATIONS

Our teams around the world focus on
improvement in all the classical operational
metrics —safety, quality, cost, on-time
delivery, inventory —while at the same time
ensuring that the next generation of
advanced products and processes are
successfully industnalised

Our operations employ 25,000 people n

17 countries at 85 Rolls-Royce facilities

In addition, 33 joint venture facihities, seven
manufacturing technology partnerships
and over 70 significant suppliers help us

to meet customer demand

Developing our capaaty

This year we have extended our own
capacity and capability This included our
new turbine blade factory m Rotherham,

UK and our new 17,000 square metre,
state-of-the-art discs manufactuning facihty
m Washington, UK, that has now started
production When fully operational later this
year, it wifl have the capacity to manufacture
over 2,000 fan and turbine discs annually
We are also taking steps to adjust capacity
where market segments are contracting or
demanding a lower price point Although
our dwerse portfolio helps us balance
growing and shnnking segments, we do
expect an ongoing need to adjust capacity
through plant renewal and closures

Advanced manufactunng

We apply advanced technologies, methods
and processes to dehver 'best in class’
manufacturing performance through our
Rolls-Royce Production System and the
Advanced Manufacturing network, which
has developed over the past five years

The advanced centres i this network bring
together unversity, government and
industrial partners to provide a realistic
testing ground for new industnal techniques
that improve yield and reduce costs These
have proved to be successful both for
Rolls-Royce and our supplier partners

The Advanced Forming Research Centre n
Glasgow, UK, the National Composites
Centre in Bristol, UK and the Manufacturing
Technology Centre in Coventry, UK, are
expanding their facilities and the new
Commonweaith Centre for Advanced
Manufacturing in Richmond, USA, 1s now
fully operational

Our future Advanced Remanufactuning

and Technology Research Centre in Singapore
and High Temperature Components Centre
of Excellence in the UK will ensure we lead

n high-performance, low-emission turbine
technelogy

Our processes will increasingly include
powder-based manufactunng, additve layer
manufacturing technologies and ultra-figh
ternperature materials ‘Knowledge-based
manufacturing’ 1s another developing area
Here, we will use dynamic computer models
to design and venfy processes These
approaches will increase design flexibihity,
speed of manufacture and performance

Supphers

Strong retationships with our supphers are
cnitical to our performance We work closely
to ahgn our strategies as well as assessing
perfoermance through our Suppher Advanced
Busmess Relahonship (SABRE) requirernents

Rolls-Royce has taken a leading role inthe
establishment of the Aerospace Engine
Suppher Quality Committee Through this
body, gas turbine engime makers and their
suppliers —with input from regulatory
agencies — arm to agree a setof common
industry-wide standards These wilt help
remove vartability and waste, enabling the
aerospace supply cham to be leaner and
more compehitive

To support UK supphers in the global
aetospace market, Rolls-Royce 1s sponsoring
the UK Government-backed Sharing in
Growth programme it 1s a £110 milhon
programme of intensive suppher

development traiming and 1s expected

to secure at least 5,000 high-value
manufacturing jobsin aerospace We are
also supperting a £76 rmlhon Sharmg in
Growth programme in the nuclear mdustry

We continue to seek new capabiibes in
emerging markets across the world through
our suppher development groups These help
drive competition with our existing internal
plants and supphers, and also allow us to
develop new markets — Brazil {Energy) and
China (Marine) being good examples We
expect the proportion of our suppher spend
n emerging markets to mcrease

Information technology

in 2013, we vested over £100 million In I7,
continuing with the modermsation of our

IT infrastructure and also launching cur Shop
Floor IT modermsation programme We have
launched an integrated Production Systems
programme to address the need for
simplified, globally scalable and secure
systems The programme will improve
delhvery to the customer whilst improving
efficiency and reducing operating costs We
are also mvesting In our customer systems
to improve the custorner experience through
the use of portals and digital workflow
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£687 million

Expenditure in 2013 on property, plant
and equipment

We ate delivering customer and business
benefits as we continue to invest at record
levels and transform our industnal
mfrastructure
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SUSTAINABILITY

Our strategy is to create a sustainable busmess, through our
focus on customer, innovation and profitable growth. Our
commitment is to continually improve the environmental
performance of our products and services. With our customer
at its heart, our strategy will deliver ‘Better power, a Better
future and a Better busmess’.

Sustainability

Batter power
Helping our customers do more
using less

Better future

We are commtted to innovation
powering better, cleaner, ecocnomic
growth that creates value for customers,
employees, mvestors, suppliers and
wider society

Better business

We nvest 1n technology, people and
deas to mprove all aspects of our
performance and to drive profitable
growth Bulding on today’s
achievements to meet the business
challenges of the future

Better power
Helping our customers do
more using less

Each of our customer-facing segments
provides services and customer operation
solutions to improve the effectiveness of
our equipment In each of our markets, we
are focused on reducing fuel consumption
and emission levels Find out more by
visiting www tolls-royce com

Improving the environmental performance
of our preducts

Rolls-Royce has a strong track record of
reducing emissions through sigmficant
mvestment in technology In 2013, we
nvested £1,118 milhion in R&D, of which
around two-thirds 1s ammed at reducing

the environmental impact of our products
and services

in Civil aetospace, The Advisory Counall for
Aviation Research and Innovation 1n Europe
(ACARE) has set challenging goals for aviation
to meet by 2050 These include reducing
aircraft CO enmssions by 75 per cent (per
passenger kilometre}, reducing noise by

65 per cent, and reducing oxides of mtrogen
{NOy) by 90 per cent, all relatwe to a typical
new arrcraft produced 1n 2000

CO; (Engme) o Oﬂcntsw
ACARE Target () Trentsoo
75% overali rechuction E 5 T Trentso
m COz peT passenger E 10 o
ilometre 30% engine 3 () Trent'1000
contnbution (Rolls-Royce v -15 O Trent XWB
engmelong-term goals) %

8 w»
O Trent family *®
O ACARE fhghtpath 2050 target &

Sl T T T O—
2000 2010 2020 2030 2040 2050

The Trent XWB1s the world's most efficient
turbofan aerc engine flying today The low
noise technolegy built 1nto the Trent 1000
makes 1t the quietest engime on the Boeing
787 Dreamhner, which itself has half the
noise level of the corresponding previous
generation arcraft

In Defence aetospace, we have worked with
the US Air Force to complete the final testing
of the Seres 3 5 enhancement of the

T56 engme, providing fuel savings of up

to ten per centin addition toymproved
performance and rehabality

In Marine, our Environship design together
with our advanced propulsion systems can
reduce CO; emssions by up to 40 per cent
compared to conventional diesel-powered
vessels The Envitonship concept was
awarded the Green Ship Technology
Award this year

Qur Owil Nuclear portfolio makes a
significant contnbution to future low
catbon electricity generation We are
strongly positioned to support growth
m this industry
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Better future

We are committed to
mnovation powering
better, cleaner economic
growth that creates value
for customers, employees,
nvestors, supphers and
wider society.

Qur people

Our culture fosters innovation, collaboration
and continuous improvement Developing
strong people management and leadershmp
skills alongside our techrical expertise helps
ensure that our employees are engaged

and understand the wider role they play

n the Group's success We work actively

to attract young people to Science,
Technology, Engineering and Mathematics
(STEM) subjects

Content and figures do not include Rolls-Royce
Power Systems AG, unless indicated

In 2013, we recruited 2,530 experienced
professionals to support the growth of our
business Our graduate programme 15
expanding, we recruited 379 graduates
through our global programmes, an increase
of 21 per cent from 2012 Our graduate
population 1s becoming more representative
of the dwerse and global company we are
workmg 1, with this year's graduates
representing 32 nabionalities and coming
from 97 unwersities Our apprenticeship
programme has been runming for over 100
years At any one time we have over 1,000
apprentices around the world

Average number of employees 2012 2013°

By region
United Kingdom 22 800 24,800
Rest of the world 20 000 30,400
Total 42,800 55,200
By sector
Cil aetospace 21 500 23,400
Defence aerospace 7 800 7,900
Marnne 8,800 9,200
Enerqy 3700 4,000
Power Systems 1,000 10,700
Total 42 800 55,200

* Includes Rolls Royce Power Systems AG

We retained our title as ‘The most popular
graduate recrurter — Engineenng, Designs
and Manufacture’ in the UK TARGETjobs
Awards for the fourth year runmng Our
position has also risen in the ‘Times Top 100
Graduate Employers’ rankings and in the
‘Guardian UK 300" survey

Employee involvement

Employee engagement 1s critical to our
success We use a variety of channels to
communicate with our employees We have
well-established frameworks for managing
employee and trade umon/employee
representative participation which include
formal information and consultation
arrangements Our incentive schemes and
all-employee share plans make sure that
evety employee has the opportunity to share
In our success We encourage our employees
to improve their knowledge and enhance
their careers by providing meamingful
traming and development In 2013, we
supported 49,600 employees, customers and
supphers through our learning management
system Learming investment for 2013 was
£39 7 miThon and a total of 272,000 traming
course completions were dehvered during
the year

Human nghts

Our human nghts pohcy sets out our
commitment to respect the human nights
of our employees through core labour
standards regarding employee involverment,

diversity and equality, pay and benefits,
working hours, forced labour and child
labour We set equivalent standards for our
supply chain through our Suppher Code

of Conduct

Diversity and inclusion

A dverse workforce will help ensure our
continued success as a global busness and
contnibute towards a better future We
continue to face challenges mincreasing
dwersity across the organisation and are
working with our leadership teams to raise
awareness of the need for change Over
recent years we have seen increased levels
of dversity in both our early career pipeline
and high potential pool, with females
making up 26 per cent of our UK graduate
mtake n 2013 and 29 per cent of our
graduate intake into countries outside the
UK Fernales are 24 per cent of our mgh
potential population as compared to

15 per cent of our general population

This year, Rolls-Rayce sponsored the UK
Female Undergraduate of the Year 2013
awards The winner, Ella Jakubowska,
accepted a place on our Customer
Management Graduate Programme

Full trme equivalents
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Headgount by gender at 31 Decemnber 2013
Male 46 975
Female 8,225
Total 55,200
* Includes Rolls Royce Power Systems AG

Senzar managers by gender®

Mate 188
Female 11
* Includes Rolls Reyce Power Systems AG

Board directors by gender

Male 10
Female 2

We give full and far consideration to
applications for employment made by
disabled people and also support employees
who become disabled dunng employment,
helping them make the best use of thewr
skills and potental
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Commumity investment

We are committed to conducting business to
the highest standards and building positive
relationships within the commumties where
we operate In 2013, our total contnbution
was £8 mlhon We actively work with
schoots and unversities to increase nterest
and encourage diversity amengst those
taking STEM subjects, and to broaden the
career aspirations of individuals from
under-represented groups

Workmng with governments

National governments are often our
customers and we aim to bwild strategic
telationships with governments n our
key markets

National governments and the EU also set
the legislative and pohcy framework for
domng business and they are a potential
source of fundmng and support for research
and technology (R&T), R&D, manufactuning,
education and tramming imthatives, as well as
for certain capital projects

We engage in dialogue to align our own
business needs with the pehtical, social,
economic, ndustnal and commercial
requitements of national governments
and the EU

In 2013, we have worked with the UK
Government on the development and
implementation of the Aerospace Growth
Partnership, in EU Affairs, we have
focused on the Honizon 2020 EU funding
pregramme, and in North America we
focused on defence appropriations and
pelicy 1ssues

Globally, we are members of national
industry bedies and trade associations that
represent our sector and Group interests

In the UK we are members of the
Confederation of British Industry {(CBIl) and
AeroSpace, Defence and Security {ADS), 1n
North America the Aerospace tndustries
Association, Organisation for International
Investment and the US Chamber of

Commerce, wn Brussels on EU affairs we
belong to The AeroSpace and Defence
Industnes Association of Europe (ASD)and
EU Turbines, amongst others, and globally
we are members of local Chambers of
Commerce in our countries of operation

Rolls-Royce does not make corporate
contnibutions or donations to pohtical
parties or to any erganisations, think-tanks,
acadermic institutions or charities closely
associated to a political party or cause, as
outhned 1n our Global Code of Conduct

Better business

We invest m technology,
people and 1deas to
mprove all aspects of our
performance and to drive
profitable growth Building
on today’s achhevements to
meet the business
challenges of the future.

Ethics

We have made a strong commitment to
mmproving our ethical performance n line
with building a better business

You will have read in the Chief Executive’s
review on pages 4 and 5, about Lord Gold’s
Teview, the SFO investigation, and the
publication of our new Global Code of
Conduct We have also introduced a
confidential Ethics Line which 1s available
24 hours a day, where individuals can ask
questions or raise concerns We are also
refreshing our Suppher Code of Conduct for
deployment m 2014 Comphance with the
code will continue to be monitored through
our regular suppher audits

The Group continues to be an active
parthcipant m ethical imtiatives of the
European and US aerospace and defence
busmess sectors We arte a signatory to the
‘Common Industry Standards’ which were
drawn up by ASD and aim to promote

and enhance integnty practices among

1ts members

The Group 1s also a member of the
International Forum on Business Ethical
Conduct’s (IFBEC) Steering Committee

This argamisation includes leading US and
European companies mn the aerospace

and defence sectors and aims to promote
responsible and ethical busimess behaviours
through the Global Principles of

Busmess Ethics

Improving operational performance
Improving the environmental performance
of our opetations contributes to profitable
growth We have set a three-year target
toreduce energy consumption by ten per cent
by the end of 2015, with 2012 as the baseline
year excluding product test and development
and normalised by revenue

Our energy use increased shghtly m 2013,
reflecting our increased levels of activity,
but we are on track to reduce our overall
emissions of greenhouse gases We continue
to nvest in iImprovements to our facilities
Our total spend in 2013 amounted to almost
£3 rmilhen on projects, mcluding upgrades
to compressed air systems, lighting systems
and controls, and additional energy
momtoning capabiity in our plants and
offices We are seeking to make wider

use of more sustainable energy sources,
where cost effective and practical to do sa

Our business segments have third-

party accredited certification to the
environmental management systems
standard 150 14001 In addition, we have
maintained our focus on requiring key
supphers to becorne cerbfied to 150 14001
For further mformation on how we

waork with supplhers please visit

www rolls-royce com/sustamability
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We are helping to lead the way on REACH
(Registration, Evaluation and Authorisation
of Chernicals) regulations and have subrmitted
the first ever REACH Authornisation
apphication This 1s1n the final stages of the
approval process with the European
Chemicals Agency and European Commission
Additionally, we continue to work with our
suppliers to assist them i meeting their
own obligations with a focus on the
managed reduction and phase out of the use
of targeted substances that are hazardous to
health and dangerous to the environment

Through our active participation in the
International Aerospace Environment Group
we are alsc helping to intreduce new
standards to facilitate efficient data shanng
across the aerospace supply chain This
focuses on the uses of hazardous substances
{(in both manufacturing processes and
included in our products) and related
substitution and phase out programmes

Greenhouse gas emissions

In 2013, our total greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions from our facilities, processes,
product test and development was

520 kilotonnes catbon dioxide equivalent
(ktCO€) This represents a reduction of
mine per cent compared with 572 ktCOe

n 2008 (see table) This reduction has been
achieved, despite a growth in our global
facihties footprint We have introduced a
longer term CHG target over ten years,
aimed at reducmg ermssions by 17 per cent
by the end of 2022 (baselined at 2012},
excluding product test and development

The figures in the table do not include
ermissions associated with Rolls-Royce Power
Systems AG We expect to mtegrate this
subsidary into our reporting process

during 2014 Power generation relates

to the operation of commercial gas-fired
power stations

Total GHG emissions (ktCQ:e}

2009 201D 2011 2012 2013

Direct emissions — facilities, processes, product

test and development {Scope 1) 215 236 229 213 218
Indirect emissions — facihihies, processes product
test and development (Scope 2} 357 365 346 337 302
Total for facihities, processes, product test
and development 572 601 575 550 520
Direct emissions — power generation togrid (Scope 1) 56
Indirect emissions — power generation to gnd {Scope 2) 3
Total for faaihties, processes, product
test and development, and power generation to gnd 579
Normalised (by revenue) emissions ratio for faalittes,

o004

processes, product test and development (ktCO.e/Em)

We have used the GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reperting Standard
(revised edition) data gathered to fulfil our
requitements under the Carbon Reduction
Comrmtment {CRC) Energy Efficiency
scheme, and the UK Government's GHG
reporting gurdance as the basis of our
methodology and source of ermissions factors
for Company reporting for 2013 Further
details on our methodology can be found
within our ‘Basis of Reporting’, available at
www Tolls-royce com/sustamability

Safety

We are commutted to continually improving
the standards of health and safety n the
workplace We have steadily improved
performance over previous years In 2013,
there were no fatahities or sigmficant
mjuries and we achieved a 17 per cent
reduction in the Total Reportable injury (TRI)
rate from 054 1 2012 to 0 45 TRIs per 100
employees Over the longer term, we have
reduced the TRl rate by 37 per cent since
2009 We have set a new target to reduce
TRIs per 100 employees by 15 per cent by
2015 (baselined at 2012}

We continue to analyse hwgh-potential
incidents and each of them 1s investigated
at business segment level, with some also
included i Group level assessment The
number of high-potential mcidents has
dechined shghtly from previous years and
the number of ‘near misses’ reported has
significantly increased The increased level
of near miss reporting reflects greater risk

awareness, overall proactive reporting,
risk based mvestigation and other
improvements These contnibute to both
TRl and lngh potential inaident reductions

Throughout the year, we continued several
global safety improvement plans The
Electrical and Process Safety programmes
included site reviews and training and tools
for ensuring efficient implementation of
control measures Reviews have also been
carried out on the use and control of
exposure to a number of chemicals newly-
regulated under the REACH regulations
These reviews confirmed that our controls
are switable and that they ensure
occupational exposures and releases to the
environment are within limits set by the
new requirerments

Health

The current inaidence of occupational diness
stands at 0 86 cases per 1,000 employees
The leading causes of iliness are noise-
induced heanng loss, work-related upper
limb disorders and stress This reflects our
glabal health 1isk profile and provides the
focus for our health improvement activities

Following a prosecution in the UK by the
Health and Safety Executwve for one case

of Hand-Arm Vibration Syndrome (HAVS),
independent advice was scught from the
UK Health and Safety Laboratory and we are
continuing to strengthen our management
of HAVS
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Board uses a range of financial and non-financial
indicators to momitor Group and segmental performance
in hne with the strategy.

Financial indicators are shown below Non-financial key performance indicators are shown in the sustainabihty section
on pages 24 to 27

Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG {RRPS), formerly Tognum AG, was fully consohdated from 1 January 2013
To aid understanding, the impact on 2013 of consolidation has been displayed separately below

Rolts Royce RRPS

CUSTOMER

ORDER BOOK The order book provides an indicator of future busmess £bn
It1s measured at constant exchange rates and hist prices and
includes both firm and announced orders In Cwil aerospace

+19 O/ 1t 1s common for a customer to take options for future
(o] ordets in addition to firm orders placed Such options are 583 t92 |(|622 601
excluded from the order book In Defence aerospace
+16% before RRPS long-term programmes are often ordered for only one year
ata time Insuch circumstances, even though there may be

no alternative engine choice availabie to the customet, only
the contracted business s included in the order book Only

2009 1010 2011 2012

716

700

2013

the first seven years’ revenue of long-term aftermarket
contractsis included

ORDER INTAKE Order mtake 1s a measure of new busmness secured during £bn
the year and represents new firm orders, net of the
movement in the announced order book between the start
+67cy and end of the period Any orders which were recorded m
o previous periods and which are subsequently cancelled
reducing the order book, are included as a reduction to

+52% before RRPS

mtake Order intake 15 measured at constant exchange rates 11 163 161
and hst prices and consistent with the order book palicy of 123
recording the first seven years’ revenue oflong-term
aftermarket contracts Order intake for any given year 2000 {|2010 |l2011 [lz012

2689

245

2013

mdudes the seventh year of revenue.

UNDERLYING REVENUE  Monitoning of tevenues provides a measure of business £m
growth Underlying revenue 1s used m order to elminate the

effect of the decision not to adopt hedge accounting and to

+2 7 O/ provide a clearer year-on-year measure
o 12,209

The Group measures foreign currency revenue at the actual 11.277

3 )
+6% before RRPS exchange rate achieved as a result of settling foregn 10,108 | 10.868
exchange contracts from forward cover

2009 2010 ||2011 2012

15,505

12,919

2013
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INNOVATION

NET R&D EXPENDITURE
AS A PROPORTION OF
UNDERLYING REVENUE

+4 5% before RRPS

R&D 15 measured as the self funded expenditure both
before amounts capitalised mn the year and amortisation of
previously-capitalised balances The Group expects to spend
approxamately five per cent of revenues on R&D although
this proportion will fluctuate depending on the stage of
development of current programmes This measure reflects
the need to generate current returns as well as to invest for
the future

a7

2009

a7

2010

46

2011

47

2012

43

2013

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

+40%

+20% before RRPS

To dehiver on its commitments to customers, the Group
nvests significant amounts 1 1ts infrastructure All
proposed investments are subject to rgotous review to
ensure that they are consistent with forecast actvityand
will provide value for money Annual capital expenditure 1s
measured as the cost of property plant and equipment
acquited during the period

fm

291

2009

361

2010

467

2011

491

2012

€87

590

2013

PROFITABLE GROWTH

UNDERLYING PROFIT
BEFORE FINANCING

+22%

+10% before RRPS

Underlying profit before financing 1s presented on a basis
that shows the economic substance of the Group’s hedging
strategies in respect of the transactional exchange rate and
commodity price movements In particular (a) revenues and
costs denominated in US dellars and euros are presented on
the basis of the exchange rates achieved during the year,

(b} sirmilar adjustments are made 1n respect of commodity
derwatives, and (c) consequential adjustments are made to
reflect the impact of exchange rates on trading assets and
habihities and long-term contracts on a consistent basis

£m

983

2009

1,010

2010

1,206

2011

1,495
77

1,832
267

1,418

2012

1,565

2013

AVERAGE CASH/DEBT
+£380m before RRPS

The Group repotts the balance of net funds/debtona
weekly basis and average cash 1s therefore the average of
these weekly net balances These balances are reported at
prevailing exchange rates and in recent penods, year on-
year movements 1n average cash balances reflect the
significant acquisitions and disposals which have taken
place most notably RRPS 1n 2011 and IAE restructuring in
2012 The impact on average cash balances will depend on
when these transactions tock place duning the year

£m

633

969

341

350

2010

011

I (144)

2012

2013

CASH FLOW
+£539m before RRPS

In a busimess requining significant vestment, the Board
monitors cash flow to ensure that profitability s converted
into cash generation, both for future investmentand as a
reward for shareholders The Group measutes cash flow as
the movernent in net funds/debt during the year after
taking into account the value of dervatves held to hedge
the value of balances dengminated in foreigh currencies

The figure for 2011 mchudes mvestment of £1 496 rmilhon
n RRPS

fm

—
{183)

2009

325

2010

{1,376)

2011

2012

20132
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group places great importance on the identification and effective
management of risks. Our approach to enterprise risk management
helps us to dehver our objectives and maximise the returns of the Group.

The following table descnibes the risks that the risk cormmittee, with endorsement from the Board, considers to have the most matenal
potential impact on the Group They are specific to the nature of our business notwithstanding that there are ather risks that may occur
and may impact the achievement of the Group's objectives

The risk committee discussions have been focused on these nisks and the actions being taken to manage them

Risk or uncertainty and potential impact How we manage 1t

PRODUCT FAILURE - Operating a safety first culture

Product not meeting safety expectations, or causng « OQur engineering design and vahdation process 1s applied from mtial

sigmificant impact to customers or the environment design, through production and mte service

through farlure in quaiity control + The safety commuttee reviews the scope and effectiveness of the Group's
product safety pohcies to ensure that they operate to the highest
mdustry standards

- A safety management system (SMS) has been established by a dedicated
team This 1s governed by the Product Safety Review Board and 1s subject
to continual improvement based on expenence and industry best
practice Product safety traimng 15 an mtegral part of our SMS

Cnsis management team led by the Director — Engineenng and
Technology or General Counsel as approptiate

.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY « Continued mvestment 1n adequate capacity and modern equipment
Breakdown of external supply chain ot internal facilities and facilities (see operations section on page 23)

that could be caused by destruction of key facilities, + Identifying and assessing ponts of weakness in our internal

natural disaster, regional conflict, financial insolvency and external supply chain, our IT systems and our people skills

of a critical suppher or scaroity of matenals whichwould | selection and development of stronger suppliers (see operations
reduce the ability to meet customer commitments, section on page 23)

win future business or achieve operational results

Developing dual sources or dual capability

Developing and testing site-level mcident management and business
recovery plans

Cnsis management team led by the Director — Engineering and
Technology or General Counsel as appropriate

Customer excellence centres provide improved response to supply
cham disruption

COMPETITOR ACTION « Accessing and developing key technologies and service offerings
The presence of large, financially strong competitors which differentiate us competitvely {see engineering and technology
1n the majority of our markets means that the Group section on page 22)

1s susceptible to sigrificant price pressure for enginal Focusing on being responsive to our customers and improving
equipment or services even where our markets are mature  the quahty, delivery and rehability of our products and services
or the competitors are few Our mamn competitors have - Partnering with others effectively

access to significant government funding programmes
as well as the ability to invest heavily m technology
and mdustnal capabihty

.

« Driving down cost and improving margins (see Chief Executive’s review
on pages 4 and 5 and Chief Financial Officer's review on page 8)

Protecting credit lines {see additional fimancial information on
pages 111 and 112)

Investing in innovation, manufacturing and production (see operations
section on page 23)

« Understanding our competitors
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Risk or uncertainty and potenhal impact

How we manage it

INTERNATIONAL TRADE FRICTICN
Geopolitical factors that lead to sigmficant tensions
between major trading parties or blocs which could
impact the Groups operations For example explicit
trade protectiomsm, differing tax or requlatory regimes,
potential for confhict, or broader political 1ssues

Where possible, locating our domestic facilities 1n politically stable
countnes and/or ensuring that we mamntain dua! capability

Diversifying global operations to avowd excessive concentration
of nsks1n particular areas

Network of regional directors proactively momitors local situations
Maintaining a balanced business portfolio in markets with high
technological barniers to entry and a dverse customer base
Understanding our supply cham risks

Proactively influencing regulation where 1t affects us (see sustamability
on page 26)

MAJOR PRODUCT PROGRAMME DELIVERY
Failure to delwer a major product programme on time,
to specification or techmical performance falling
significantly short of customer expectations would have
potentially significant adverse financial and reputational
consequences, Including the nisk of impairment of the
carrying value of the Groups imtangible assets and the
1impact of potential htigation

Major programmes are subject to Board approval (see additional
financial information on page 111)

Major programmes are reviewed at levels and frequencies appropriate
to their performance against key financial and non-financial
deliverables and potential risks throughout a pregramme’s hfe cycle
(see additional financial information on page 111}

Techmical audits are conducted at pre-defined ponts performed

by a team that s independent from the programme

Programmes are required to address the actions ansing from reviews
and audits and progress 1s momtored and controlled through to closure
Knowledge management principles are applied to provide benefit to
current and future programmes

COMPLIANCE

Non-complhiance by the Group with legislation or other
regulatory requirements in the regulated environment
which it operates (for example export controls, offset, use
of controlled chemicals and substances, and anti-bribery
and corruption legislation) comprormising our abihity to
conduct business in certain junisdictions and exposing
the Group to potential reputational damage, financial
penalties, debarment from government contracts for

a petiod of time, and/ot suspension of export privileges
or export credit financing, any of which could have
amatenal adverse effect

An uncompromising approach to compliance is now, and should
always be, the only way to do business

The Group has an extensive comphance programme This programme
and the Global Code of Conduct are promulgated throughout the Group
and are updated and reinforced from time-to-time, to ensure their
continued Tetevance, and to ensure that they are comphed with both
n spirit and to the letter The Global Code of Conduct and the Group's
compliance programme are supported by appropnate traiming
Alegal and compliance team has been put 1n place to manage the
current specific1ssue through to a conclusion and beyond

Lord Gold has reviewed the Group's current compliance procedures
and an improvement plan 1s being implemented
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk or uncertainty and potential impact

How we manage it

MARKET SHOCK

The Group s exposed to a number of market nisks, some

of which are of a macro-economic nature, for example,
foreign currency exchange rates, and some which are more
specific to the Group, for example hquidity and credit nisks,
reduction w air travel or disruption to other customer
operations Significant extraneous market events could
also materially damage the Groups competitiveness and/
ot credit worthmess This would affect operational results
or the cutcomes of financial transactions

+ Mantaiming a strong balance sheet, through healthy cash balances
and a contimuing low level of debt

Providing financial flexibihty by mamntaming high levels of hquidity
and an investment grade ‘A’ credit rating {see additional financial
nformation on page 112}

The portfoho effect from our business interests, both in terms of
original equipment to aftermarket spht and our different segments
provide a natural shock absorber since the portfolios ate not correlated

Deading where and what currencies to source in, where and how much
credit risk 1s extended ot taken and hedging residual nsk through the
financial dervatives markets (foreign exchange, interest rates and
commodity price risk -~ see additional fmancial information on page 111)

IT VULNERABILITY

Breach of IT secunity causing controlled data to
be lost, made 1naccessible, corrupted or accessed
by unauthorised users

Establishing ‘defence n depth’ through deployment of muitiple
layers of software and processes including web gateways, filtering,
firewalls, intrusion, advanced persistent threat detectors and
ntegrated reporting

Secunty and netwark operations centres have been established
Active sharing of information through industry, government and
security forums

-

The strategic report was approved by the Board on 12 February 2014

By order of the Board
Nigel T Goldsworthy
Company Secretary
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

lan Davis
Chairman, appomted Maich 2013

Skolls and expenence lanspent his early career at Bowater moving to
McKinsey & Company 1n 1979 He was managing partner of McKinsey s
practice in the UK and Ireland from 1996 to 2003 In 2003, he was appomnted
as Chairman and worldwide Managing Ditector of McKimsey, serving in

this capacity until 2009 During his career with McKimsey lan served as a
consultant to a range of global organisations across the private public and
not for profit sectors He retirted as semior partner of McKinsey & Company
on 30 July 2010

External appointments lan serves as a non-executve director on the
boards of Johnson & Johnson Inc, BP p1 ¢ and as a non executive member
of the Cabinet Office Board He 1s also senior adviser to Apax Partners LLP

John Rishton
Chief Executive, appointed March 2011

Skills and expenence Johnbegan his career in 1979 at Ford Motor Company
where he held a variety of positions 1n the UK and in Europe 1n 1994 he
Joined British Arways Plc where he was Chief Financial Officer from 2001
to 2005 In 2006, he was appointed CFO at Royal Ahold and became CEO in
2007 John was appomted as a non-executwe director of Rolls-Royce 1n 2007
and served as chairman of the audit commmttee and a member of the ethics
and nomination committees until his appointment as Chief Executive

He 15 a former non executve director of Alhed Domecq

External appointments Johnwas appomnted as a non executwe directar
of Umlever NV and Urilever plc in May 2013

lam Conn
Semor Independent Director appomnted January 2005

Skills and expertence laim joined the BP groupin 1986 and has held a
number of executive pasitions within the BP group worldwide

External appomtments lain 15 Chief Executive of Refimng and Marketing,
BPplc Hesa member of The Impenal College Council and of the CBl s
Energy and Chmate Change Board He1s also a member of the Development
Advisory Board of the RAE and of the advisory boards of the Centre far
European Reform the Centre for China in the World Economy at Tsinghua
Universtty and of the Schwarzman School at Tsinghua University

Dame Helen Alexander
Non executive director, apponted September 2007

Skills and expenence

Dame Helen was Chief Executive of the Economist Group until 2008 which
she joined 1n 1985 She was President of the CB! unti 2011, she has also
been a non executwe director of Northern Foods ple BT Group plcand
Centrica plc She was awarded a DBE i 2011 for services to business

External appomtments Dame Helenis Chairman of UBM plc, the Port of
Lendon Authonty and Incisive Media She 1s also deputy chairman of esure
Group plc and senior adviser to Bain Capital Dame Helen s Chancellor of
the University of Southampton and she 15 nvolved with a number of other
not-for profit organisations in medsa, the nternet the arts and education

Lew1s Booth CBE
Non-executive director, appointed May 2011

skills and expeniance Lews 1s the farmer Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Ford Motor Company a position he held for over
three years until his retirement from the company m April 2012 Dunng his
34-year career at Ford he held a senes of senor positions in Europe, Asia
Africa and the Umited States Lews began his career with British Leyland
before joiming Ford in 1978 He was awarded a CBE in June 2012 for services
to the UK automotive and manufactuning industries

External appomtments Lews 15 a director of Mondelez International, Inc.
Gentherm Inc and of University of Liverpool m America Inc

sir Frank Chapman
Non-executwve ditector, appomnted November 2011

Skalls and expenence Sir Frank has worked n the o1l and gas industry for 38
yeats inciuding appointments withim Royal Dutch Shell plcand BP plc. Hewas
Chief Executrve of BG Group ple for 12 years until Decemnber 2012 Sir Frank

15 a Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering, the Institution of Mechamical
Engimeers and the Energy (nstitute

Warren East CBE
Non-executive ditector, appointed January 2014

Skills and expenence Warren joined ARM Holdings 1n 1994 and was
appointed Chief Executive m 2001 Under his leadership the company
became the world’s leading sermconduc tor IP hicensing company He retired
from ARM Holdings 1n 2013 He 15 a Fellow of the Institute of Engineening
and Technology, a Fellow of the Royal Academny of Engineering and a
Distingwished Fellow of the BCS He was awarded a CBE in 2014 for services
to the technology mdustry

Extemnal appomtments Warren is a non-executive director and chairman
of the Audit Commattee of De La Rue plc a non-executive ditector of Dyson
Ltd BT Group plc and Micron Technology Inc
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Lee Hsien Yang
Non executive director, appointed fanuary 2014

Skills and expenence HsienYangwas Chief Executive of Singapore
Telecommunrications Lirmited for 11 years He served as Chairman and
non executive drector of Fraser and Neave trrmted from 2007 until
February 2013

External appommtments HsienYang serves as a Special Advisor of General
Attantic LLC He 1s Charrman of the Civil Aviation Authority of Singapore,
General Atlantic Singapore Fund Pte Ltd and The Islamic Bank of Asia Private
Limited, The Austrahan and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd and the Lee
Kuan Yew School of Pubhc Policy He 1s also President of the INSEAD South
East Asia Council

John McAdam
Non-executive director, appointed February 2008

Skills and expenence Johnwas the Chief Executive of ICI plc until ICI s
acquisition by Akzo Nobel He has held a number of positions at Unilever,
within its Birds Eye Walls and Unichemna International businesses and 1s a
former non executwve director of Severn Trent plc and Sara Lee Corporation

Extermal appointments John s Chasrman of Umted Utihties Group PLC and
Rentokil Imtial plc and the Semor Independent Director of ) Samsbury ple

John Neill CBE
Non executive ditector appointed Novermnber 2008

Skilis and expenence John1s a member of the Council and Board of
Business in the Commumty 1s Vice President of the Society of Motor
Manufacturers and Traders BEN the automotve industry chanty and The
Institute of the Motor Industry He was formerly a dwector of the Bank of
England and a non-executwe director of Royal Mail and Charter
International plc He was awarded a CBE in June 1994

External appointments Johnis the Chairman and Group Chief Executive
of the Umpart Group of Compames birmited and was appeinted Chairman
of Atlantis Resources Limited in December 2013

lasmin Staiblin
Nen-executive director, appointed May 2012

Skills and expenence Jasrmin s the CEO of Alpig Holding AG and was CEQ
of ABB Switzerland Ltd until December 2012 She has lived and worked
n Swatzerland, Sweden and Austraha

External appointments Jasmin s a non executve director of Georg Fischer
AG and a member of the board of the Federal Institute of Technology the
ETH Domain

James Guyette
President and Chief Executive Cfficer of Rolls-Royce North America Inc.
appointed January 1998

Skills and expenence Before joining the Company Jim was Executive Vice
President, Marketing and Planming of United Airhines

External appomntments him s Chairman of PrivateBancorp Inc. of Chicago,
hnors and he 1 lead independent director of priceline com inc of Norwalk
Connecticut. He 1 also Chairman Emenitus of the Smithsontan National Aw
& Space Museum, Washington DC

Mark Moms
Chief Ainancial Officer, appomted January 2012

Skills and expenence Mark joined Rolls-Royce 1n 1986 He has held a
number of semor positions throughout the Company and before s
appomtment as Chief Finanaial Officer was Group Treasurer from 2001

Cohn Smitth CBE
Director — Engineering and Technology appointed July 2005

Skills and expenence Colin joined Rolis-Royce in 1974 He has held a vanety
of key positions withn the Company including Cirector - Research and
Technclogy and Director of Engineering and Technelogy — Civil aerospace
Colin 1s a Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering the Royal Aeronautical
Society and the Institution of Mechamcal Engineers He 1s also a Member of
the Council for Science and Technology InJune 2012 he was awarded a CBE
for services to UK engineering

Nigel T Goldswarthy
Company Secretary & Head of Legal appointed Decernber 2012

Skills and expenence Asolicitor Nigelhas held a number of semor legal
and company secretary roles within the Company and before his
appointment as Company Secretary & Head of Legal, was Deputy General
Counsel from 2008 Before joining Rolls Royce in 2004, Nigel was a partner
m the banking graup of Lovells (now Hogan Lovells)

At 31 December 2013, all the directors werte also directors of Rolls-Royce
Haldings plc the ultimate parent company As directors of the ultimate
parent company, there 15 no requirement to disclose their remuneration or
their interests in the shares of Rolls-Royce group companies in this Directors’
report as they are induded mn the annual teport of Rolls Royce Holdings plc.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board's responsibility for mnternal control and

risk management

The directors are responsible for the Group's system of internal
control and for maintaiming and reviewing 1ts effectiveness

from both a finanoal and an operational perspective The Group's
Tisk management process 1s a key element of the internal control
system This system of internal control 1s designed to identify and
manage, rather than eliminate, the nsk of fallure to achieve business
objectives and to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
agamnst matenial misstatement or loss The Board's report on the
Group's principal Tisks and actions taken to mitigate them 1s on
pages 30to 32

The Group's approach to internal control 1s based on the underlying
principle of hne management's accountability for control and risk
management In reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
nternal control, the Board has taken account of the results of the
work carried out to audit and review the activities of the Group

Each of the Company’s principal risks are owned by specific
members of the executve team, which continually reviews and
challenges as to whether these continue to be the principal risks
and whether the management of those risks remains effectwe

Turnover from joint ventures constitutes an mcreasingly large part
of reported group activity Responsibility for internal control
procedures n Jeint ventures where the Group does not have a
control agreement lies with the managers of those operations

The Group seeks to exert mnfluence over such ventures by board
representation and regularly review the activities of these ventures

Financial reporting

The Group has a comprehensive budgeting system with an
annual budget approved by the Board Revised forecasts for the
year are teported at least quarterly Actual results, at both a
business and Group level, are reported monthly agamst budget
and vanances reviewed

Financial managers are required to acknowledge in writing that
ther routine financial reporting 1s based on reliable data and that
results are properly stated 1n accordance with Group requirements

In addition, for annual reporting, business presidents and finance
directors are required to acknowledge that theirbusiness has
complied with the Group’s Finance Manual

The audit committee

Rolls-Royce Holdings plc has an audit committee, whose key
objective 15 assist the Board i ensuring the integnty of its financial
statements In addressing the key objective, the comrmittee
reviewed financial statements with both management and the
external auditor, concentrating on

- comphance with financial reporting standards and governance
reporting requirements,

- areas requining significant judgements to be made n applying
accounting pohcies,

- the appropnateness of accounting pohcies,

« the procedures and controls around estimates that are key in
applyng accounting policies, and

- any relevant correspondence from regulators

The commuttee 1s focused on ensuring integnty of the Group's
fmancial reporting and improving the financial controls framework,
including the restructuring of business audit committees which
now report directly to this committee During the year, it
encouraged and supported the development of an enhanced
business audit commttee process Under this process, management
of each of the Group's businesses consider the appropnateness and
related governance of accounting pohcies, judgements and
estimates and the control environment relating to their businesses
including nternal audit findings and the robustness of the
pracesses used to execute their nsk management responsibilities
The comimittee recewve reports on the results of these reviews

The business is complex, in particular the development of gas
turbmnes for use i civil aircraft applications requares large upfront
investments, along penod of sale of original equipment, and a very
long period over which profits and cash flows are generated from
the aftermarket by the sale of spare parts and engine maintenance
work The in-service period could be longer than 25 years for any
engine, and the total hfe cycle of an engine could be more than 40
years from imitial concept, through production, and then through
the in-service ife Much of the aftermarket repair and overhaul 1s
provided through long-term service agreements Given thislong
exposure, the amount of revenue and profit recognised durng any
period requires a significant number of accounting judgements
and estimates, supported by engmeering and business
assessments Consequently, one of the primary responsibiities

of the committee 15 to ensure that the bases for these judgements
and estimates are robust

A resolution to reappoint the external auditor, KPMG Audit Pic, and
to authonse the directors to determine the auditor’s remuneration,
will be proposed at the AGM

The nsk committee

Rolls-Royce Holdings plc has established a risk committee The
committee discussed all of the key risks in depth in advance of

the annual and half-year results process and produced a reporton
principal risks for the Board's approval It also discussed the work

of the Crisis Management Teamn and agreed to hold more frequent
crisis management exercises Ouring the year, work continued on
the development of meamng ful indicators to measure the principal
risks More focus was given to key business continuity nsks and the
commuttee considered and assessed each of the key business
continuity 11sks dentified by the businesses and therr mitigation
plans The discussion an IT vulnerability led us to have an in-depth
review of the IT Operations Centre and give detalled constderation
1o how IT security risks, including the growing global threat of cyber
attack, are managed
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Director of Risk leads the risk team across the Group which

1s responsible for implementing nsk policy and processes Line
ownetship for nisk management 1s devolved to our busimess urits
and functions, supported by a network of nsk champions and nisk
managers

Each business maintains a risk register which compnises those

nisks that it considers are material to its objectves and operations
The businesses regularly review the effectiveness and consistency
of nsk management actvity via their assurance framework and the
application of the 1isk management process, all of which are subject
to review by the business audit committees Each business formally
Teviews thew 1isks at least twice yearly taking account of work
carnied out by the underlying business umts, programmes and
functions Business continuty plans are put in place by the
busmesses to mitigate continuity risks

Every six months, as part of the full- and half-year results process,
the risk commuttee reviews the key risks that the busimesses and
functions report in accordance with our enterprise-wide risk
management system The commuttee cross-checks the risks
dentified by the business with those nsks 1t has identified fromts
own assessments and concludes a hst of principal nisks During the
year, the commttee discusses how the nsks have changed and how
each risk 15 managed, identifying where further action 15 required

Ethics committee and the referral to the Senous Fraud Office
Rolls-Royce Holdmgs plc has established an ethics committee

On 6 December 2012, the Group announced that we had passed
mformation to the SFO relating to concerns in overseas markets
Since that date the committee has continued 1ts investigations and
1s engaging with the SFO and other authonties in the UK, USA and
elsewhere In December 2013, the Group announced that it had
been informed by the SFO that it had commenced a formal
mvestigation The consequence of these disclosures will be decided
by the requlatory authorities It remains too early to predict the
outcomes, but these could include the prosecution of indwiduals
and of the Company Accordingly, the potential for fines, penalties or
other consequences (including debarment from government
contracts, suspension of export privileges and reputational
damage) cannot currently be assessed As the mvestigation is
ongoing, 1t 15 not yet possible to identify the timescale 1n which
these 1ssues might be resolved The Group continues to demand the
highest standards of behaviour from its people John Rishton has
stated unequivocally that nerther he nor the Board will tolerate
improper conduct of any sort and all necessary action will be taken
to ensure comphance

Lord Gold's review

The Company has taken sigmficant further action to strengthen
and enhance its ethics and comphance programme In January 2013,
the Comnpany appointed Lotd Gold to review its etmical and
comphance procedures and rnake recommendations 1n respect
ofthe same Lord Gold began his work m 2013 reporting directly to
the ethics committee and attending its meetings In July 2013, he
presented an interim report, having interviewed over 80 seror
managers across the Group The report made vanous detalled
recommendations The ethics committee, the Board and the
Executive Leadership Team have all reviewed and accepted Lord
Gold's \ntenim report and the recommendations made it and
the Company has started to )implement those recommendations
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital

Throughout 2013, the Cornpany's authorised share capital was
£400 rmllion, comprising 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 20p
On 31 Decernber 2013, there were 1,630,996,508 ordinary shares
m 1ssue

The ordinary shares are not hsted

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Polttical donations

In ine with 1ts estabhished policy, the Group made no pohtical
donations pursuant to the authonty granted at the 2013 AGM
Although the Company does not make, and does not intend to
make, donations to pohtical parties within the normal meaning
of that expression, the defimtion of political donations under
the Compames Act 2006 15 very broad and includes expenses
legitimately wncurred as part of the process of talking to members
of parhament and epimon formers to ensure that the 1ssues and
concerns of the Group are considered and addressed These
actwities are not mtended to support any political party

A resolution will therefore be proposed at the AGM seeking
shareholder approval for the directors to be given authority to make
denations and incur expenditure which might otherwise fall withim
the terms of the Companies Act 2006 The authority sought will be
hmited to a maximum amount of £25,000 per Group company but
50 as not to exceed £50,000 for the entire Group 1n aggregate

During the year, the business expenses incurred by Rolis-Royce
North America Inc towards the operation of the Rolls-Royce North
America Political Action Commmttee (RRNAPAC) in the US was
US$69,430 (2012 US544,161) PACs are acommen feature of the
US political system and are governed by the Federal Election
Campaign Act

The RRNAPAC 15 independent of the Group and independent of

any pohitical party The RRNAPAC funds are contnibuted voluntanly
by employees and the Company cannot affect how they are applied,
although under US Law, the business expenses are paid by the
Company Such contnbutions do not require authonsation by
shareholders under the Companies Act 2006 and therefore do

not count towards the £25,000 and £50,000 limits for political
donations and expenditure for which shareholder approval will

be sought at the AGM

Dwidends

A dnndend of £900 million was paid during the year The directors
do not propese the payment of afmal dvidend

Indemmty

Rolls-Royce Holdings plc has entered into separate Deeds of
Indemnity in favour of 1ts ditectors, which were i force during the
financial year and remaimn in force at the date of this report

The deeds provide substantially the same protection as that already
provided to directors under the indemmty 1n Article 216 of the
Company’s Articles of Association The Company has also reviewed,
arranged and maintains appropriate insurance cover for any legal
action taken agamst its directors and officers
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of directors’ responsibihies in respect of the directors’
report and the finanaal statements

The directors as listed on pages 33 and 34 are responsible for
preparing the directors’ report and the Group and parent company
financial statements 1n accordance with apphicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent
company financial statements for each financial year Under that
law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable Jaw and
have elected to prepare the parent company financial staterments
in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and apphcable law
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
staternents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and
of their profit or loss for that period

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial

statements, the directors are required to

- select suitable accounting pohcies and then apply them
consistently,

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- for the Group financial statements, state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,

- for the parent company financial statemnents, state whether
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the parent
company financial statements, and

« prepare the fiancial statements on the going concern basis
unless 1t 15 inappropnate to presume that the Group and the
parent company will continue 1n busimess

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explan the parent and
Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the parent company and enable them
to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Compamies
Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as
are reasonably open to them to safequard the assets of the Group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also
responsible for preparing a strategic report and a directors’ report
that comply with that law and those regulations

The dwectors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty

of the corporate and finanoial information included on the Groups
website Legistation m the UK govermng the preparation and
disseminabion of financial statements may differ from legislation
mather junsdictions

Going concern

Asdescribed on page 111, the Group meets its funding
requirements through a mixture of shareholders’ funds, bank
borrowings, bonds and notes  The Group has facilities of £3 6 iThon
of which £2 4 bilhon was drawn at theyear end £200 million of
these facilities mature in 2014

The Group's forecasts and projections, takimg into account
reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that
the Group has sufficient financial resources As a consequence,
the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group are well placed to manage their business nisks and
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,
despite the current uncertain global economic outlook

Accordingly, the directors continue to adopt the gomng concern basis
n preparing the consohdated financial statements

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each of the persons who 1s adirector at the date of approval of this
report confirms that

1) so far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant information
of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware, and

n) the director has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken
as a director in order to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit mformation and to estabhish that the Company’s
auditor 15 aware of that information

This confirmation s given, and should be interpreted, in accordance
with the provisions of Section 418 of the Compames Act 2006

Responsibihty statements
Each of the persons who1s a director at the date of approval of this
report confirms that to the best of his or her knowledge

1) each of the Group and parent company financial statements,
prepared in accordance with IFRS and UK Accounting Standards
respectvely, gives a true and far view of the assets, habihties,
financial position and profit or loss of the 1ssuer and the
undertakings included 1n the consohdation taken as a whole, and

n) the strategic report on pages 1 to 32 and pages 111 to 112 of the
directors” reportincludes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company
and the undertakings included 1n the consohdation takenas a
whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face

By order of the Board

Nigel T Goldsworthy
Company Secretary
12 February 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Restated®
2013 2012
Notes £m £tm
Revenue 2 15,513 12,161
Cost of sales {12,197} {9 432}
Gross profit 3,316 2729
Other operating income 3 65 -
Commeraial and administrative costs (1,322) (993)
Research and development costs 3 (683) {531)
Share of results of joint ventures and assocates 10 160 173
Operating profit 1,536 1378
Profit on transfer of joint ventures to subsidianies 119 =
Profit on disposal of businesses {2012 |AE mternational Aeto Engines AG restructuring £699 rmilon) 24 216 699
Profit before fmanang and taxation 2 1,871 2077
Financing 1ncome 4 327 797
Financing costs 4 {179) (108}
Net fimancing 148 689
Profit before taxation? 2,019 2,766
Taxation S (380) (431)
Profit for the year 1,639 2335
Attnbutable to
Ordnary shareholders 1,627 2,321
Non-controlling intetests (NCI} 12 14
Profit for the year 1,639 2,335
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2013
Restated
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 1,639 2,335
Other comprehensive mcome (OCH)
tems that wall not be reclassified to profit or loss
Movements in post-retitement schemes 18 48 (305)
Share of OCl of joint ventures and associates 10 - (48)
Related tax movements 5 10 105
58 {246}
Items that may be reclassified to profit ot loss
Foreign exchange translaton differences on foreign operations {64) {118)
Share of OCl of joint ventures and associates 10 {6) 12)
Related tax movements 5 1 (1)
(69) {131)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,628 1958
Attnbutable to
Orcdinary shareholders 1,617 1,944
Non controlling interests 11 14
1,628 1,958

Total comprehensive mcome for the year

* 2012 figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of amendments to IAS 19 Empioyee Benefits —see note 18 and the changen the accounting policy for RRSAS —seenote 1
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=
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET :
At 31 December 2013 5
3
Restated” -
31 December 1January
2013 2012 2012
MNaotes £m im im
ASSETS
Non-current assets g
Intangible assets 8 4,987 2,901 2882 §
Property, plant and equipment 9 3,392 2564 2,338 @
Investments — joint ventures and associates 10 601 1,800 1,680 §
Investments —other 10 27 6 10 =
Other financial assets 16 674 592 327
Deferred tax assets 5 316 342 387
Post retirement scheme surpluses 18 248 348 520 [r—
10,245 8553 8144 -
Current assets g
Inventories 11 3,319 2,726 2561 g
Trade and other recewables 12 5,940 4665 4,205 =
Taxation recoverable 16 33 20 'g"
Other financial assets 16 74 115 91 g
Short-term nvestments i 11 11 v
Cash and cash equivalents 13 3,990 2,584 1309
Assets held for sale [ 4 313
13,666 10,138 8510 g
Total assets 23,911 18,691 16 654 2
g
LIABILITIES 3
Current habihhes §
Borrowings 14 {207) (149) {20)
Other fimanoal habiities 16 (102) {135) (107)
Trade and other payables 15 {7,936) (6,403) {(6,303)
Tax habihties {204) {126) (138)
Provisions for llabilities and charges 17 (348) (220) (276}
Liabihtes associated with assets held for sale - - 135)
(8,797) (7033) (6979}
Non-current habihties
Borrowings 14 (2,164) (1,234) (1,184}
Other financial habilities 16 {360) {418) (919)
Trade and other payables 15 (2,138) {1,672) {1533)
Taxhabilities {10) - -
Deferred tax habiities 5 (882) (584) {445)
Provisions for llabihties and charges 17 (385) {241) {226)
Post-retirement scheme deficits 18 {1,041) {793) (807)
{6,980) {4942) (5,114)
Total labihities (15,777} (11.975) {12,093}
Netassets 8,134 6716 4561
EQUITY
Equity attributable to ordmnary shareholders
Called-up share capital 19 326 326 326
Share prermum account 631 631 631
Cash flow hedging reserve {68) (63) {52)
Other reserves 247 310 430
Retained earmings 6,300 5449 3225
7,436 6 653 4,560
Non controlling interests 698 63 1
Total equity 8,134 6,716 4,561

2012 figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of amendments to |AS 19 Employee Benefits ~seenote 18 and the change 1 the accounting palicy for RRSAs —see note 1

The financial statements on pages 40 to 87 were approved by the Board on 12 February 2014 and signed on its behalf by

lan Pavis Chaifman Mark Mornis Chief Financial Officer

A
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Restated
2013 2012
Notes £m im
Reconaliation of cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit 1,536 1378
Loss/{profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7 )]
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 10 {1s0) 73)
Dnvidends recerved from joint ventures and associates 10 99 129
Amortisation and imparment of intangible assets 8 428 231
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 9 372 256
Impairment of investments 10 - 2
Decrease in provisians (7) (40)
Decrease/{increase) in inventories 119 {158)
Increase \n trade and other recevables (834) (634)
Increase in trade and other payables 349 180
Cash flows on other financial assets and habilities held for operating purposes 9 (29)
Net defined benefit post-retirement cost recognised in profit before finanging 279 173
Cash fundmg of defined benefit post-retirement schemes {315) (299)
Share based payments 20 79 55
Net cash inflow from operating achwvittes before taxation 1,951 1062
Taxation paid (238) (219)
Net cash mflow from operating activities 1,713 843
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of unhsted investments 10 2) -
Disposals of unhsted investments 10 1 4
Addrtions of intangible assets 8 (503) (250)
Disposals of intangible assets 8 - 1
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {669) (435)
Government grants recewved 21 10
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 7 30
Acquisitions of businesses 24 {37) (20)
Reclassifications of jomt ventures to subsidianes 24 245 -
Acquisitions of preference shares 1n subsidiary 24 (34) -
Restructuring of IAE International Aete Engines AG - 942
Disposals of businesses 24 273 —
Investments in joint ventures and associates (a3) (24)
Repayment of lean to Rolls-Royce Power Systemns Holding GmbH - 167
Transfer of subsidiary to associate - (1)
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from mvesting activities (740} 424
Cash flows from fmanaing activities
Repayment of loans {133) (99}
Proceeds fromn increase m loans 1,013 221
Net cash flow from mcrease in borrowmngs 880 122
Interest receved 15 11
Interest paxd (58) (52}
Increase inshort tertm investments {313) -
Dwvidend to NCI (60} -
Net cash mflow/{outflow) from fmanang activities 464 81
Nat mcrease m cash and cash equivalents 1,437 1348
Cash and cash equivalents at 1January 2,584 1,290
Exchange losses on cash and cash equwalents (34) {54)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 3,987 2584

2012 figures have been restated to reffect the adoption of amendments to 1AS 19 Employee Benefits — see note 18 and the change in the accounting pohcy for RR5As ~see note L
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 7
7
2]
2
2013 2012 -
£fm £Em
Reconciliation of movements m cash and cash equivalents to movements 1n net funds
Increase i cash and cash equivalents 1,437 1,348
Cash flow from mcrease m borrowings (880) (122) o
Cash flow from mcrease in short-term investments 313 - i
Change m net funds resuiting from cash flows 870 1226 g
Net funds (excluding cash and cash equivalents) of businesses acquired {204) (78) 5
Exchange losses on net funds {a3) (54) §
Fair value adjustments 105 2
Movement 1n net funds 728 1,096
Net funds at 1 January excluding the fair value of swaps 1,212 116
Net funds at 31 December excluding the fair value of swaps 1,940 1,212
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings {1) 104 T
Net funds at 31 December 1,939 1316 :3'
2
The movement in net funds (defined by the Group as including the 1tems shown below} 1s as follows 5‘
At Net funds At B
1 January Funds  ofbusimesses Exchange Fair vatue 31 December o8
2013 flow acquired differences  adustments  Reclassificabons 2013
£m im £m im fm £m £m
Cash at bark and inhand 673 334 {25} - - 982
Maney market funds 408 754 (5) - - 1,157 9§
Short term deposits 1,503 352 (4) - - 1,851 2
Overdrafts - (3) - - - 3} 2
Cash and cash equnvalents 2,584 1437 (34) - - 3,987 é
Short term investments 11 313 - {3 - — 321 g
Current borrowings excluding overdrafts {149) 133 (4) - 17 {201) (204) 2
Non-current borrowings {1,233) {1013) {200) (6) 38 201 (2,163)
Finance leases 1) - - - - - 1)
Net funds excludmng fair value of swaps 1,212 870 (204) (43) 105 - 1,940
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings 104 {105) (1}
Net funds 1,316 870 {204} (43) = - 1,939
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Attributable to ordinary shareholders

Cash flow Non
Shate Share  hedging Translation  Retained contrelling Total
capital premium Teserve?! Tesarve  earmmngs Total  interests equity
Notes im im £m £m £m £m im £m
At1 January 2012, as previously reported 326 631 {52} 430 3342 4677 1 4678
Effect of amendments to [AS 19 18 - - - - 67 67 - 67
Effect of amendment to RRSA accounting pohcy 1 - - - - {184) (184} - {184)
Atl January 2012, as restated 326 631 {52) 430 3225 4560 1 4,561
Profit for the year - - - - 2321 2,321 14 2,335
Foreign exchange translation differences on
foreign operations - - - {118} - (118) - (118)
Movement on post retirement schemes 18 - = - - {305) {305} - (305)
Share of other comprehenswve income of joint ventures
and associates 10 - - {11) {1) (a6} (58) - (58)
Related tax movements 5 - - - (1) 105 104 - 104
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (11) {120) 2075 1944 14 1958
Share-based payments —ditect to equity ? — - - - 24 24 - 24
Transactions with NCI? — - - - 116 116 48 164
Related tax movements 5 - - - - 9 9 - 9
Other changes in equity m the year - - - - 149 149 48 197
At 1 January 2013 326 631 (63) 310 5,449 6,653 63 6,716
Profit for the year - - — - 1,627 1627 12 1,639
Foreign exchange translation differences on
forexgn operations - - - (63) - (63) {1) (64)
Movement on post retirement schemes 18 - - - — 48 48 - 43
Share of other comprehenswve income of joint ventures
and assonates 10 - - (5) {1) - (6) - {6)
Related tax movements 5 - - - 1 10 11 - 11
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (s) (63) 1,685 1,617 11 1,628
Dwidend paid - - - - {900} {900) - {900}
Share based payments — direct toequity ? - - - - 53 53 - 53
Reclassification of Rolls Royce Power Systems AG * 24 - - - — - - 669 669
Transactions with NCI - - - - - - (as) {45)
Related tax movements 5 - - - - 13 13 - 13
Other changes in equity m the year - - - - (834) (834) 624 (210)
At 31 December 2013 326 631 {68) 247 6,300 7,436 698 8,134

! See accounting pohcies note 1

excluding those vesting from own shares

Share based payments - direct to equity 15 the net of the credsit to equity in Tespect of the share based payment charge tathe meome statement and the actual cost of shares vesbng

On 2 January 2012 the Group contnbuted its interest in Bergen Engines AS to Rolls Royce Power Systems Holding GmbH [RRPSH — previously Engime Helding GmbH) a company jointly

held by Rolls Royce and Daimler AG Under the terms of agreement with Darmler Rolls Royce retained certainrights such that Bergen Engines continued to be classified as a subsidiary

and consohdated

»

—seenote 24

On 1 January 2013 the Group exercised rights in RRPSH that resulted 1n Rolls Royce Power Systerns AG (RRPS — formerly Tognum AG) being classified as a subsidiary and consohdated
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies

The Company

The consolidated financial statements of Rolls-Royce ple (the ‘Company’) for the year ended 31 December 2013 consist of the consolidation
of the financial statements of the Company and rts subsidiaries {together referred to as the ‘Group’) and include the Group's interest in
Jomntly controlled and associated entrties

Basis of preparation and statement of comphance

In accordance with European Union (EU) regulations, these fimnancial staternents have been prepared n accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), as adopted for use in the EU effective
at 31 December 2013 (Adopted IFRS}

The Company has elected to prepare 1ts parent company financial statements under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAF)
These are set out on pages 88 to 106 and the accounting policies 1n respect of Company financial statements are set out on page 90

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except where Adopted IFRS requites the
revaluation of financial instruments to fair vatue and certam other assets and habilities on an alternatve basis — most significantly
post-retirernent scherne hiabilities are valued on the basis required by IAS 19 Employee Benefits —and on a going concern basis as descnibed
on page 38 The conschdated financial staternents are presented n pound sterling which 1s the Company’s functional currency

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Adopted IFRS requires management to make estimates and judgements that
affect the reported amounts of assets and habilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period, the key areas of judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty are described below Actual
results could differ from those estimates

The Group's significant accountmg policies are set out on the following pages These accounting policies have been applied consistently
to all penieds presented i these consohdated financial statements and by all Group entities

Amendment to accounting policy

As explamed n the Chief Financial Officer’s Review on page 9, followng discussions with the Conduct Commmittee of the FRC, the Group has
reassessed its pohcy for the recogmition of entry fees recewved under Risk and Revenue Sharing Arrangements (RRSAs) Whilst the impact on
our historical results is not sigmificant, the directors beheve that the change represents an improvement in the policy

In priot years, entry fees were recogmsed as other operating mcome when they were received, on the basis that this matched it to the
recogmition of non-recurring development costs incurred on behalf of the workshare partner This policy has been revised, to teflect
better the fact that some of these non-recurring development costs are capitahsed Under the amended policy, where the relevant costs
n the development programme are capitahsed (ie development costs mcurred between engime certification and entry imto service and
certification costs and parttcipation fees paid to airframers), an equivalent portion of the entry fee recewved 15 deferred and recogmsed
as the related costs are amortised after entry imto service In addition, the amount of entry fees recogmised in the year will be presented
as a contribution to research and development expenses, rather than other operating income

As requited by IAS 8 Accounting Pohcies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, this change has been made retrospectively, the impact
of the change n policy 1 2012 was to mcrease profit before tax by £25 milion and to reduce net assets at 31 December 2011 and 2012 by
£184 rmilon and £170 milhon respectively Had the policy not been amended, profit before tax m 2013 would have been £39 mithon higher
and at 31 December 2013 net assets £208 rmllion ligher

The FRC Conduct Commuttee's view 1s that the RRSA contract cannot be divided 1nto separate development and production phases, as

the fees and development components recewed by the Group during the development phase are exchanged for the cbhigation to pay the
supplier a pre-determined share of any sales receipts during the production phase On this basis, the entry fees received would be deferred
n ther entirety and recogmsed over the perod of production

As explamed n the Chief Financial Officer’s review, on page 9, the FRC Cenduct Committee has confirmed that, in view of the change to the
pohicy and the additional disctosure the Group has made, 1t does not intend to pursue 1ts consideration of this accounting policy further
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Key areas of judgement
The directors consider the potential key areas of Judgements required to be made 1n applying the Group’s accounting policies to be

+ Assessing whether or not the Group controls Rells-Royce Powert Systems Holding GmbH {RRPSH) requires jJudgement The shares of RRPSH
are held equally by the Group and Daimler AG and the nghts of each shareholder are encapsulated 1n shareholder agreements which set
out amongst other things key matters on which the Group has the casting vote at the Shareholders’ Committee of RRPSH These most
Tmportant matters subject to casting vote which are relevant to assessing whether RRPSH 1s controlled include (a) setting the annual
budget and operating and financial plan, (b) appointing, removing and setting the remuneration of key management personnel (though
removal of the CEQ or the CFO requires joint agreement), {c) entering 1nto contracts in the ordmary course of business and {d) estabhshing
management procedures and responsibiities The Group considers that these provisions are sufficient to give 1t control over RRPSH
Dammler AG has protective nghts covermg matters such as (1) significant changes to the scale, scope and financing of RRPSH'’s business,
(n) certain significant suppher relationships, and (i) changes to contractual arrangements between RRPSH and Rolls-Royce These are not
considered sufficient to prevent the Group from directing the activities of RRPSH

Alarge proportion of the Group's activities relate to long-term aftermarket contracts The determmation of appropnate accounting

pohcies for recognising revenue and costs in respect of these contracts requires Judgement

1} whether along-term aftermarket contract 15 inked, for accounting purposes, to the related sale of origmal equipment —where the
long-term aftermarket contract 1s agreed (or agreed in principle) at the same time as the original equipment contract, these are
considered to be inked for accounting purposes and treated as a single contract —or whether it should be treated separately, and

1) the appropniate measure of stage of completton of the contract — this will vary depending on the precise nature of the arrangements
Where the service provided 15 assessed to be contimuocus, the stage of completion 1s measured by reference to the flying hours, or
equivalent, under the contract Other aftermarket contracts are overhaul event based and the stage of completion 1s measured
accordmgly

The Group has sigmficant intangible assets In deciding whether certam intangible assets should be recogmsed, judgement 1s required

1) 1AS 38 Intangible Assets tequites that nternally-generated development costs should only be recogmised if strict criteria are met, in
particular relating to techmical feasibility and generatien of future econormic benefits The directors consider that, due to the complex
nature of new equipment programmes, these critemia are not met until relatively late in the prograrnme - Cvil aerospace programmes
Tepresent 54 per cent of development costs, for these, the criteria are generally satisfied at the time of the wmitial engine cettification,

1) ondelery of engines without a Iinked long-term aftermarket contract, the Group has contractual rights to supply aftermarket parts
to the custorners and its intellectual nights, warranty arrangements and, where relevant, statutory aimworthiness or other regulatory
requitements provide reasonable control over this supply Accordingly the directors consider that these nghts meet the defimition of an
intangible asset n1AS 38 However, the directors do not consider that 1t 1s possible to determine a rehable fair value for this intangible
asset Accordingly, an intangible asset {recoverable engine cost or REC) 15 only recogmsed on the occasions wherte the contractual pnice
of the engine 1s below the cost of manufacture and then only to the extent of this deficit, as this amount 15 a reliable value

.

RRSAs with key supphers {workshare partners) are a feature of our Civil aerospace business Under these contractual arrangements the
key comnmercial objectives are that (1) during the development phase the workshare partner shares 1n the nisks of developing an engine
by performing its own development work, providing development parts and paying a non-refundable cash entry fee, and (n) during the
production phase 1t supplies components m return for a share of the programme revenues as a ‘I'fe of type’ supplier The share of
development costs borne by the workshare partner and of the revenues 1t receives reflect a jointly agreed forecast of the proportionate
cost of providing 1ts production parts compared to the overall forecast manufacturing cost of the engine

These arrangements are complex and have features that could be indicative of a collaboration agreement, mcluding sharing of risk and
cost 1n a development programme, along-term supply agreement, sharing of intellectual property, or a combination of these

There 15 no directly applicable IFRS to determime an accounting policy for the recogmition of entry fees of this nature in the imcome
statement Consequently, in developing an accounting treatment for such entry fees that best reflects the commercial objectives of the
contractual arrangement, the directors have analysed these features in the context of relevant accounting pronouncements (including
those of other standard setters where these de not conflict with IFRS) and have weighed the importance of each feature 1n farithfully
representing the overall commercial effect The most important considerations that need to be balanced are the transfer of development
sk, the workshare partner recerving hittle standalone value from the payment of the entry fee, and the overall effect bemng collaboration
between the parties which falls short of beng a jomt venture as the Group control the programme Also important 1n the analysis 1s the fact
that, whilst the Group and the workshare partner share risks and rewards through the ife of the contract, these risks and rewards are very
drfferent dunng the development and production phases

In this context, the entry fee rmght be considered to represent an amount paid as an equahsation of development costs, a payment to
secure a long-term supply arrangement, a purchase of mtellectual property, or some combination thereof The accounting under these
different scenarios could include Tecogmtion of the entry fee to match the associated costs m the income staternent, being spread over the
hfe of the programme as a reduction in the cost of supply during production, or being spread over the time period of the access to the .
ntellectual property by the workshare partner
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

The directors consider that the most important features of the arrangement are the nisk sharmg and that the entry fee representsa
contribution to the development costs that the Group incurs in excess of its proportionate programme share The key jJudgements taken

in reaching this view are the entry fee 1s determined by the parties on that basis and the contract specifies that, m the event that a
dervative engine 1s to be developed further, entry fees will also be calculated on this bass, the workshare partners describe the entry fee
n this way, aithough the workshare partner receives Iittle stand-alone value from paymg the entry fee, the entry fee together with 1ts own
development actwvities represent its aggregate imvestment i the collaboration, the amount of the entry fee does not include any amount
n excess of that necessary to equalise forecast development costs, the Group 1 not ‘'on nisk” for the full development costs 1t incurs but for
that amount less the entry fees received, and, as far as can be determined, this appears to be common industry accounting for
arrangements of this type, under both Adopted IFRS and US accounting standards (which the directors believe do not confhet with IFRS m
this regard) The resulting accounting policy (described below) represents of the commercial effect the contractual arrangements in that
the Group recogmses only those development costs to which 1t 1s exposed (and thus reflects the significant transfer of development nisk
to the wotkshare partners), the costs of supply of parts during the production phase 1s measured at the workshare partner’s share of
programme revenues (which we consider to be a commercial fair value) The directors do not consider that accounting which would
Tesult 1in entry fees only being recogmsed in the production phase would appropriately reflect the shanng of development risk
Accordingly, the directors believe that the pohcy adopted best reflects the commeraial objectives of the arrangements, the nature of the
relationship with the workshare partner and 1s 1n accordance with Adopted IFRS

- The Group has contingent labilities in tespect of fimancing support provided to customerts In order o assess whether a provision should
be recogmsed, jJudgement as to the hkelihood of these crystallising 1s requited This jJudgement s based on an assessment on the
knowledge of the customers’ fleet plans, the undertlying value of the secunty provided and, where appropniate, the customers’
creditworthiness

Key sources of eshmation uncertamty

In applying the accounting polhicies, estimates are made m many areas, the actual outcome may differ from that calculated The key sources
of estimation uncertanty at the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and habilities within the next financiat year are set out below The estimation of the relevant assets and habilities involves the
combination of a number of assumptions Sensitivities are disclosed in the relevant notes where this 1s appropnate and practicable

Intangible assets anising on consohdation of Rolis-Royce Power Systems AG and Rolls-Royce Power Systems Holding GmbH
The fair value of intangible assets of RRPS AG at 1 January 2013 mvolved the use of valuation techmques and the estimation of future cash
flows to be generated by RRPS over a considerable petiod of time The Group engaged a specialist valuer to assist with these

Forecasts and discount rates
The carrymng values of a number of items on the balance sheet are dependent on the estimates of future cash flows ansing from the

Group's operations, in particular

« The assessment of whether the goodwill and other intangible assets (carrying value £1,864 milhon) ansing on the consehidation of RRPSH
15 mpaired 1s dependent of the present value of the future cash flows expected to be generated by the business These cash flows are
based on the business plan jomtly agreed by the shareholders

« The assessment as to whether there are any indications of impairment of development, participation, certification, recoverable engine
costs and customer relationships recogmised as intangible assets (carrying values at 31 Decemnber 2013 £2,499 million, 31 December 2012
£1,457 milhonhrs dependent on estimates of cash flows generated by the relevant assets and the discount rate used tocalculate a present
value These estimates include the performance of long-term contractual arrangements as descmibed below, as well as estimates for
future market share, pricing and umt cost for uncontracted business The Tisk of impairment1s generally higher for newer programmes
and, for customer specific ntangible assets (RECs), for launch customers

Assessment of long-term contractual arrangements

The Group has long-term contracts that fall into different accounting penods and which can extend over sigmificant periods —the most
significant of these are long-term service arrangements in the Civil aetospace business The estimated revenue and costs are inhetently
imprecise and sigmficant estimates are required to assess engine flying hours, time on wing and other operating parameters, the pattern
of future maintenance activity and the costs to be mncurred, and Iife cycle cost improvements over the term of the contracts The estimates
take account of the inhetent uncertainties and the risk of non-recovery of any resulting contract balances

Post-retirement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes and similar arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with IAS 19 The accounting
valuation, which was based on assumptions deterrmned with independent actuanal advice, resulted in a net deficit of £793 rmillion before
deferred taxation being recogmised on the balance sheet at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012 £445 milhon) The size of the net defiait
15 sensttive to the market value of the assets held by the schemes and to actuanal assumptions, which indude price inflation, pension and
salary increases, the discount rate used 1n assessing actuanal habiities, mortahity and other demegraphic assumptions and the levels of

contnbutions Further details are included in note 18
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting pohcies {continued)

Provisions

As described in the accounting policy an page 52, the Group measures provisions {carrymg value at 31 December 2013 £733 mifhon,

31 December 2012 £461 rmllion) at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obhgation at the balance sheet
date These estimates take account of information available and different possible outcomes

Taxation

The tax payable on profits 1s determined based on tax laws and regulations that apply in each of the numerous junsdictions in which the
Group operates Where the precise impact of these laws and regulations is unclear then reasonable estimates may be used to determme
the tax charge incuded in the financial statements

Basis of consohdation
The Group consohdated fimancial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings
together with the Group's share of the results of joint ventures and associates made up to 31 December

A subsidiary 1s an entity controlled by the Company Control exists when the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operating policies of the entity so as to derve benefits fromits actvities

Ajoint venture 1s an entity in which the Group holds a long-term interest and which 1s jontly contrelled by the Group and one or more other
venturers under a contractual arrangement An associate 1s an entity, being neither a subsidiary nor a jont venture, 1n which the Group
holds along-term interest and where the Group has a sigmficant influence The results of joint ventures and associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting

Any subsidiary undertakings, jomnt ventures or associates sold or acquired durning the year are included up to, or from, the dates of change
of control Transactions with non-controlling nterests are recorded directly in equity

Allintra-group transactions, balances, ncome and expenses are ehminated on consolidation Adjustments are made to eliminate the profit
orloss ansing on transactions with Joint ventures and associates to the extent of the Group's interest in the entity

Significant accounting pohcies
Revenue recogmition
Revenues compnise sales to outside customers after discounts, excluding value added taxes

sales of products (both oniginal equipment (OE) and spare parts) are recogmsed when the sigmificant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods are transferred to the customer, the sales price agreed and the receipt of payment can be assured - this 1s generally on delvery
On occasion, the Group may partiopate in the financing of OE, most commonly by the provision of guarantees as described in note 17

In such aircumstances, the contingent obhgations ansing under these arrangements are taken into account in assessing when the
sigificant nisks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer As described on page 46, a sale of OF at a contractual
price below its cost of manufacture 1s considered to give nse to an 1ntangible asset, a recoverable engine cost In these aircumstances,
revenue 1s recognised to the same value as the recoverable engine cost

Sales of services are recogmised by reference to the stage of completion based on services performed to date As described on page 46, the
assessment of the stage of completion 1s dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based ort flying hours or equivalent
for long-term aftermarket arrangements wherte the service 1s provided on a continuous basts, costs incurred to the extent these relate to
services performed up to the reporting date, or achievement of contractual milestones where relevant

As described on page 46, sales of products and services are treated as though they are a single contract where these components have
been negotiated as a singte commercial package and are so closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each other and
are considered to form a single transaction with an overall profit margin The total revenue 15 allocated between the two components such
that the total agreed discount to hist prices 1s allocated to revenue for each of the two components pro rata, based on the ist prices

This revenue 1s then recogmsed for each component on this basis as the products are delivered and services provided, as described above
Where the contractual price of the OF component 1s below the revenue allocated from the combined arrangement, this will give rise to

an asset included 1 ‘amounts recoverable on contracts’ This asset reduces as services are provided, increases as costs are incurred,

and reduces to zero by the end of the contract Where the overall balance 1s a ability, it 1s recogmsed 1n ‘accruals and deferred income’

Full provision 1s made for any estimated losses to completion of contracts, having regard to the overall substance of the arrangements
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

Progress payments received, when greater than recorded revenue, are deducted from the value of work 1n progress except to the extent
that payments on account exceed the value of work 1n progress on any contract where the excess 1s included n accruals and deferred
incomne within trade and other payables The amount by which recorded revenue of long-term contracts 15 1 excess of payments on
account s classified as amounts recoverable on contracts and 1s separately disclosed within trade and other recevables

Risk and revenue shanng arrangements (RRSAs)

As described on page 46, the Group enters into arrangements with certan workshare partners under which these supphers {1} contribute
to the forecast costs of developing an engime by performing their own development work, providing development parts and paying a
nen-refundable cash entry fee, and {n} supply components for the production phase for which they receive consideration, which 1s an agreed
proportion of the total programme revenues Both the suppliers’ contributions to the forecast non-recurnng development costs and ther
consideration are determined by reference to their proportionate forecast scopes of supply relative to that of the engme overall Once the
forecast costs and the scopes of supply have been agreed at the inception of the contract, each party is then accountable for its own
ncurred costs No accounting entries are recorded when the supphers undertake development work or when development components are
supphed Cash sums received are recogmised 1n the income statement, as a reduction m research and development costs incurred, to match
the expensing of the Group's related costs —where the cash sums are receved 1n advance of the related costs being expensed or where the
related costs are capitahsed as intangible assets, the recogmtion of the cash received 15 deferred (in accruals and deferred income} to match
the recogmition of the related expense or the amortisation of the related intangible asset respectively The payments to supphers of thew
shares of the programme revenues for their production components are charged to cost of saies as programme Tevenues arise

The Group has arrangements with partners who do not undertake development work or supply parts Such arrangements are considered to
be financial instruments as defined by 1AS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation and are accounted for using the amortised cost method

Government investment
Where a government or similar body has previously mvested in a development programme, the Group treats payments to that body

as royalty payments, which are matched to related sales

Government grants

Government grants are recogmsed in the mcome statement so as to match them with the related expenses that they are intended to
compensate Where grants are recewed m advance of the Telated expenses, they are included in the balance sheet as deferred income
Non-monetary grants are recognised at far value

Interest
Interest recewable/payable 15 credited/charged to the income statement using the effective interest method Where borrowing costs are

attnbutable to the acquisrtion, construction or production of a qualifying asset, such costs are capitalised as part of the specific asset

Taxation
The tax charge/credit on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax

« Current tax s the expected tax payable for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

+ Deferred tax s provided using the balance sheet habihity method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of the assets and habilities for financial teporting purposes and the ameunts used for taxation purposes and 1s calculated using the
enacted or substantively enacted rates that are expected to apply when the asset or hability 1s settled

Tax s charged or credited in the income statement or other comprehensive income (OCI) as appropniate, except when it relates toitems
credited or charged directly to equity 1n which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax habihties are recogmised for taxable temporary differences ansing on mvestments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, except
where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
m the foreseeable future Deferred tax 15 not recogmsed on taxable temporary differences ansing on the inihial recogmtion of goodwill or
for ternporary differences ansing from the imtial recogmtion of assets and habihibies in a transaction that 15 not a business combination
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available agamnst which the assets
can be utiised

Accruals for tax contingencies requite management to make judgements and estimates of exposures inrelation to tax audit 1ssues

Tax benefits are not recogmsed unless the tax positions will probably be sustained Once considered to be probable, management reviews
each material tax benefit to assess whether a provision should be taken against full recogmtion of that benefit on the basis of potential
settlement through negotiation and/or htigation All provisions are mcluded wn current habilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Foreign curtency translation

Transactions denorminated in currencies other than the functional currency of the transacting Group undertaking (foreign currencies)
are translated mto the functional curtency at the exchange rates ruling on the date of the transaction Mongtary assets and habilities
denominated i foreign currencies are translated into the relevant functional currency at the rate ruling at the yearend Exchange
differences ansing on foreign exchange transactions and the retranslation of assets and habihbes mto functional currencies at the rate
ruling at the year end are taken into account in deternrmning profit before taxation

The trading results of Group undertakings are translated into sterling at the average exchange rates for the year The assets and habilities
of overseas undertakings, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisttion, are translated at the exchange rates ruhng
atthe yearend Exchange adjustments anising from the retranslation of the opering net investments, and from the translation of the
profits or losses at average rates, are recogrused 1n OCl The cumulative amount of exchange adjustments was, an transition to IFR5m
2004, deemed to be mil

Financial instruments
IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement requites the dassification of financial mstruments into separate categones
for which the accounting requirement 1s different The Group has dassified its financial instruments as follows

- short-term investments are generally classified as available for sale,

- shortterm deposits {principally comprising funds held with banks and other financal institutions), trade recevables and short-term
Investments not designated as available for sale are classified as loans and recewvables,

- borrowings, trade payable and financial RRSAs are classified as other habilities, and

- derwatives, compnising foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps ate classified as fair value through profit
orloss

Fmancial instruments are recognised at the contract date and initially measured at fair value Therr subsequent measurement depends
on their classification

« Available for sale assets are held at fair value Changes m fair value ansing from changes in exchange rates are included n the income
statement All other changes 1n fair value are taken to equity On disposal, the accumulated changes i value recorded in equity are
included 1n the gam or loss recarded 1n the income statement

Loans and recewvables and other habihties are held at amortised cost and not revalued (except for changes in exchange rates and forecast
contractual cash flows, which are included n the mcome statement) unless they are included 1n a fawr value hedge accounting
relationship Where such a hedging relationship exists, the mnstruments are revalued m respect of the nisk being hedged, with the change
invalue included in the income statement

Fair value through profit or loss rtems are held at fair value Changes i fair value are mcluded in the income statement unless the
instrument 15 1ncluded 1n a cash flow hedge If the instruments are mcluded 1n an effective cash flow hedging relationship, changes

1n value are taken to equity When the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded i equity are recogrised n

the income statement

Financial instruments are derecogrused on expiry or when all contractual nghts and obhgations are transferred

Hedge accounting
The Group does not generally apply hedge accounting 1n respect of forward foreign exchange contracts or commedity swaps held to
manage the cash flow exposures of forecast transactions denomnated in foreign currencies or in commodities respectively

The Group apphes hedge accounting m respect of transactions entered 1nto to manage the fair value and cash flow exposures of its
borrowmgs Forward foreign exchange contracts are held to manage the fair value exposures of borrowings denorminated 1n foreign
currencies and are designated as fair value hedges Interest rate swaps are held to manage the mterest rate exposures and are designated
as fair value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate borrowings respectively

Changes in the fair values of dervatives designated as fair value hedges and changes 1n the fair value of the related hedged item are
recogmsed directly in the income statement

Changes n the fair values of dervatives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are effective are recognised directly m equity
Any ingffectiveness in the hedgmng relationships 1s included in the income statement The amounts deferred in equity are recognised
m the mcome statement to match the recognihon of the hedged item

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated, exercised, or no lenger qualifies for hedge
accounting At that time, for cash flow hedges and 1f the forecast transaction remains probable, any cumulative gam ot loss on the hedging
nstrument recogmsed m equity 1s retained 1n equity until the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged transaction 15 ne longer expected to
occur, the net cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 1 equity 1s transferred to the income statement
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1 Accounting policies (contimued)

The portion of a gain or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net investment 1n a foreign operation that 1s determined to be an effective
hedge 1s recogmised directly m equity The ineffective portion 1s recogmised immedsately in the income staternent Gans and losses
accumulated in the translation reserve will be recydled to profit when the foreign operation 1s sold

Business combinations and goodwnll

On the acquisition of a business, fairvalues are attributed to the dentifiable assets and habilities and contingent habihities unless the fair
value cannot be measured teliably, 1n which case the value 1s subsumed inte goodwill Where fair values of acquired contingent habihities
cannot be measured rehably, the assumed contingent hability 1s not recognised but is disclosed in the same manner as other contingent
habiities

Goodwill recogrised represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase constderation over the fair value to the Group of the net of
the dentifiable assets acquired and the liabihties assumed On transition to IFRS on 1 January 2004, business combinations were not
retrospectively adjusted to comply with Adopted IFRS and goodwill was recognised based on the carrying value under the previous
accountmg pohicies Goodwill in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary 1s recogmsed as an mtangible asset Goodwll arising on the
acquisition of Joint ventures and associates 1s wncluded n the carrying value of the investment

Certification costs and parhicipation fees

Costs incurred in respect of meeting regulatory certification requirements for new civil aero-engme/aircraft combinations including
payments made to airframe manufacturers for this and participation fees are carried forward m intangible assets to the extent that they
can be recovered out of future sales and are charged to the income statement over the programme Iife, up to a maximum of 15 years from
the entry mto service of the product

Research and development
In accordance with IAS 38 intangible Assets, expenditure incurred on research and development 1s distinguished as relating either te a

research phase or to a development phase

All research phase expendrture 1s charged to the income statement Development expenditure 1s caprtalised as an imternally generated
mtangible asset only 1f it meets strict cnitena, relating m particular to technical feasibihity and generation of future econormic benefits
As described on page 46, the Group considers that 1t is not possible to distinguish reliably between research and development activities
until relatively late in the programme

Expenditure capitalised 1s amortised on a straight-lme basis over its useful economic life, up to a maximum of 15 years from the entry
nto service of the product

The fair value of research and development recogmsed during a business combination relates to the acquired company's technology
Amaortisation occurs on a straight-line basis over 1ts usefui econormc hife, up to a maximum of 15 years

Recoverable engine costs

The Group may sell OF to customers at a price below 1ts cost, on the basis that this deficit will be recovered from the profits of highly
probable future aftermarket sales As descnibed on page 46, this sale 1s considered to give rise to an intangible asset, which, subject to
an 1mpairment review, 1s recogmsed at the time of delivery and amortised on a straight-line basis over the period that highly probable
aftermarket sales are expected to be earned

Customer relabonships

The fair value of customer relationships recognised during a business combination relates to the acquired company’s estabhshed
relationships with 1ts existing customers that result in repeat purchases and customer loyalty Amortisation occurs on a straight-line
basis over 1ts useful econormc hife, up to a maximum of 15 years

Software
The cost of acquinng software that 1s not specific to an 1item of property, plant and equipment 1s classified as an intangible asset and
amortised over its useful economic hife, up to a maximum of five years

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment i value
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NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Depreciation 15 provided on a straight-line basis to write off the cost, less the estimated residual value, of property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful ves No depreciation 1s provided on assets in the course of construction Estimated useful lives are as follows

)} land and buildings, as advised by the Group's professtonal advisers

a) freehold bwldings — five to 45 years (average 24 years)

b} leasehold buildings — lower of adviser’s estimates or penod of lease

¢} nodepreciation s provided on freehold land i
n) plant and equipment — five to 25 years (average 13 years) ‘
m) aircraft and engines — five to 20 years (average 15 years)

Operating leases
Payments made and rentals receved under operating lease arrangements are charged/credited to the income statement on a straight-
line bass

Impairment of non-current assets

Imparrment of non-current assets 1s considered n accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent of other assets, impairment is considered for the cash-generating umt to which the asset belongs Goodwill and
mtangble assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually Other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
mvestments are assessed for any indications of impairment annually If any indication of impairment 1s dentified, an impairment test1s
performed to estimate the recoverable amount

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be below the carrying value, the carrying value 1s reduced
to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss recogmised as an expense The recoverable amount 1 the higher of value 1n use ot fair
value less costs to sell, if this 15 readily avatlable The value in use 1s the present value of future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the time value of money and the nisk specific to the asset

Inventones

Inventones and work 1n progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first-in, first-out basis Cost compnises direct
materals and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, mcluding depreciation of property, plant and equipment, that
have been incurred in bringing the inventonies to their present location and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
prices less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and i hand, investments i money-market funds and short-term deposits with a matunty
of three months or less on inception The Group considers overdrafts {repayable on demand) to be an integral part of its cash management
actwties and these are included in cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obhigation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obhgation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal

Post-retirement benefits
Pensions and similar benefits {principally healthcare) are accounted for under IAS 19 Empioyee Benefits

For defined benefit plans, obligations are measured at discounted present value whilst plan assets ave recorded at fair value Surpluses
n schemes are recognised as assets only 1f they represent economic benefits available to the Group 1n the future Alabilty 1s recognised
1o the extent that the mimimum funding requirements in respect of past service will gwe nise to an unrecognisable surplus

The service and financing costs of such plans are recognised separately in the income statement

- current service costs are spread systematically over the hives of employees,
- past service costs are Tecognised immediately, and
- financing costs are recogmsed 1n the penods m which they arse

Actuanal gains and losses and movements 1n unrecogrised surpluses and mimmum funding habilities are recogmsed immediately 1n OCI

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

Share-based payments

The Group provides share-based payment arrangements to certain employees These are principally equity-settled arrangements and
are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fair value 1s expensed
on a straight-hne basis over the vesting period The amount recognised as an expense 15 adjusted to Teflect the actual number of shares
or options that will vest, except where additional shares vest as a result of the Total Shareholder Return {TSR) performance condition m
the Performance Share Plan (PSP)

Cash-settled share options (grants in the International ShareSave plan) are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date The Group
recogmses a labihity at the balance sheet date based on these fair values, taking mto account the estimated number of options that will
actually vest and the relative completion of the vesting period Changes in the value of this hability are recogmsed 1n the income statement
for the year

Sales financing support

In conmection with the sale of its products, the Group will, on occasion, provide financing support for its customers These arrangements
fallinto two categones credit-based guarantees, and asset-value guarantees In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 39 and IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts, credit-based quarantees are treated as insurance contracts The Group considers asset-value guarantees to be non-
financial habihties and accordingly these are also treated as insurance contracts As described on page 47, the directors consider the
hikehhood of crystalhsation 1s assessing whether provision 1s required for any contingent habihties

The Group's contmgent habilities Telating to financing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers
and a broad product portfolio, and are reported on a discounted basis

Rewvisions to Adopted IFRS 1n 2013
wihth effect from 1 January 2013, the Group has adopted the amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits 1ssued by the IASB in June 2011
A description of these amendments and their effect1s set out 1n note 18 In summary, the amendments require

« Tecognition of certain adnimstrative costs as operating costs rather than being included in net financing,

« net financing to be calculated on the net asset ot llability recogmised on the balance sheet using an AA corporate bond rate rather than
using an expected rate of return for scheme assets, and

- 1mmedate recognition of previcusly untecogmsed past-service credits

Had these amendments not been adopted, the results would have been affected as follows

+ profit before financing £15 milhon lngher (2012 £22 rmilion higher),
» net post-retirement financaing cost £107 mithon higher (2012 £56 rmihon igher), and
« net assets £73 million lower (2012 £100 million lower}

Rewisions to IFRS not apphcable in 2013
standards and mterpretations issued by the IASB are only applicable if endorsed by the EU

Under Adopted IFRS, IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Jont Arrangements, IFSR 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and
amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements are effective for 2014 The principal potential effect 1s that certain entities previously
dassified as joint ventures rmght be classified as jont operations, requimng the Group’s share of the individual assets and habilities of these
entities to be included m the financial statements rather than the equity method accounting previously apphed The Group has reviewed its
matenal joint ventures and has concluded that none fall to be classified as joint operations under the requirements of IFRS 11

if endorsed, IFRS 9 financal Instruments will simphfy the classification of financial assets for measurement purposes, but 1s not anticipated
to have a significant impact on the financiat statements

The Group does not consider that any other standards, amendments or interpretations issued by the 1ASB, but not yet applicable, will have
asgmificant impact on the financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Segmental analysis

The analysis by business segment 1s presented in accordance with IFRS 8 Operating Segments, on the basis of those segments whase
operating results are regularly reviewed by the Board (the Chief Operating Decision Maker as defined by IFRS 8}, as follows

Cwvil aerospace —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of commercial aero engines and aftermarket services

Defenceaerospace  —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of mihtary aero engines and aftermarket services

Marine —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of manne-power propulsion systems and aftermarket services

Energy —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of power systems for the offshore ol and gas mdustry and
electrical power generation and aftermarket services

Power Systems —development, manufacture, marketing and sales of diesel engines

Engwneering and technology and Operations, discussed n the strategic report operate on a Group-wide basis across alt the above segments

The operating results reviewed by the Board are prepared on an underlying basis, which the Board considers reflects better the economic
substance of the Group's trading during the year The principles adopted to deterrmine underlying results are

Underlying revenues — Where revenues are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Group undertaking,
these reflect the achieved exchange rates ansing on settled denvative contracts

Underlying profit before financing — Where transactions are denomimated 1n a currency other than the functional currency of the Group
undertaking, this reflects the transactions at the achieved exchange rates on settled dervative contracts Inaddition, adjustments have
been made to exclude one-off past-service costs and credits on post-retirement schemes and the effect of acquisition accounting

Underlying profit before taxation — In addition to those adjustments in undetlying profit before financing

- includes amounts realised from settled dervative contracts and revaluation of relevant assets and habilities to exchange rates forecast
to be achieved from future settlement of derwvatwe contracts, and

+ excludes unvealised amounts ansing from revaluations required by 1AS 39 financral Instruments Recogmition and Measurement, changes
n value of financial RRSA contracts anising from changes in forecast payments, changes in the value of put options on NCI and the net
impact of financing costs related to post-retirement scheme benefits

This analysis also includes a reconeiliation of the underlying results to those reported in the consohdated mcome statement
Total

Civil Defence Power mter- repertable
aerospace aerospace Marine Energy Systemns segment segments
Year ended 31 December 2013 im £m £m £m £m £m €m
Underlying revenue from sale of onginal equipment 3,035 1,385 1,438 415 2,004 (72) B,205
Underlying revenue from aftermarket services 3,620 1,206 1,089 633 827 {75) 7,300
Total underlying reveniue 6,655 2,591 2,527 1,048 2,831 {147) 15,505
Underlying operating profit excluding share of resuits
of joint ventures and associates 708 424 281 15 296 2 1,726
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 136 14 - 11 (2 - 159
Underlying profit before finanang and taxation 844 438 281 26 294 2 1,885
Segment assets 10,011 1,606 2,080 1,484 3,935 {744) 18,372
nvestrments in joint ventures and associates 495 17 6 54 29 - 601
Segment habilibies (4.822) (1,092) (743) (434) {4,864) 734 (11,221)
Net assets/(habihties) 5,684 531 1,343 1,104 (900) {10) 7,752
Investment 1n intangible assets, property, plantand
equipment and joint ventures and associates 891 103 37 66 142 - 1,239

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 349 53 75 51 272 - 800
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2 Segmental analysis (continued) ]
Tota
Civit Defence Power inter repartable
aerospace agraspace Marine Energy Systems seqment segments
Yearended 31 Decernber 2012 (restated - see note 1) tm £ £m Em £im £m fm
Underlying revenue from sale of original equipment 2934 1,231 1288 344 118 (22) S 893 g
Undetlymg revenue from aftermarkat services 3503 1,186 961 618 169 (121) 6,316 §
Total underlymg revenue 6437 2417 2,249 962 287 {143) 12 209 é
Underlymg operating profit excluding share of results of §
jomt ventures and associates 613 382 295 7 32 (11) 1,318 =
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 130 13 [f¥) 12 77 - 231
Underlying profit before financing and taxation 743 395 294 19 109 (11) 1549
Segment assets 8963 1543 2,163 1328 155 (683) 13,469 -
Investments 1n jont ventures and associates 440 (22) 4 50 1328 - 1 800 §
Segment labilities (5729) (1,762) (1434) (554) (282) 672 {9 089) 2
Net assets/{Labilities) 3674 (241) 733 824 1201 (11) 6180 &
Investment in intangible assets property plantand |
equipment and joint ventures and associates 581 126 101 94 11 = 913 2
Depreciation, amortisabion and imparment 322 46 55 42 4 - 469 v
Reconicihation to reported results Total
vepmt:ble Underlying Total Underlying g
segments central iterns underlying  adjustments Group .?_{
Year ended 31 December 2013 £m £m £m £m £m 5
Revenue from sale of original equipment 8,205 - 8,205 70 8,275 g
Revenue from aftermarket services 7,300 - 7,300 (62) 7,238 g.
Totalrevenue 15,505 - 15,505 8 15,513 =
Operating profit excluding share of results of joint
ventures and associates 1,726 (53)* 1,673 (297) 1,376
Share of results of joint ventures and assoiates 159 - 159 1 160
Profit on transfer of joint ventures to subsidiaries - - - 119 119
Profit on disposal of busimesses - - - 216 216
Profit before fmanangand taxabion 1,885 {53) 1,832 39 1,871
Net financing (72) {72) 220 148
Profit before taxation {125) 1,760 259 2,019
Taxation {434) {a34) 54 {330)
Profit for the year (559) 1,326 313 1,639
Ordwnary shareholders 1,225 402 1,627
Non contrelling interets 101 (89) 12
Profit for the year 1,326 54 1,639
Totat
reportable  Undetlying Total Underlymg
segments centralitems underlying  adjustments Croup
Year ended 31 Decemnber 2012 (restated - see note 1) £m £m £Em £m m
Revenue from sale of original equipment 5 893 5,893 41 5,934
Revenue from aftermarket services 6,316 6,316 (39) 6227
Total revenue 12209 - 12,209 {48) 12161
Operating profit excluding share of results of jont
ventures and associates 1318 (54)3 1,264 (59} 1 205
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 231 - 231 (58) 173
Profit on disposal of businesses - - - 699 699
Profit before financing and taxation 1549 {54) 1495 582 2077
Net financing {61) (61) 750 689
Profit before taxation {115) 1,434 1332 2,766
Taxation (317) (317) (114) (431)
Profit for the year {432) 1,117 1,218 2335
Ordinary shareholders 1,103 1218 231
Non controlling interets 14 - 14
1117 1,218 2335

Profit for the year

t Central corporate casts
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2 Segmental analysis (continued)

Underlying adjustments
2013 2012°
Profit before Net Profit before Net
Revenue financing financing Taxation Revenue financing financing Taxation
im £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Underlymg performance 15,505 1,832 (72) {434) 12209 1,495 (61} (317)
Revenue recognised at exchange rate
on date of transaction 8 - - - (48) - - -
Reahsed gams on settled
derwative contracts ! - (10) (5) - = {25) - -
Net unreahsed fair value changes to
derwatve contracts? - - 250 - - - 747 -
Effect of currency on contract accounting - (18) - - - (23} - -
Put option on NCl and financial RRSAs ~
foreign exchange differences and othet
unreahsed changes mvalue - - 8 = - - i1 -
Effect of acquisition accounting? - (265) - - - (69) - -
Profit on tedassification of jont ventures
to subsitharies - 11% - = - — - -
Pensions discretionary increase * - (64) - - - - - —
Net post retirement scheme fimancing - - (26) - - - (8 -
Profit on disposal of businesses - 216 - - - - — -
Other? - 61 (7) - - - - —
Related tax effect - - - 54 - - - (151)
IAE restructuring - - - - - 699 - 37
Total underlying adjustments 8 39 220 54 {48) 582 750 (114)
Reparted per consohdated income statement 15,513 1,871 148 {380) 12,161 2,077 689 (431)

1 Realised gains on settled derwvative contracts incude adjustments to reflect {gaims)/losses 1n the same period as the related trading cash flows

* \nreahsed fair value changes to dervative contracts (1) include those included in equity accounted jont ventures and (n) exclude those for which the related trading contracts have
been cancelled when the fair value changes are recogmised immediately in underlying profit

! The adjustment eliminates charges recogmsed as a result of recogmsing assets in acquited businesses at fair value

* Dis¢rettonary increase of £64m on umindexed pensions see Chief Financial Officer s review on page 10

¢ Other inctudes the exclusion of other operating income of £63m and the revaluation of preference shares in RRPS which have now been acquired

Restated”
31 December 1 fanuary
2013 2012 2012
im £&m £m

Reportable segment assets 18,372 13 469 12,621
Investments in joint ventures and associates 601 1,800 1680
Cash and cash equivalents and short term investments 4,311 2595 1,320
Fair value of swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings a7 104 106
Income tax assets 332 375 407
Post-retirernent scheme surpluses 248 348 520
Total assets 23,911 18,691 16 654
Reportable segment habiittes (11,221) (9,089) (9 499)
Borrowings (2,371) (1,383) {1,204)
fFarr value of swaps hedging fixed rate botrowings (48) - -
Income tax liabilities 1,096) {710} (583)
Post retirement scheme deficits 1,041) (793) (807}
Total habihhes {15,777) {11,975) (12093}
Netassets 8,134 6,716 4,561

* Restated - see note 1




Rolls Royce ple Directors report and financial statements 2013 57

@
2!
<
tal
3
2 Segmental analysis (continued)
Geographical segments
The Group's revenue by destination is shown below
2013 2012 o
£im £m =
Umited Kingdom 1,803 1641 gl
Norway 520 446 é
Cermany 977 319 §
Switzerland 871 63 -
Spain 178 177
Italy 236 151
France 259 182
Russia 114 165 -
Rest of Europe 670 613 g
USA 3,972 3999 5
Canada 507 351 =
South America 393 303 g
Saudr Arabia 547 308 3
Rest of Middle East 426 389 v
India 244 148
China 1,087 1117
South Kotea 452 194 2
Japan 244 158 2
Malaysia 292 3n E
Singapore 558 333 g
Rest of Asia 772 376 §
Africa 139 123
Australasia 174 240
Other! 78 43
15,513 12161

* Other revenue mainly onginates from Central Amenica
In 2012, revenue (included n all repertable segments other than Power Systems) of £1,203 milion was receved from a single customer
in 2013, no single customer represented 10 per cent or more of the Group's revenue

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-current assets, excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post-retirement benefit
surpluses, by the geographical area 1n which the assets are located, are as follows

2013 2012

£fm £Em

United Kingdom 3,649 3139
North America 872 723
Nordic countries 823 889
Germany 2,739 2,023
QOther 924 497

9,007 7,271
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3 Other mcome and expenses

In October 2011, Rolls-Royce and Umted Technologies Corp (UTC) announced thew intention to form a new joint venture to develop an
engme to power future rmd-size {120-230 passenger) aircraft In September 2013, the parttes agreed not to proceed with the partnership
Other operating mcome includes £63 million receved by the Group as a result of this

Research and development 2013 2012
£m £m
Expenditure in the year {750} (572)
Capitalsed as intangible assets 110 38
Amortisation of capitalised costs (130} {55)
Net research and development cost (770 (589)
Entry fees recerved 126 33
Entry fees deferred in respect of charges in future years (50} (5)
Recognition of previously deferred entry fees 11 30
Net cost recognised m the income statement (683) (531)
Effect of acqumsition accounting and forergn exchange movements 59 -
Net underlying cost recogmsed 1n the mcome statement (624} {531)
* Restated - see note 1
4 Net finanang
2013 2012
Per Per
consolidated conschdated
income Underlying income Underlying
statement financing* staternent Sfmancing*
Note £m £m Em £m
Finanang mcome
Interest receivable 15 15 10 10
Fair value gains on foteign currency contracts 2 16 287 - 750 -
Put option on NCl and financial RRSAs — foreign exchange
differences and other unrealised changes in value 16 8 - 11 -
Financing on post-retitement scheme surpluses 18 17 - 26 -
327 15 797 i0
Finanaing costs
Interest payable {58) {58) (51) 51)
Fair value losses on foreign currency contracts ? 16 (3) - - -
Financial charge relating to financial RRSAs 16 {9) )] (10) (10)
Fair value losses on commodity derivatwes 16 {34) - (3) -
Financing on post retirement scheme defits 18 (a3) - (34) -
Net foreign exchange losses {5) - - -
Other financing charges (27) (20} (10) (10)
(179) {87) {108} (71)
Net financmg 148 {72) 689 (61)
Analysed as
Net intetest payable (a3 {43) {41) (41)
Net post retirement scheme financing (26 - (8) -
Net other financing 217 (29) 738 (20)
Net financmg 148 (r2) 689 (61)
! See note 2

? Net gan on fair value items through profit or loss 250 - 747 -
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5 Taxation
UK Overseas Total
2013 2012° 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m im £m £Em £m £m
Current tax o
Current tax charge/{credit) for the year 7 (3) 290 218 297 215 E
Less double tax relief 1) 1) - - (1) 1) 2
6 @ 290 218 296 214 3
Adjustments in respect of prior years 2 {7) 29 {18) 31 {25) E
8 {11) 319 200 327 189
Deferred tax
Charge/{credit] for the year 224 216 (66} 33 158 254
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years (8} 1 {37) [3 (45) 7
Credit resulting from reduction in tax rates {59} (19) (1) - (60) (19) g
157 198 {r04) 44 53 242 §
Recogmsed m the mcome statement 165 187 215 244 380 431 “
Other tax {charges)/credits oc Equity g
Items that will not ftems that may
bereclassified be reclassified
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m fm £m £m
Current tax §
Share based payments —direct to equity 5 3 5
Deferred tax g
Net imvestment hedge 1 (6] 3
Movement 1n post-retirement schemes 10 105 g
Share based payments —direct to equity 8 6
10 105 1 m 13 9
Tax reconcihation
2013 2012
Em £m
Profit before taxation 2,019 2766
Less share of results of joint ventures and associates (note 10) (160) {173)
Profit before taxation excluding joint ventures and associates 1,859 2,593
Nomimal tax charge at UK corperation tax rate 23 25% (2012 24 5%) 432 635
UK R&D credit (13) (26)
Rate differences 51 59
Profiton reclassification of joint ventures to subsidianes {27) =
Restructuring of IAE ! - {209)
Other permanent differences 12 9
Benefit to deferred tax from previously unrecognsed tax losses and temporary differences (7) -
Tax losses m year not recognised in deferred tax 6 -
Adjustments in respect of prior years 14 (18)
Reduction in closing deferred taxes resulting from decrease in tax rates 60 (19)
380 431
Underlying items (note 2) 434 317
Non-underlying items {54) 114
380 431

Restated —see note 1

! Pursuant to the Substantial Shareholdings Exemption the majonty of the upfrent proceeds received on the IAE restTucturing were not subject to tax
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5 Taxation (continued)
Deferred taxation assets and habihties

2013 2012
£m £m
At1 January, as previously reported (77)
Effect of amendments to IAS 19 — see note 18 (43)
Effect of amendment to RRSAs — see note 1 62
At 1 fanuary as restated (242) (58)
Amount chatged to income statement (s3) (242)
Amount credited to other comprehensive income 11 104
Amount credited to equity [:] 6
Acquisition of businesses (282) (1)
Transferred to assets held for sale - {46)
Exchange differences (8) (5)
At 31 December {566) (242)
Deferred tax assets 316 342
Deferred tax habihties (882) {584)
{566) (242)
The analysis of the deferred tax position s as follows
At Recogmised At
1 january mnincome Recogmsed Recogmsed Acquisition Exchange 31 December
2013 statement jule s mequity  of busimesses differences 2013
£m £m £m £m £m fm £m
Intangible assets (232) 34 - - (311) {2) (511)
Property plant and equipment (158) 17 - - {70) 1 (210)
Other temporary differences 12 9 1 3 60 {5) 80
Amounts recoverable on contracts (351) (29) - - - - {380)
Pensiwons and other post-retirement
scheme benefits 110 - 10 ~ 36 {3) 153
Foreign exchange and commodity financial
assets and habihties {56) (36) - - - - {92)
Losses 369 (55} - S 3 1 323
R&D expenditure credit - 7 - - — - 7
Advance corporation tax 64 - - — - — 64
(242) (s3) 11 [ (282) (8) (566)
Restated
At Recognised Transferred At
1 January mincome Recogmsed Recogmised Acquisition toassets Exchange 31 December
2012 statement mOCk mequity ofbusinesses held for sale movements 2012
£m [3g] £m £m £m im fm £Em
Intangble assets (243) 58 - — — (46) 1) {232)
Property plant and equipment (135) {(25) - - 1 - 1 {158)
Other temporary differences 1 10 (1) - - - 2 12
Amounts recoverable on contracts (250) {101) - - - - - (351)
Pensions and cther post-retirement
schemne benefits 56 {41) 105 - {2) - (8) 110
Foreign exchange and commodity financial
assets and habihties 121 (177) - - - - - (56)
Losses 328 34 - 6 - - 1 369
Advance corporation tax 64 - - - - - - 64
{s8) (242) 104 6 1 (46) (5) (242)
* Restated for the effect of the amendments ta IAS 19 and amendment to accounting policy for RR5As —see note 1
2013 2012
£m Em
Advance corporation tax 118 118
Losses and other unrecognised deferred tax assets 39 39

Deferted tax not recognised on unused tax losses and other items on the basis that future econormic benefit 15 uncertam 157 157
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The 2013 Budget announced that the UK corporation tax rate will reduce to 21 per cent from 1 Apnl 2014 and to 20 per cent from
1 Apnl 2015 These reductions were substantvely enacted on 2 July 2013 As the reduction to 20 per cent was substantively enacted prior
tothe year end, the closing deferred tax assets and habilities have been calculated at this rate The resulting charges or credits have been o
recogmsed in the income statement except to the extent that they relate to items previously charged or credited to OClor equity ,_;1
Accordingly, in 2013, £59 rmillion has been credited to the income statement, £1 rmihon has been charged to the OCl and £9 rmihon has g
been charged directly toequity %
The temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, forwhich a deferred tax habiity -
has not been recognised, aggregate to £573 million (2012 £144 rmilhon) No deferred tax hability has been recogmsed on the potential
withholding tax due on the remittance of undistributed profits as the Group 1s able to control the timing of such rermittances and it 1s
probable that consent will not be given in the foreseeable future r—
6 Employee information 2
2013 2012 g
Numnber Number 2
Average number of employees g
Umited Kingdom 24,800 22,800 ]
United States 8,500 7 200 a
Canada 1,600 1700
Germany 10,500 2,800
Rest of world 9,800 8300 Q
55,200 42 800 a
Cwl aerospace 23,400 21 500 g.
Defence aerospace 7.900 7 800 g
Marne 9,200 8,800 z
Energy 4,000 3,700 .
Power Systemns 10,700 1,000
55,200 42,800
£m im
Group employment costs*®
Wages and salaries 2,843 2163
Social security costs 374 265
Share-based payments (note 20) 79 55
Pensions and other post-retirement scheme benefits (note 18) 379 245
3,675 2728
! Remuneration of key management personnel 1s shown in note 23
7 Auditors’ remuneration
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and 1ts associates were as follows 013 012
£fm £m
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements 15 02
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and 1ts associates for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 41 45
Total fees payable for audit services 56 47
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and 1ts associates for other services
Audii related assurance services 05 06
Taxation comphance sefvices 08 03
Taxation advisory services 01 02
Internal audu services 02 06
Information technology setvices - 04
Allother services 10 01
82 69

Fees payable in tespect of the Group's pension schemes

Audit 02 02

Taxatron compliance setvices o1 01
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8 Intangible assets

Certification
costs and Recoverable
particlpation  Development engine Customer
Goodwill fees  expenditure! costs  relationships! Softwara? Other! Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At1 January 2012 1106 720 998 464 45 267 134 3,734
Exchange differences 4) (2) (1) - - {1) {3) (11)
Additions - 28 38 35 - i19 5 225
Acquisitions of businesses 10 - - - - 2 7 19
Transferred from subsidiary to associate - - {1} - - — - {1
Disposals 1) (6) {6} - - (2) {1) (16)
At 1 January 2013 1,111 740 1,028 499 45 385 142 3,950
Exchange differences (18) 3 S - {3) {1} 17 3
Additions - 185 110 52 - 69 87 503
Acquisttions of businesses 773 - 508 - 433 - 286 2000
Disposals of businesses {5) - {5) — - - - (10)
At 31 December 2013 1,861 928 1,646 551 475 453 532 6,446
Accumulated ameortisation
At1 January 2012 7 197 274 231 104 32 852
Charge for the year? - 34 S5 64 5 41 10 209
Impair ment 3 - - - - - - 3
Drsposals {1) {6) (6} - - 1) 1) (15)
AtlJanuary 2013 9 225 323 295 12 144 41 1,049
Exchange differences {1) - (7) - (8) - 5 (11)
Charge for the year? - 40 130 28 61 54 91 404
Impairment 17 - 3 - 4 - - 24
Disposal of businesses {2) — (5) - - - - (7)
At 31 December 2013 23 265 444 323 69 198 137 1,459
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 1,838 663 1,202 228 408 255 395 4,987
At 31 Decemnber 2012 1102 515 705 204 33 241 101 2,901
At1l January 2012 1,099 523 724 233 38 163 102 2882

! following the acquisition of RRPS on 1 January 2013 mtangible assets relating to R&D customers relatianships and software have bean reclassified from other into therrespective

categories from 1 January 2012 onwards

* Charged to cost of sales except development costs which are charged to research and development costs

Gaoodwll

In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 36 impairment of Assets, goodwnll 15 allocated to the Group's cash-generating umits, or
groups of cash-generating umts, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combmnation that gave nise to the

goodwill as follows

Cash-generating unit (CGU) or group of CGUs

Primary

reporting 2013 2012

segment im fm

Rolls-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co KG Civil aetospace 230 223
Commercial marme — ansing from the acquisitions of Vinters Ltd and

Scandinavian Electnic Holding AS Marine 620 649

Commercial marine — ansing from the acquisition of ODIM ASA Marine 88 115

Rolls Royce Power Systems AG Power Systems 785 =

Other Various 115 115

1,838 1,102
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8 Intangible assets (continued)
Goodwill has been tested for imparment during 2013 on the following basis

« The carrying value of goodwll has been assessed by reference to value in use These have been estimated using cash flows from the most
recent forecasts prepared by management, which are consistent with past experience and external sources of information on market
conditions Given the long-term and established nature of many of the Group's products {product Iwes are often measured in decades),
these forecast the next ten years Growth rates for the period not covered by the forecasts are based on a range of growth rates
(20— 275 per cent) that reflect the products, mdustries and countnes in which the relevant CGU or group of CGUs operate

- The key assumptions for the impairment tests are the discount rate and, m the cash flow projections, the programme assumptions,
the growth rates and the impact of foreign exchange rates on the relationship between selling prices and costs lmparment tests are
performed using prevailing exchange rates

- The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 13 per cent (2012 13 per cent), based on the Group’s weighted average cost
of capital, adjusted for specific nsk where appropnate

The principal value m use assumptions for goodwll balances considered to be indwvidually significant are

Rolls-Royce Power Systemns AG — volumes of equipment deliveries, pricing achieved and cost escalation These are based on current and
known future programmes, estimates of capture of market share and long-term economic forecasts The principal foreign exchange
exposures are on translatmg income in a vanety of non-functional currencies into euros For the purposes of the impairment only, cash
flows beyond the ten-year forecasts are assumed to grow at two per cent Following the recogmition of RRPS at fair value on 1 fanuary
2013, reasonably possible changes 1n the key assumptions could cause the value of goodwill to fall belowts carrying value, such as a
reduction in the level of cash generation of mine per cent, a reduction in the assumed long-term growth rate to © 8 per cent or an increase
m the assumed discount rate of 0 7 per cent

Rolls-Royce Deutschiand Ltd & Co KG —Volume of engine delivenes, flying hours of installed fleet and cost escalation These are based

on current and known future programmes, estimates of customers’ fleet requitements and long-term economic forecasts The principal
foreign exchange exposure 15 on translating US dollar income into euros For the purposes of the impairment test only, cash flows beyond
the ten-year forecasts are assumed to grow at 2 5 per cent (2012 2 5 per cent) The directors do not consider that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions would cause the value m use of the goodwill to fall below its carrying value The overall level of business
would need to reduce by more than 85 per cent to cause an imparrment of this balance

Vinters Limited — Volume of equipment delvernes, capture of aftermarket and cost escalation These are based on current and known
future programmes, estimates of customers’ fleet requirements and long-term economic forecasts The principal foreign exchange
exposures are on translating income m a vanety of non-functional currencies into Norwegian kroner For the purposes of the imparrment
test only, cash flows beyond the ten-year forecasts are assumed to grow at 2 5 per cent {2012 2 5 per cent) The directors do not consider
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would cause the value in use of the goodwill to fall below 1ts carrying value
The overall level of business would need to reduce by more than 75 per cent to cause an impairment of this balance

Otherintangible assets

Certification costs and partiaipation fees, customer relationships, technology, patents and licences, order backlog, trademark, development
costs and recoverable engine costs have been reviewed for impairment in accordance with the requirements of IAS 36 iImpairment of Assets
Where an impairment test was considered necessary, 1t has been performed on the following basis

+ The carrying values have been assessed by reference to value in use These have been estimated using cash flows from the most recent
forecasts prepared by management, which are consistent with past experience and external sources of imformation on market conditions
over the lives of the respective programmes

« The key assumptions underlying cash flow projections are assumed market share, programme timings, unit cost assumptions, discount
rates, and foreign exchange rates

- The pre-tax cash flow projections have been discounted at 11 per cent (2012 11 per cent), based on the Group’s weighted average cost
of capital

- No impairment 1s required on this basis However, acombination of changes 1n assumptions and advetse movernents in vanables that
are outside the Group's control {discount rate, exchange rate and airframe delays), could result wn trnpairment n future years

11oda1 nbagens
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9 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plant and Afreraftand mn course of
buildings equipment engines  comstruction Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2012 981 2,646 216 454 4297
Exchange differences {14} (25) 1) (9) (49)
Additions 50 124 18 299 491
Acquisttions of businesses = 45 - - 45
Disposals of businesses - {4) - - {4)
Reclassifications 60 168 4 (232 —
Disposals/write offs {5} {65} {14) [§} (85)
At 1 January 2013 1,072 2,889 223 511 4,695
Exchange differences (11) (28) (2) (8} (49)
Additions 17 150 83 437 687
Acquisitions of busmesses 202 300 = 44 546
Disposals of businesses - {1) - - (1)
Reclassifications 19 242 21 (282) -
Dis posals/write offs {2) {62) (1) (2} (67)
At 31 December 2013 1,297 3,490 324 700 5,811
Accumulated deprectation
At1January 2012 315 1,598 44 2 1,959
Exchange differences 3 (13) - - (16)
Charge for the year? 39 196 20 - 255
Reclassifications 7 {7) - - -
Disposals of businesses - (2) - - {2)
Dsposals/wnite-offs (3) (58) (2) (2} {65)
At 1 January 2013 355 1,714 62 = 2,131
Exchange differences (9) (22) (1) - {32)
Charge for the year! 43 301 23 - 372
Redassifications (8) 8 —
Disposals of businesses - (1) - - (1)
Disposals/write offs - (51) - - {51}
At 31 December 2013 386 1,949 84 - 2,419
Net book value
At 31 December 2013 911 1,541 240 700 3,392
At 31 December 2012 717 1175 161 511 2564
Atl January 2012 666 1048 172 452 2338
! Depreciation charged during the year s presented in the income staterngnt or included in the cost of inventory as appropmate
Property, plant and equipment includes 2013 2012
£m £m
Net book value of finance leased assets
Land and buildings 7 7
Plant and equipment 4 4
Assets held for use 1n operating leases
Cost 320 242
Deprecation (79) (65)
Net book value 241 177
Capital expenditure commtments 317 258
Cost of fully depreciated assets 899 721

The Group's share of equity accounted entities’ capital commtments is £150 million (2012 £31 rmilhon)
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10 Imvestments
Equity accounted Other
Joint ventures Associates Total Unlisted
£m im im im
AtlJanuary 2012 1 680 = 1,680 10 o
Exchange differences (58) - (58) - i
Additiens 191 - 191 - g
Taxation paid by the Group 3] - 6 - 3
Transfer to subsidiary (S5} - (5) - ?,
impairment (2) - (2) -
Share of retaned profit 44 - 44 -
Transferred frem subsidiary to associate - 2 2 -
Drsposals - - - 4)
Share of OCI—will not be reclassified to profit and loss (46) - (46) - B
Share of OCl— may be reclassified to profit orloss 12) - (12} §
At1January 2013 1,798 2 1,800 6 2
Exchange differences {4) - {4) 1 g
Additions 43 - 43 1 El
TFaxation paid by the Group 6 - 6 - Z
Transfets to subsidianes ? (1327) - (1,327) -
Acquistition of businesses 30 - 30 20
Share of retaned profit 61 - 61 - o
Disposals (2) - {2) 1) ;:"
Share of OCI - wiil not be reclassified to profit and loss - - - - 5
Share of OCI = may be reclassified to profit ot loss (6} - (6) - g'
At 31 December 2013 599 2 601 27 &
Q
=

t At31 December 2012 Rolls Royce Power Systems Holding GmbH (a 50 50 joint holding company with Daunler AG) held 99 per cent of the RRPS AG shares As part of the sharcholders’
agreement certain conditions allowed the Group to classify RRPS AG as a subsidiary and consoiidate 1t. These conditions were fulfilled and the nghts exercised on 1 January 2013
resulting in £1 328m being transferred tosubsidianes

The surmmarised aggregated financial information of the Group's share of equity accounted investments 1s as follows

Joint ventures Assodates Total
2012
2013 Power 2012
Other Systems! Qther 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets 1,839 1590 1717 3,307 1 1 1,840 3308
Current assets 852 718 818 1536 2 2 854 1,538
Liabihtes
Current halities (623) (421) (655) {1076) (1) (1) (624) {1,077)
Non-current habilities (1,469) (559) {t 410) 1,969) - - (1,469) (1 969)
599 1,328 470 1798 2 2 601 1,800
Liabilities include borrowings of (1,291) {103) {1271) {1043) - - (2,291) (1,043)
Revenue 2,343 1223 2827 4,050 1 3 2,344 4053
Profit before financing and taxation 188 33 189 222 = — 188 222
Net financing 16) (10) (22) (32) - - {16) (32)
Taxation 12) 1) (16) {17) - - (12) (17}
Results recognised in the consohdated
income statement 160 22 151 173 - - 160 173
Dividends receved (99) (28) {101) (129) - - (99) (129)
Retamed profit 61 ) 50 44 - - 61 44

The principal joint ventures at 31 Decernber 2013 are hsted on pages 108 and 109
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11 Inventories

2013 2012
£m £m
Raw matenals 593 336
Wortk 1n progress 1,177 1056
Long-term contracts work i progress 15 10
Finished goods 1,426 1,282
Payments on account 108 42
3,319 2,726
Inventornies stated at net realisable value 447 136
Amount of inventory wrnte-down 89 64
Reversal of inventory wite-down 5 1
12 Trade and other receivables
2013 2012
£m £m
Trade receivables 1,601 1,182
Amounts recoverable on contracts 2,239 1,902
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 3so 351
Amounts owed by parent undertaking 848 546
Other recewables 637 479
Prepayments and accrued income 238 205
5,940 4,665
Analysed as
Fmancal instruments (note 16)
Trade recewvables and similar items 2,118 1,662
QOther non-denivative financial assets 527 364
Non-finangial instruments 3,295 2,639
5,940 4,665
Trade and other recewables expected to be recovered in more than one year
Trade recewables 51 40
Amnounts recoverable on contracts 1,902 1473
Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates = 3
Qther recevables 41 63
Prepayments and accrued income 84 32
2,078 1,611
13 Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
£m £m
Cash at bank and 1n hand 982 673
Money market funds 1,157 408
Short-term deposits 1,851 1,503
3,990 2,584
Overdrafts (note 14) {3 -
Cash and cash equivalents per cash flow statement {page 42) 3,987 2584
Cash held as collateral against third-party obligations {note 17) 50 64

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2013 1ncludes £286 milhon {2012 £78 rmilhon} that 1s not available for general use by the Group
This balance relates to cash held y non-wholly owned subsidianes and the Group's captive insurance company
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14 Borrowings
Current Noh current Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
im £m £m £m £m £m
Unsecured o
Overdrafts 3 - - - 3 - E
Bank loans 204 2 412 404 616 406 a
73/8% Notes 2016 £200m - - 200 200 200 200 ;
6 38% Notes 2013 US5230m ! - 147 - - - 147 3
6 55% Notes 2015 US583m! - - 55 58 55 58 -
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m - - 535 571 535 571
2 125% Notes 2021 €750m? - - 611 - 611 -
3 375% Notes 2026 £375m? - - 350 - 350 -
Secured 3
Obhgations under finance leases ! = - 1 1 1 1 §
207 149 2,164 1234 2,371 1,383 E—'-
* These notes are the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Group has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest and currency swaps which form a fair 5
2 :’la\Iells?:\;dtgseare the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Group has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest which form a fair value hedge i
* Obhgations under finance leases are secured by related leased assets w
15 Trade and other payables
Current Non-current Jotal Q
2013 2012° 2013 2012 2013 2012° z
£m £m £m £&m im £m g
Payments receved on account* 1,594 1361 750 609 2,344 1,970 )
Trade payabies 1,370 1109 15 - 1,386 1109 a
Amounts owed to parent undertaking 891 2 - - 891 2 ]
Amounts owed to joint ventures and associates 191 202 - 1 191 203
Other taxation and social security 101 107 - - 101 107
Other payables 1,820 1574 143 a5 1,963 1669
Accruals and deferred income 1,969 2,048 1,229 967 3,198 3,015
7,936 6403 2,138 1,672 10,074 8,075
!Includes payments receved on account from joint
ventures and associates 180 262 151 162 331 424
Included within trade and other payables are government grants of £100 milhon (2012 £89 million) During the year, £26 rmihon
(2012 £16 milhon) of government grants were Teleased to the ncome statement
Included 1n accruals and deferred mcome are deferred receipts from RRSA workshare partners of £260 million (2012 £221 nmlhon)
Trade and other payables are analysed as follows
2013 2012*
£m im
Financial instruments {note 16)
Trade payables and similar items 2,989 2,571
Other non dervative financial habihties 806 704
Non financial instruments 6,279 4,800
10,074 8075

* Restated—see note 1
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16 Fmancial mstruments
Carrymg values and fair values of finanaial mstruments

Assets Liabilities Total
Fair value Falr value
through Loans through
Basls far profitor and  Available profit
determining loss receivables for sale Cash orloss Other
Nates far value £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Year ended 31 December 2013
Unlisted non current asset investments 11 A - 27 - - - - 27
Trade recevables and sirmilar items 13 B - 2,118 - - - - 2,118
Other non-derivative finanoial assets 13 B - 527 - - - - 527
Derwative financial assets [ 748 - - - - - 748
Short-term investments B - 321 - - - - 321
Cash and cash equivalents 14 B - 1,851 1,157 982 - - 3,990
Borrowings 15 D - - - - - (2,371) (2,371)
Derwatwve financial habilities C - - - - (295) - {295}
Fiancial RRSAs E - - - - - {167) (167)
Trade payables and simlar items 16 B - - - - - [2,989) (2,989)
Other non-dervative financial habihties 16 B - - - - - {806) (8086)
748 4,844 1,157 982 (295) {6,333) 1,103
Year ended 31 December 2012
Unlisted non-current asset imvestments 11 A — 6 - - - - 6
Trade recevables and sumilar items 13 B - 1662 - - - - 1,662
Other non dervative financial assets 13 B - 364 - - - - 364
Dervative finanoial assets C 707 - - - — - 707
Short-term mvestments B - 11 - - - - 11
{ash and cash equivalents 14 B - 1,503 408 673 - - 2584
Borrowings 15 D - - - - - (1,383) (1,383)
Derwatwe financial habihities C - - - - {360) - (360)
Fimancial RRSAs E - - - - - (193) {193}
Trade payables and similar items 16 B - - - - - (2571) {2571)
Other non derwative financial labihtes 16 B - - - - - (704) (704)
707 3546 408 673 {360} (4 851) 123
Fair values equate to book values for both 2013 and 2012, with the following exceptions
2013 2012
Bookvalue Falrvalue Bookvalue Fairvalue
£m £m £m £m
BorTowings (2,371) (2,495) (1.383) (1,542)
Fmancial RRSAs (167) (184) (193) (215)

The fairvalue of a finanoal instrument 15 the price at which an asset could be exchanged, or a habihity settled, between knowledgeable,
willing partiesn an arms-length transaction Fair values have been determimed with reference to available market information at the
balance sheet date, using the methodologies described below

A These primarly comprise unconsohdated companies where fair value approximates to the book value

B Fairvalues are assumed to approximate to cast erther due to the short term maturnity of the imstruments or because the interest rate of the investments 1s reset after peniods not
exceeding six months

C Farrvalues of dervative financial assets and habilities are eshmated by discounting expected future contractual cash flows using prevailing interest rate curves Amounts
denermnated in foreign currencies are valued at the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date {Level 2 as defined by IFRS 13 Faur Value Measurement}

D Borrowings are catried at amortised cost Amounts denominated in foreign currencies are valued at the exchange rate prevathng at the balance sheet date (Level 2 as defined by
IFRS 13}

E The fair value of RRSAs 15 estimated by discounting expected future cashflows The contractual cash flows are based on future trading actiity which 1s eshmated based on latest
forecasts (Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13)

IFRS 13 defmes a three level valuation hierarchy

Level 1 —quoted prices for ssmhlar instruments

Level 2 —directly observable market inputs other than Level 1inputs and
Level 3 —inputs not based on observable market data
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16 Fnancal mstruments (continued)
Carrying values of other financial assets and habilities

yiedaraibajesys

Derlvatives
Foreign o
exchange Coammodity mterest rate Total Financial E
contracts contracts contracts derfvatives RRSAs Total ,a
£m £m £m £m £m im £
At 31 December 2013 A
Non-current assets 631 - 43 674 - 674 §_
Current assets 72 2 - 74 - 74
703 2 43 748 - 748
Current hiabihhes {63) (16) {1) {80 (22) {102) pe—
Non-current liabihities (142) (25) {a8) {215 (145) (360) -
{205) (a1) (a9} {295) {167) (462) g
498 (39) (6) 453 {(167) 286 §
At 31 December 2012 g
Non current assets 498 4 a0 592 - 592 g’
Current assets 104 6 5 115 - 115 ]
602 10 95 707 - 707 )
Current habilities (97} (8) - {105) (30) {135)
Non-current habilities (233) (15) (7 {255) {163) (418)
(330 (23) (7) (360) {193) {553)
272 (13) 88 347 {193) 154

Denvative financial instruments

The Group uses varous financial instruments to manage 1ts exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates Where the effectiveness

of a hedging relationship in a cash flow hedge 1s demonstrated, changes in the fair value that are deemed effective are included in the cash
flow hedge reserve and teleased to match actual payments on the hedged item The Group uses cormmaodity swaps to manage 1ts exposure
to movements 1n the price of commodities (jet fuel and base metals} To hedge the currency risk associated with a borrowing denormnated
n US dollars, the Group has currency denivatives designated as part of fair vatue hedges The Group uses interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements and interest rate caps tc manage its exposure to movements 1n interest rates

Movements in the fair values of derwvative financial assets and habihities were as follows

Foreign
exchange Commodity mterest rate

instruments  instruments instruments Total

Em £m £m im
At1 January 2012 {447) (12) 81 (378)
Movements in fair value hedges ! @) - 6 (2
Movements in cash flow hedges {4} - - {4}

Movements 1n other dervative contracts ? 750 (3) 1 748
Contracts settled ? {19) 2 - 17

At 1 January 2013 272 (13) 88 347

Business acquisitions 4 1) - 3
Movements in fair value hedges ! 3 - (91) (BB)

Maovements in other derivative contracts? 284 (34) - 250
Contracts settled * (65) 9 (3) (59}

At 31 December 2013 498 (39) (6) 453

! Gan on related hedged items £88m {2012 £2m net gain)
? included in financing
* tncludes contracis settledin fair vatue hedges £17m {2012 nil) and cash flow hedges £m1{2012 £4m loss)

Financial RRSAs

The Group has finanaal habihties arising from financial RRSAs These financial habihties are valued at each reporting date using the
amortised cost method This involves calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the internal rate
of return at the inception of the arrangements as the discount rate

UOHBULIOUI 13430




70 Fmancial statements Rols Reyce ple Directors report and financial staternents 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 Fmancial instruments (continued)
Movements 1nthe carrying values were as follows

Putoptions
on NCI Financial RRSAs
2013 2013 2012
im £m £m
At 1 lanuary - {193} (230)
Cash paid to partners 33 35
Business acquisitions (2) - -
Additions - - - !
Exchange adjustments included 1n OCI (4) 1 I
Financing charge ! {9) {10) !
Excluded from undertlying profit
Change 1n put option exercise price ? 2
Exchange adjustments ? - 4 9
Changes in forecast payments ! 2 2
At 31 December - (167) (193)

* included in fmancing

Risk management pohcies and hedging achivities
The prinaipal financial risks to which the Group 1s exposed are foreign currency exchange rate nisk, hquidity nisk, credit nisk, interest rate
nisk, and commodity price nisk The Board has approved pohcies for the management of these risks

Foreign currency exchange rate risk — The Group has sigmficant cash flows {most sigrificantly US dollars, followed by the euro)
denominated  currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant trading entity To manage 1ts expoesures to changes in values
of future foreign currency cash flows, so as to mamtain relatively stable long-term foreign exchange rates on settled transactions, the
Group enters into derivative forward foreign currency transactions For accounting purposes, these derwvative contracts are not designated
as hedging instruments

The Group also has exposures to the fair values of non-denvatve financial instruments denormnated wn foreign currencies To manage the
nsk of changes 1n these fair values, the Group enters 1nto dervative forward foreign exchange contracts, which are designated as fair value -
hedges for accounting purposes

The Group regards its mterests 1n overseas subsidiary companmes as long-term imvestments The Group aims to match its translational
exposures by matching the currencies of assets and habilities Where appropriate, foreign currency financial labihties may be designated
as hedges of the net investment

Liquidity risk— The Group’s pohicy 1s to hold financial imvestments and mamntan undrawn commutted facilities at a level sufficient to ensure
that the Group has avallable funds to meet its medium-term capital and funding obligations and to meet any unforeseen obhgations and
opportumties The Group holds cash and short-term investments, which together with the undrawn commuitted facthties, enable the Group
to manage 1ts hiquidity nisk

Credit sk — The Group s exposed to credit nsk to the extent of non-payment by either its customers or the counterparties of 1ts financial
instruments The effective momitering and controlhing of credit risk 1s a key component of the Group's sk management actwvities

The Group has credit pelicies covering both trading and financial exposures Credst risks ansing from treasury activities are managed by

a central treasury function in accordance with the Group credit policy The objective of the pohicy 1s to diversify and mimmise the Group's
exposure to credit nisk from its treasury actities by ensuning the Group transacts strictly with ‘BBB+ or igher rated financial mstitutions
based on pre-established imits per financial institution At the balance sheet date, there were no sigmficant concentrations of credit nsk
to indwidual customers or counterparties The maximum exposure to credit nisk at the balance sheet date 15 represented by the carrying
value of each finanaal asset, mcluding derwatwve financialinstruments

Interest rate nsk — The Group's interest rate risk s primarnly in relation to its fixed rate borrowings {fair value nsk), floating rate borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents {cash flow nisk) Interest rate dervatives are used to manage the overall interest rate profile within the Group
pohicy, which 1s to mamtain a higher proportion of net debt at floating rates of interest as a natural hedge to the net cash position These
are designated as either fair value or cash flow hedges as appropnate

Commodity nisk — The Group has exposures to the price of jet fuel and base metals arising from business operations To minimise 1ts cash
flow exposures to changes in commodity prices, the Group enters into dervative commodity transactions For accounting purposes, these
dervative contracts are not designated as hedging instruments

Other price nsk — The Group's cash equivalent balances represent investments 1n money market instruments, with a term of up to three
months The Group dees not consider that these are subject to sigmficant prnice nisk.




Rolls Rayce phic Directors reportand financial statements 2013 71
)
B
3
P
3
16 Fnancial instruments (continued)
Dernvative financial instruments
The nominal amounts, analysed by year of expected maturity, and far values of dervative finanaial instruments are as follows
Expected maturity Fair vahie =
Between Between 8&
Nominal within oneand two and After E
amount ane year two years five years five years Assets Uabilities oy
im £m £m £m im £m £m ®
At 31 December 2013 -
Forexgn exchange contracts
Fair value hedges 46 - 46 = - 3 -
Non-hedge accounted 19,654 4,759 4,530 9,493 872 700 (205) p—
Interest rate contracts -
Fair value hedges 1,550 - S0 - 1,500 43 (48) §
Non-hedge accounted 5 - 5 - - - 1) &
Commuodity contracts a2
Non-hedge accounted 262 79 62 80 a1 2 {41} g
21,517 4,838 4,693 9,573 2,413 748 {295) i
At 31 December 2012 "
Foreign exchange contracts
Fair value hedges 175 129 - 46 - 15 -
Non-hedge accounted 17,701 4585 3542 9,029 545 587 {230) 4
Interest rate contracts ?:{
Fair vatue hedges 692 141 51 - S00 89 - %
Non-hedge accounted 7 - - 7 - 6 (7 g
Commodity contracts g
Non-hedge accounted 286 76 68 99 23 10 {23) -
18,861 4,931 3661 9,181 1088 707 {(360)
As descnibed above, all denvative financial nstruments are entered into for sk management purposes, although these may not be
designated into hedgng relationships for accounting purposes
Currency analysts
Demvatve financial instruments related to foreign exchange nisks are denominated in the following currencies
Currencles purchased forward
Sterling uUs dollar Eura Other Total
£m £m £im £m £m
At 31 December 2013
Currencies sold forward
Sterling - 429 - 10 439
US dollar 15,936 - 2,036 913 18,885
Euto 4 - - 249 253
Other 22 23 75 3 123
At 31 December 2012
Curtencies sold forward
Sterling - 495 - 23 518
US dollar 14 407 - 1817 840 17,064
Eurg - - - 177 177
QOther 21 11 70 15 117
Other derivative financial instruments are denominated 1n the following currencies
2013 2012
£m im
Sterling 880 506
US dollar 300 479

Euro 637
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16 Fmancal mstruments (continued)
Non-derivative financial instruments are denominated in the following currencies

Sterling US dellar Eure Other Tatal
im £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2013
Assets
Unhsted non-current mvestments - - 26 1 27
Trade recewvables and similar items 199 995 829 a5 2,118
Other non derwative financial assets 289 43 89 101 527
Short-term investments 282 - 4 35 321
Cash and cash equivalents 1,619 1,080 980 311 3,990
2,389 2,123 1,928 543 6,983
Labnhties
Borrowings {1,490) (55 (826 - {2,371}
Financial RRSAs - {114 {53 - (167)
Trade payables and similat items (1,501) 641 {653) (194) (2,989)
Other non derwative financial habilities {208) {328) (158) 112) {806)
(3,199) {(1,138) (1,650) (306) {6,333)
(810) 985 238 237 650
At 31 December 2012
Assets
Unhsted non-current investments 1 - a 1 [
Trade 1ecewvables and symilar items 234 1,176 169 83 1662
Other non derwvative financial assets 121 75 40 128 364
Short-term mvestments 5 - - ] 11
Cash and cash equivalents 495 1,037 606 445 2,584
856 2,288 819 664 4,627
Liabilities
Borrowings (1173) {205) {5) - (1,383)
Financial RRS5As - {139) {54) - (193)
Trade payables and similar items {1 254) (825) (289) (203) (2,571)
Other non-dervative financial habilities (250) {320} (17) 117) {704)
(2677) {1,489) (365) (320 {4,851)
(1.821) 799 454 344 {224)
Currency exposures

The Group's actual currency exposures after taking account of dervatve foreign currency contracts, which are not designated as hedging
mstruments for accounting purposes are as follows

Sterling US dolar Eure Other Total
Functional currency of Group operation £m £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2013
Sterhing - 13 3 12 28
US dollar 8 - - 7 15
Euro (1) {2) - - (3)
Other (5) 41 11) 4) 21
At 31 Decemnber 2012
Sterhing - 22 1 4 27
Us dollar 4 - {6) 5 3
Euro 1) {2) - - {3}

Other 6 1 (5)

[

3
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16 Fmanaal mstruments {continued})
Ageing beyond contractual due date of financial assets Between
Up to three
three months and Moaore than
Within months oheyear oneyear g
terms overdue overdue overdue Total a
£m £m £m £m £m g
At 31 December 2013 i
Unlisted non-current asset investments 27 - - - 27 §_
Trade receivables and similar items 1,769 240 a0 19 2,118
Other non dernvative financial assets 523 1 1 2 527
Derwative finanoial assets 748 - - - 748
Short-term mvestments 321 - - - 321
Cash and cash equivalents 3,990 - - - 3,990 z
7,378 241 91 21 7,731 3
At31 December 2012 -
Unbsted non current asset investments 6 - - - 6 2—;—
Trade receivables and similar items 1,470 132 43 17 1,662 ,3
Other non dervative financial assets 343 18 1 2 364 =
Derwative financial assets 707 - - - 707
Short-term imvestments 11 - - = 11
Cash and cash equivalents 2584 - - - 2,584 o
5121 150 44 19 5334 Z
E
Contractual matunty analysis of fimancial habnhtes g
Gross values é
Betwesn Between g
Within oneand two and After Carrying =
oneyear two years five years fiveyears  Dfscounting vahie
£m £m £m £m £m im
At 31 December 2013
Borrawings (290 {140) 609) {1,894) 562 {2,371
Derwatwve financial habilhities (87 {76) 146) {90) 104 295,
Financial RRSAs (33) {34) (65) {75) 40 167
Trade payables and similar items {2,972) (17) - - - (2,989)
Other non-derwatve financal habilites {751) {28) (16) (11) - {(808)
(4.133) (295) (a36) (2,070) 706 (6,628)
At 31 December 2012
Borrowings (210) {257} {(403) (778) 265 (1.383)
Derwvatve financial habihties (108) {103) {138) (14) 3 (360)
Financial RRSAs (35) (32) {75) (100) 49 (193)
Trade payables and similar iems {2568) (1) {1) 1) - {2,571)
Other non derwvative financal habihities (694) {10} - - - (704)
(3 615) (403} (617) (893) 317 {5,211)
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16 Fnancial instruments {continued)

Interest rate nsk
In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial habihties, the following table indicates their effective interest
rates and the periods 1n which they reprice The value shown s the carrying amount

Period in whichinterest
ratereprices
Effective 6 months
{nterest rate Total orless  6=12 months
2013 % £m £m £m
Short-term investments ? 31 318 3
Cash and cash equwvaients ? 3,990 3,990 -
Unsecured bank loans
Other borrowings (210) [L] -
Interest rate swaps 53225% - 5 -
£200m floating rate loan GBP LIBOR+0 267 {200) {200 -
£200m floating rate loan GBP LIBOR+1 26 {200] (200 =
€125rn fixed rate loan 2 6000% (104] - -
€75m fixed rate loan 2 0600% {63} - -
€50m fixed rate loan 2 3500% (42) - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues
73/3% Noies 2016 £200m 73750% {200) - —
655% Notes 2015 US583m 6 5500% {55) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR+ 1 24 - [55) -
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m 67500% (535) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 29824 - (s35) -
2125% Notes 2021 £€750m 21250% (611) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0 7005 - (611) -
3 3175% Notes 2026 £375m 33750% (350) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 0 8330 - (350) -
Other secured
Qbhgations under finance leases 5 0000% a} (1) -
1,940
Peniod inwhich interest
Tate reprices
Effectve 6 maonths
nterestrate Total orless  6-12 months
2012 % £&m £m £m
Short-term investments ? 11 9 2
Cash and cash equivalents ? 2584 2,584 -
Unsecured bank loans
Other borrowings [3] {4)
Interest rate swaps 53225% - 7 -
£200m floating rate loan GBP LIBOR + 0 267 (200) {200} -
£200m floating rate Joan GBP LIBOR+1 26 (200) (200) -
Unsecured bond issues
73/a% Notes 2016 £200m 73750% {200) - -
6 38% Notes 2013 US$230m 6 3800% {147) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR + 1 26 - (147) -
6 55% Notes 2015 LUS583m 6 5500% {58) - -
Effect of interest rate swaps USD LIBOR +1 24 - {58) -
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m 67500% 571} - -
Effect of interest rate swaps GBP LIBOR + 2 9824 - (571) -
Other secured
Obhgations under finance leases 5 0000% (1) - -
1212

' interest on the short term tnvestments are at fixed rates
? Cash and cash equivalents camprise bank balances and demand deposits and earninterest atrates based on dally deposit rates
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16 Finanaal mstruments (continued)

Some of the Group's borrowings are subject to the Group meeting certain obhgations, including customary financial covenants if the
Group fails to meet its obhigations these arrangements give rights to the lenders, upon agreement, to accelerate repayment of the facilities
Therte are no rating triggers contained 1n any of the Group's facilities that could require the Group to accelerate or repay any facility for a

gwen movement in the Group's credit rating

In addition, the Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities available as follows

yedsinbaens

poda s161200]
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2013 012

£m £m

Expiring 1n one to two years - -
Expiring after two years 1,250 1,000
1,250 1,000

Sensitivity analysis

2013 2012

Sensitivities at 31 December (all othet variables held constant) — impact on profit after tax and equity £m £m
Sterhing 10% weaker against the US dollar {1,177) (1073)
Sterhng 10% stronger aganst the US dollar 963 878
Euro 10% weaker against the US dollar (128) (146}
furo 10% stronger against the US dollar 100 118
Stethng 10% weaker against the Euro (95) -
Sterling 10% stronger aganst the Euro 78 -
Commedity prices 10% lower (1e) (20}
16 20

Commodity prices 10% higher

At 31 December 2013 the Group had no material sensitivity to changes in interest rates on that date The main interest rate sensitivity for
the Group arises as a result of the gross up of net cash and this 1s mitigated as descnibed under the interest rate sk management policies

on page 70

17 Provisions for habihties and charges

At Atquisiions Disposals Unused Charged to At

1 January Exchange of of amounts mcome 31 December

2013 differences businesses businesses reversed staterment Utihsed 2013

£m £m £m £m £m im im im

Warranty and guarantees 247 1 201 (2} (39) 1501 (139)* 419
Contract loss 54 - 27 - (13) 24 {25) 67
Restructurning 4 - 4 9 (6) 17 (3) 25
Customer financing 82 - - - (11} 23 {21) 73
Insurance 47 — - - {7) 31 (9) 62
Other 27 1 48 - (11) 43 (26) 87
461 2 280 7 (87) 293 (223) 733

Current habilities 220 348
Non-current liabihties 241 385

t The amount of warranty and guarantee provisions charged toincome statement and utihsed by RRPS was £86m and £78m respectively

Provisions for warranties and quarantees primanly relate to products sold and generally cover a period of up to three years

Provistons for contract loss and restructuning are generally expected to be utihsed within two years

UONBLLIGYUL 1340
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17 Provisions for liabihties and charges (continued)

In connection with the sale of its products the Group will, on some occastons, provide financing support for its customers — generally in

respect of cwil amcraft The Group's commitments relating to these financing arrangements are spread over many years, relate to a number
of custormners and a broad product portfolio and are genertally secured on the asset subject to the financing Customer financing provisions
cover guarantees provided for asset value and/or financmng These guarantees, the risks ansing and the process used to assess the extent of

the nisk are descnbed under the heading ‘Customer financing’ in the Chief Financial Officer’s review on page 11 It 1s estimated that the

provision will be utilised as follows
2013

2012

£m £m
Potential claims with specific claim dates
In one year or less 29 30
In mote than ane year but less than five years 38 43
In more than five years 5 8
Potential claims that may anse at any time up to the date of expiry of the guarantee
Up to one year 1 —
Up to five years = 1
73 82

Commitments on delivered arcraft in excess of the amounts provided are shown in the table below These are reported on a discounted
basis at the Group's borrowing rate to reflect better the time span over winch these exposures could anse These amounts do not represent
values that are expected to crystathse The commitments are denominated in US dollars As the Group does not generally adopt cash flow
hedge accounting for future foreign exchange transactions, this amount 1s reported, together with the sterhing equivalent at the reporting

date spot rate The estimated values of aircraft providing security are based on advice from a speciabist aircraft appraiser
2013

2012

£m sm £m $m
Gross commtments 356 589 569 925
Value of security? (217 {360) (381) (620)
Indemnities {80] (132) {118) (191)
Net commitments 59 97 70 114
Net commitmenis with security reduced by 20% 2 78 129 133 216
! Security includes unvestricted cash collateral of 50 83 64 104

t Although sensitvity calculations are complex the reduction of relevant security by 20 per cent illustrates the sensitvity to changes m this assumption

There are also commitments in respect of undelivered awrcraft, but it s not considered practicable to estimate these, as deliveries can be

many years in the future, and the relevant financing will only be put in place at the appropnate time

The Group's captive Insurance company retains a portion of the exposures 1t insures on behalf of the remainder of the Group Significant
delays occur in the notification and settlement of clarms and judgement 1s mvolved 1n assessing outstanding llabihties, the ultimate cost

and timing of which cannot be known with certainty at the balance sheet date The insurance provisions ate based on information

currently avallable, however 1t 1s inherent in the nature of the business that ultimate habilities may vary Provisions for outstanding claims

are established to cover the outstanding expected liabihty as well as claims incurred but not yet reported

Other provisions comprise a number of habihities with varying expected utilisation rates

18 Post-retirement benefits
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution schemes

- UK defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets held in separate trustee admimstered funds Employees are entitled to
retirement benefits based on either therr final or career average salares and length of service, and

« overseas defined benefit schemes are a mixture of funded and unfunded plans and provide benefits 1n hne with local practice
Additionally in the US, and to a lesser extent in some other countries, the Group’s employment practices include the provision of
healthcare and hife insurance benefits for retired employees These schemes are unfunded

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, where relevant, updated by the scheme

actuarnes to 31 December 2013
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18 Post-retirement benefits {continued)

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuarial risks such as longevity, interest rate, inflation and investment risks Inthe UK,

and 1n the principal US pension schemes, the Group has adopted an mvestment policy to mitigate some of these risks This involves
nvesting a sigmficant proportion of the scheme assets n hability driven investment (LDI} portfolios, which hold investments designed

to offset interest rate and inflation rate risks In addition, in the UK, the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund has invested in a longevity swap, which

1s designed to offset longevity risks in respect of existing pensioners

The Group has adopted amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits with effect from 1 January 2013 The impact 15 described further below

2012 figures have been restated to put them on a comparable basis

Amounts recogmised m the income statement

podarmbaens
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2013 2012
[V14 Overseas uK Overseas
schetnes schemes Tatal schemes schermnes Total
£m im £m tm £m £m
Defined benefit schemes
Current service cost and adrministrative expenses 153 55 208 129 42 171
Past seTvice cost 66 5 71 2 - 2
219 60 279 131 42 173
Defined contribution schemes 30 44 74 23 41 64
Operating cost 249 104 353 154 83 237
Net financing (income)/charge n respect of defined benefit schemes {12} 38 26 (17) 25 8
Total mcome statement charge 237 142 379 137 108 245
The operating cost 15 charged as follows
Defined benefit Defined contribution Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £ £m £m
Costofsales 144 124 49 46 193 170
Commercial and adrmimistrative costs 106 38 15 14 121 52
Research and development 29 11 10 4 39 15
279 173 74 64 353 237

The Group operates a PaySave scheme in the UK This1s a salary sacrifice scherne under which employees elect to stop making employee

contnbutions and the Group makes additional contributions m return for a reduction 1n gross contractual pay As a result, there1sa

decrease i wages and satanes and a corresponding increase in pension costs of £37milhon (2012 £36 milhion) in the year

Net financing comprises

2013 2012
uK Overseas [T+ Cverseas
schemes. schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£im £m £m £m £m im
Financing on scheme obligations 31 59 430 354 a7 401
Financing on scheme assets (431) {21) {452) (a44) (22) {(466)
Financing on unrecogmsed surpluses and mimmum
funding lability 48 - 48 73 - 73
Net financing (income)/charge in respect of defined
benefit schemes 12) 38 26 (17) 25 8
Financing income on scheme surpluses (16) (1) (17) (26) - {26)
Financing costs on scheme deficits 4 19 43 9 25 34
Amounts recogmsed in OC1n respect of defmed benefit schemes 2013 2012
UK Overseas UK Qverseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m im £m £m fm £m
Actuarial gains and losses ansing from demographic assumptions {87) {12) {99) (27) (1) (28}
Actuanal gans and losses anising from financial assumptions {200) 116 (84) (839) (104) (743)
Actuarial gans and losses ansing from experience adjustments 65 31 96 7 {13) (6)
Return on scheme assets excluding financing income (363) {42) (405) {155) 26 (129)
Movement wn unrecognmised surphus and related finance cost 407 - 407 529 — 529
Movement in mimimum funding hability and related finance cost 133 - 133 72 - 72
{5) 93 48 {213) ©2) {305}

UOIRLLIOUL 13430
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18 Post-retirement benefits (contimued)
Amounts recogmsed m the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit schemes

2013 2012
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Tota) schemes schemes Total
im £m im fm £m £m
Presentvalue of funded oblhigations (9,046) {558) (9,604) (8 569) (609) (9,178)
Fair value of scheme assets 9,776 504 10,280 9,794 534 10328
Net asset/{hability) on funded schemes 730 {54) 676 1,225 (75) 1150
Present value of unfunded obligations - {935) {935} - (569) {569)
Unrecogrused surplus? (488) - {488, (853) - {853)
Mimmum funding hability 2 {46) - {46, (173) - (173)
Net asset/(hability) recognised in the balance sheet 196 [989) {793) 199 (644) {445)
Post-retrement scheme surpluses 242 6 248 336 12 348
Post-retirernent scheme deficits (a6) (995) {1,041) (137) {656) {793)

' wherea surplus has ansen on a scheme 1n accordance with IAS 19 and IFRIC 14 the surplus 1s recogmised as an asset only 1f it represents an unconditional economic benefitavallable
to the Group in the future Any surplus m excess of this benefit1s not recognised 1n the balance sheet
A mrmmum funding hability anses where the statutory funding requirements require future contnibutions 1n respect of past service that will resultin a future unrecogmsable surplus

Overseas schemes are located n the following countries

2013 2012

Assets Obligations Net Assets Obhgabons Net

£m £m im £m £m £m
Canada 135 (181} (6) 139 (200) {61)
Germany - (500) (500} - (86) {86)
US pension schemes 347 {420 {73) 369 (449) {80)
LS healthcare schemes - (352 (352) - (399) {399)
Other 22 (40! (18) 26 (44) {18)
Net asset/{habihty) recognised in the balance sheet 504 (1,493) {989) 534 {1,178) (644)

Defined benefit schemes

Assumptions

Sigmificant actuanal assumptions for UK schemes (werghted average by size of the obhigation) used at the balance sheet date were
as follows

2013 2012

Discount rate 4 4% 4 4%
Inflation assumption? 3 5% 30%
Rate of increase in salaries 4 5% 41%
Male hife expectancy —current penstoner 225 226
—future pensioner currently aged 45 242 244

! for the UK schemes, this s the assumption for the Retail Price Index The Consumer Price Index 1s assumed to be one per centlower

Discount rates are determined by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds The rate 1s determined by using the profile
of forecast benefit payments to derive a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve

The inflation assumption 1s determined by the market imphed assumption based on the yields onlong-term indexed hinked government
securities and increases in salaries are based on actual experience, allowing for promotion, of the real increase above inflation

The mortality assumptions adopted for the UK pension schemes are dernved from the SAP actuanal tables, with future improvements
n line with the CMI 2013 core projections and long-term improvements of 1 25 per cent Where appropriate, these are adjusted totake
account of the relevant scheme’s actual expenence

Other assumptions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends in scheme expenence and the
assumphions used in the most recent funding valuaticn The rate of Increase of pensions 1n payment is based on the rules of the relevant
scheme, combined with the inflation assumption where the increase 1s capped

Assumptions for overseas schemes are less significant and are based on advice from local actuaries The prinaipal assumptions are the
discount rate, 4 5 per cent (2012 3 9 per cent) and inflation, 2 3 per cent (2012 2 4 per cent)
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18 Post-retirement benefits (continued)
Changes 1n present value of defmed benefit obhgations
2013 2012
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Totat schemes schemes Total g
£m £m £m £m Em im &
At 1 January, as previously Teported (7,713) (1,052) (8 765) 2
Effect of amendments to JAS 19 17 (1) 16 g
At 1January, as restated (8,569) (1,178) (9,747) {7.696) {L 053) (8,749) p=
Exchange differences - 16 16 - 42 42
Current service cost (147) (53) {200] (122) (40) (162)
Past-service cost (66} 8) (70 2) - (2 p—
Fimance cost (371) (59) {430) (354) (47) (401) -
Coninbubiens by employees 4) 4) (8) {4) {2) (6) g
Benefits paid out 334 63 397 322 38 360 3
Acquisition of businesses (1) (402) (403) (54) - (54) E_’
Actuaral {losses)/gamns (222) 134 (88) (659) (118) (777) g‘
Settlement/curtailment - - - - 2 2 i
Other movemenits - {6} (6) - - - ol
At 31 December {9,046) (1,493) {10,539) (8,560} (1,178} {9,747)
Funded schemes {9,046) {558) (9,604) (8,569) 609) (9178)
Unfunded schemes - {935} {939) - (569} (569) g
m
The defined benefit obhgations are in respect of g.,
Active plan participants (3,492} (849 (4,341) (3,129) (915) (4 044) g
Deferred plan participants {1,647) (74 (1,721) (1,583) {15) (1598) z
Pensioners {3,907) (570, {4,477 (3857) (248) {4,105) -
Weighted average duration of obhgations 16 13 16
Changes in fair value of scheme assets
2013 2012
UK Overseas ux Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 9,794 534 10,328 9519 497 10,016
Exchange differences - (19) {19) - (18) (18)
Admimistrative expenses {6) {2) (8) (7) (2) {9)
Financing 431 21 452 444 22 466
Return on plan assets excluding financing {363) {42) (a05) (155) 26 (129)
Contnibutions by employer 249 66 315 252 47 299
Contnbubons by employees 4 4 8 4 2 6
Benefits paid out (334) (63) {397) (322) (38) (360)
Acquisition of businesses 1 5 6 59 - 59
Settlements/curtailment - - - - (2) {2)
At 31 December 9,776 504 10,280 9,794 534 10,328
Total return on scheme assets 68 {21) 47 289 48 337
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18 Post-retirement benefits (continued)
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 December

2013 2012
UK Overseas UK Overseas

schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total

im fm £m £m £m £Em

Sovereign debt 5,929 231 6,160 6088 - 6088
Derwvatves on sovereign debt (987) 2 {985) (1,225) - {1,225)
Corporate debtinstruments 1,045 190 1,235 969 — 962
Interest rate swaps 1,361 - 1,361 1922 - 1922
inflation swaps {13) - (13) {289) - (289)
Cash and sirmilar instruments 257 44 301 429 - 429
Liatnhty driven investment (LDI) portfolios! 7.592 457 8,059 7.894 - 7,894
Longevity swap? 3 - 3 {126) - {126)
Usted equities 994 3 997 1,126 119 1245
Unhsted equities 172 - 172 - - —
Soveteign debt 215 4 219 245 313 558
Corporate debt mstruments 540 4 544 334 74 408
Cash 253 4 257 - - -
Other 7 22 29 321 28 349
At 31 December 9,776 504 10,280 9794 534 10,328

+ A portfeho of gt and swap contracts backed by LIBOR generating assets thatss designed to hedge the majority of the interest rate and inflatian risks associated with the

schemes obhgatwns

Under thelongewity swap the Rolls Royce Pension Fund (RRPF} has agreed an average hfe expectancy of pensianers with a counterparty tf pensioners live langer than expected the
counterparty will make payments to RRPF to offset the additional cost of paying pensigners If the reverse apphes the cost of paying pensianers will be reduced but the scheme

will be required ta make payments to the counterparty Following the adoption of the Amendments to 1aS$ 19 and the interaction with IFRS 13 from 2013 the longevity swap has been
valued on an external fair market basis rather than using the same assumptions as used for the valuation of the scheme s habilities As the surplus on the RRPF 15 restricted, this has
had nompact on the net surplus/deficit recogrised in the balance sheet, Had the longevity swap been valued on the same basis as 2012 1ts value would have been a hability of £156m
the movement since 2012 largely reflecting the changes in mortality and discount rate assumptians The valuation 1s based on an estimate of the assumptions that a hypothetical third
party would use for the future mortality and premium

The scheme assets do not nclude any of the Group's own financial instruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assets used by,

the Group The longevity swap 1s valued by the scheme actuanes based on the difference between the agreed longevity assumptions at
inception and actual longevity expenence All other fair values are provided by the fund managers Where available, the farr values are quoted
prices (eq listed equity, sovereign debt and corporate bonds) Unhsted investments {private equity) are included at values provided by the fund
manager in accordance with relevant guidance Other sigmficant assets are valued based on observable imputs such as yield curves

Movements in unrecegmsed surplus and mmmum habihty

2013 2012
UK Overseas UK Overseas
schemes schemes Total schemes schemes Total
fm £m £m £m fm Em
At 1 January, as previously reported {1,554) (94) {1,648)
Effect of amendments to IAS 19 - 94 94
At 1 January, as restated (1,026) - (1,026) (1554) - {1.554)
Movements in unrecogmsed surplus through OCI 407 - 407 529 - 529
Movemnents in mimimum funding habihty through OCI 133 - 133 72 — 72
Related finance costs (48) - {48} {73) - (73)
At 31 December (534) - (534) (1026) - {1026)
Future contnbutions

The Group expects to coninbute approximately £325 million toits defined benefit schemes 1 2014

In the UK, the funding 1s set on the basis of a trienmal funding valuation by the actuanes for which the assumptions may differ from those
above In particular, the discount rate used to value the obligations takes account of the investment strategy, rather than being based on
market yields of AA corporate bonds As a result of these valuations, the Group and the scheme trustees agree a Schedule of Contnibutions
{50C), which sets out the required contributions from the employer and employees for current service Where the scherne 1s in deficit, the
SoC also inciudes requited contnbutions from the employer to ehminate the deficit The most recent agreed tnenmal valuations for the

principal schemes are

Obligations at

31 December
2013 Valuation
im date
Rolls-Royee Pension Fund 6,543 31 March 2012
Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme 1,540 5 April 2013
Vickers Group Pension Scheme 637 31 March 2013
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18 Post-retirement benefits {continued)

Sensitvities

The calculations of the defined benefit obligations ate sensitive to the assumptions set out on page 78 The following table summarises
the estimated 1mpact of a change 1n the assumption on the UK defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2013, while holding all other

assumptions constant This sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obhigation as it 1s

unlikely that the change 1n assumptions would occur in 1solation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated

For the most significant funded schemes, the investment strategies are designed to hedge the risks from interest rates, mflation on
an economic basis and n the Rolls-Royce Pension Fund 1n the UK, the longevity of pensioners Where appropriate, the table also mcludes
the corresponding movement in the value of the plan assets

£m
Reduction in the discount rate of 0 25%* Obhgations 412)
Plan assets {LDI portfolo) 465
Increase m inflation of 0 25% Cbhigations (201)
Plan assets {LDI portfoho) 185
Increase n real increase msalaries of 025%  Obligations (88)
One year increase m life expectancy Obhigations (212)
Plan assets {longevity swap) 86

+ The difference anses largely due to diffarences in the methads used to value the oblhigations for accounting and econemic purposes On an economic basis the correlation 1s
approxsmately 97 per cent

Amendments to IAS 19
Prior period figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of the amendments to IAS 19 Consequential tax effects have been reflected
in deferred tax

As previously reported Amendments As restated

UK Owverseas Total UKk Overseas Total UK  Overseas Total

Notes £m £m £m £m £m im £m £m £m
At1 January 2012 A 252 (645) (397) 17 93 110 269 (556) (287}
Exchange adjustments - 24 24 - - - - 24 24
Curtent service cost and admimistrative expenses B {123) (38) {161) (6) (4) {10) (129) (42) {171)
Past service cost A (2) 12 10 - (12) (12) (2) - {2)
Net financing C (41) (23) {64) 58 (2) 56 17 [25) (8)
Contnibutions by employer 250 47 297 2 = 2 252 a7 299
Acgquisition of business 5 - 5 - - - 5 - 5
Actuanal losses C (659) (118) (777) - - - (659) (118) (777)
Return on plan assets excluding financing C (30) 20 (10) {125) 6 (119) {155) 26 (129)
Movement in untecogmised surplus C 465 - 465 64 - 64 529 — 529
Movement on mimmumn funding hability C 63 - 63 9 - g 72 - 72
At 31 December 2022 180 (725) (545) 19 81 100 199 (644) {445)
Post retirement scheme surpluses 317 12 329 336 12 348
Post retirement scheme deficits {137} (737} (874) (137) (656) {793}

A An unrecognised past service credit related to the restructuning of certain overseas healthcare schemes in 2011 This has now been recognised in full at 1 January 2012 Asa
consequence the amortisation of this past service creditin 201215 ehminated In addition an adjustment has been made in the calculation of the defined benefit obhgation on one of
the UK schemes to putit on a consistent basis with the other schemes

B Previously all admimstrative costs were offset agamnst the expected return on scheme assets The amendments only allow this in respect of the costs of managing scheme assets other
admimstrative expenses are now inchuded in the current service cost.

C Previously net financing comprised the actual expected return on scheme assets based on the underlying assets and a financing charge on scheme habilities calculated using a AA
corporate bond rate The amendments require net financing to be calculated on the net asset or lability recogmised on the balance sheet using an AA carporate bond rate This has a
consequential Impact on amounts recogrsed m OC! {1) the change 1n assumed return on scheme assets affects the related actuarial gains or losses and (n)implicit financing on
movements in the untecognised surplus and the nurimum funding halnhity 1s notindudedin the income statement

19 Share capital

Ordinary

shares of Nommal
20p each! vatue
Millions im

Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2013 1,631 326
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20 Share-based payments
Effect of share-based payment transactions on the Group’s results and finanaal position

2013 2012

£m £m

Total expense recognised for equity-settled share-based payments transactions 61 49
Total expense recogmised for cash-settled share-based payments transactions 18 6
Share-based payments recognised in the conschidated income statement 79 55
biabihty for cash-settled share based payment transactions 19 18

Movements in the Group's share-based payment plans durmng the year
ShareSave ESOP PSP APRA
Wefghted Weighted
average average

Number exerciseprice Number  exercse price Number Number

MiTlions Pence Milliens Pence MiTlions Mmillions

Qutstanding at 1 January 2012 275 447 05 100 195 33
Cranted - - - - 43 20
Additignal entitlernents ansing from TSR performance - - - - 28 -
Forfeited {06) 446 — - {0 8) (01}
Exercised {01) 409 {04) 103 {118) 12)
Cutstanding at 1 January 2013 26 8 447 01 77 140 40
Granted 100 961 - - 28 16
Additional entitlements arsing from TSR performance - - - - 06 -
Additional shares acctued from remvestment of C Shares - - - - - 01
Forfeited {06) 483 - - {0 6) (01)
Exercised (10 2) 404 01) 77 (4 8) (25)
Qutstanding at 31 December 2013 260 660 - - 120 31
Exercisable at 31 December 2013 - - - - - -
Exercisable at 31 Decernber 2012 - - 01 77 - -

As share options are exercised throughout the year, the weighted average share price during the year of 1123 pence (2012 836 pence) 1s
representative of the weighted average share price at the date of exercise The dlosing price at 31 December 2013 was 1275 pence
(2012 873 5 pence)

There werte no exercisable options as at 31 December 2013 The average remaining contractual hfe of the exercisable options as at
31 December 2012 was 0 2 years

Fair values of share-based payment plans
The weighted average fair value per share of equity-settled share-based payment plans granted duning the year, estimated at the date of
grant, are as follows

2013 2012
PSP — 25% TSR uphft 1128p 885p
PSP — 50% TSR uphit 1254p 985p
ShareSave —three year grant 287p nfa
ShareSave —five yeargrant 349p nfa
APRA 1027p 809p

PSP

The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP 1s calculated using a pricing model that takes account of the non-entitlement to dividends (or
equivalent) during the vesting period and the market-based performance condrtion based on expectations about volatihty and the correlation
of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 compames and which incorporates into the valuation the interdependency between share
price performance and TSR vesting This adjustment increases the fair value of the award relative to the share price at the date of grant

ShareSave

The fair value of the options granted under the ShareSave plan is calculated using a bimemial pncing model that assumes that participants
will exercise their options at the beginming of the six-month window 1f the share price 1s greater than the exercise price Otherwise it
assumes that options are held until the expiration of thewr contractual term This results in an expected hfe that falls somewhere between
the start and end of the exercise window

APRA
The fair value of shares awarded under APRA 15 calculated as the share price on the date of the award, excluding expected dwidends
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21 Operating leases

Leases as lessee o013 2012
Em £m
Rentals paid —hire of plant and machmnery 134 94
- hire of other assets 55 34
Non cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows

Within one year 179 147
Between one and five years 545 490
After five years 507 526
1,231 1163
Leases aslessor 2013 2012
£m £fm
Rentals recewved — credited within revenue from aftermarket services 56 30

Non cancellable operating lease rentals are recewvable as follows
Within one year 19 2
Between one and five years 48 7
After five years 23 1
0 10

The Group acts as lessee and lessor for both land and buildings and gas turbine engines, and acts as lessee for some plant and equipment

- Sublease payments of £1 rmillion (2012 £4 million) and sublease receypts of £27 milhon (2012 £17 rmilhon) were recognised n the mmcome
statement 1n the year

- Purchase options exist on aerc engines, fand and bwildings and plant and equipment with the penod to the purchase option date varying
from one to eight years

+ Renewal options exist on aero engmes, land and buildings and plant and equipment with the period to the renewal option varying
between one to 28 years at terms to be negohated upon renewal

+ Escalation clauses exist on some leases and are inked to LIBOR

+ The total future minimum sublease payments ex pected to be made 1s £8 milhion (2012 £10 rmillion) and sublease receipts expected to be
recewved 15 £42 milhon (2012 £9 mullion)

22 Contingent habilities

On 6 December 2012, the Company announced that it had passed mfermation to the SFO relating to concerns 1n overseas markets
Since that date the Company has continued its investigations and i1s engaging with the SFO and other authonities in the UK, the USA
and elsewhere

In Decernber 2013, the Company announced that 1t had been informed by the $FQ that 1t had commenced a formal investigation

The consequence of these disclosures will be decided by the regulatory authonities It remains too early to predict the outcomes, but
these could include the prosecution of individuals and of the Group Accordingly, the potential for fines, penalties or other consequences
(including debarment from government contracts, suspension of export privileges and reputational damage) cannot currently be
assessed As the investigation 1s ongoing, 1t 1s not yet possible to identify the timescale in which these 1ssues rmght be resolved

Contingent habilities exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Group 1n the ordimary course of business for product dehvery,
performance and rehabihity The Group has, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangements in respect of export finance,
performance bonds, countertrade obhgations and mnor miscellanecus items Various Group undertakings are parties to legal actions
and daims which anse m the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial amounts As a consequence of the insolvency
of aninsurer as previously reported, the Group 1s no lenger fully insured against known and potential clams from employees who worked
for certain of the Group's UK-based businesses for a period pnor to the acquisition of those businesses by the Group While the outcome of
some of these matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after
allowng for provisions already made, to result in sigmificant loss to the Group The Group's share of equity-accounted entities’ contingent
habilities 1s £13 million (2012 £48 rmalhon)

Contingent habilities 1n respect of customer financing commitments are described 1n note 17
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23 Related party transactions

2013 2012
£m £m
Sales of goods and services to joint ventures and associates 3,149 2937
Purchases of goods and services from joint ventures and associates {3,269) {3.082)
Qperating lease payments to joint ventures and associates (69) (57
Guarantees of joint ventures' and associates borrowings 7 12
Dwidends receved from joint ventures and assotiates 99 129
RRSP receipts from joint ventures and associates 4 13
COther income receved from joint ventures and associates 1 2

The aggregated balances with Joint ventures are shown i notes 11 and 14 Transactions with Group pension schemes are shown 1n
note 18

In the course of normal operations, related party transactions entered into by the Group have been contracted on an arms-length basis

Key management personnel are deemned to be the directors and the members of the ELT as set out in the annual report of Rolls-Royce
Holdings plc Remuneration for key management personnel 1s shown below

2013 2012

£m im

Safaries and short-term benefits 11 15
Post Tetirement schemes 1 1
Share based payments 7 8
19 24

24 Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions

Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG {RRPS — formerly Tognum AG}

From 25 August 2011 to 31 December 2012 the Group's intetest in RRPS was classified as a jownt venture and equity accounted On

1 January 2013, conditions were fulfilled which gave the Group certain rights that result in RRPS being classified as a subsidiary and
consohdated Accordingly, the Group's joint venture interest in Rolls-Royce Power Systems Holding GmbH {RRPSH} has been reclassified
as a subsichary The fair values of the identifiable assets and habihties assumed are £3,339 rillion, giving nse to goodwall of £773 rmilhon,
as set out in the table below Rolls-Royce and Darmler AG (Daimler) each hold 50 per cent of the shares of RRPSH, which 1tself held over

99 per cent of the shares of RRPS During 2013, RRPSH acquired the remaiming 1 per cent of shares of RRPS RRPS1s a prermum suppher

of engines, propulsion systems and components for marine, energy, defence, and other industrial applications (often described as
‘off-mghway’ apphcations}

Other

On 30 Apnl 2013, the Group acquired 100 per cent of thessued share capital of Hyper-Therm High-Temperature Composites, Inc, a
producer of state-of-the-art composite matenals, n¢ludmg ceramic matrix composites, engineered coatings and thermal-structural
components

On 15 August 2013, the Group acquited 100 per cent of SmartMotor AS, a leading speciahist in the development of permanent magnet
technology

On 24 December 2013, the Group acquired the remaiming 49 per cent of shares not held in Composite Technology and Applhications Limited,
abusiness engaged 1n the development of composite fan blades and containment cases for the next generation of advanced turbofan
engines

For each of the other acquisttions noted, the acquisition cost (net of cash and borrowings acquired) has been allocated to dentifiable assets
and habilities — principally technology, patents and icences, customer relationships, trademark, order backlog and other intangible assets
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24 Acquisitions and disposals {continued)

Recogmsed amounts of identifiable assets acquired and habhties assumed

Hodar nbayens

RRPS Other Total 1=
£m £m £m 8_
Intangible assets 1,192 35 1,227 S
Property, plant and equipment 545 1 546 I
Iinvestments an jomt ventures associates and other unhsted mvestments 50 - 50 -§
Inventory 737 - 737
Trade and other recewables 487 2 489
Taxation recoverable 48 - 48
Cash and cash equwvalents 240 5 245
Trade and other payables (693) {3) (696) 2“
Current tax payables (77) - (2] 2
Borrowings {203) 1} {204) “,,:'
Other financial assets and habihties {27) - 27) =
Deferred tax [283) 1 (282) E
Provisions {280) - {(280) z
Post retirement schemes (397) - (397)
Totalidentifiable assets and hamhties 1,339 40 1,379
Goadwill arsing 773 - 773 o
Total consideration 2,112 40 2,152 z
3
Consideration satisfied by g
Cash consideration - 37 37 S
Existing shareholding 1443 3 1,446 g
NCI 669 - 669
2,112 40 2,152
RREPS Other Total
£m £Em £m
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration - 37 37
Less cash and cash equivalents acquived (240) (5) (245)
Cash outflow per cash flow statement (240) 32 (208)
Identifiable mtangible assets compnse
Technology, patents and licences 420 35 455
Customer relattonships 433 - 433
Trademark 105 - 105
Order backlog 94 - 94
In-process development 53 - 53
Other 87 - a7
1,152 35 1,227

In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 3 Business Combinations, the Group has opted not to recogmse goodwill 1n tespect of the non-
controlhng mterest 1n RRPS The previous joint venture imvestment holding i RRPSH of £1,328 rmllion was revalued, giving nse to a gain
of £115 milhon

The goodwill ansing on the acquisition of RRPS amounting to £773 milhen (which 1s not tax deductible) consists of antiopated synergies
and the assembled workforce The anticpated synergies principally arise from

- Increases n revenue from the combination of the routes to market, and
- cost savings from the combimation of the supply chain and central funchons

The gross contractual value of trade receivables acquired 1s £446 rmilion At the acquisition date, 1t was estimated that contractual cash
flows of £24 rmlhon would not be collected

The acquisition of the controlling interest in RRPS contnbuted £2,593 rmilion of revenue and profit before tax of £10 rmilhon (including
amortisation of intangible assets ansing on acquisition) to the Group's results for the year
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24 Acquisitions and disposals (continued)

Disposals
On 29 January 2013, Alstom acquired Tidal Genetation Limited

On 2 September 2013, Turbomeca {a Safran company) acquired the Group's 50 per cent shareholding and interest in the RTM322 helicopter
engne programme for which 1t has receved a cash consideration of £293 rmilhon Rolls-Royce will progressively transfer its operational
responsibilities in the engine programme to Turbomeca over a multi-year peried
Assets and habilities disposed

Tida)

RTM322 Generation Total
£m £m £m
Intangible assets - other = 3 3
Investment in joint venture 2 - 2
Cash and cash equivalents - 2 2
Trade and other payables - (2) (2)
Prowvistons for labihties and charges (2) - 2)
Net assets - 3 3
Profit on disposal of businesses 194 22 216
Disposal costs 3 - 3
Proceeds deferred in respect of transitional services and retained obhgations 53 - 53
Disposal proceeds 250 25 275
Cash and cash equivalents disposed - (2) 2}
Cash inflow per cash flow statement 250 23 273

Acquisihions and disposals 1n 2012
During 2012, the Group acquired

- on 19 June, Superstructure Capital Limited, a business engaged in marketing and sale of safety and nsk management software
1o the aeTospace industry,

« on 13 July, PFW Aerospace UK, a business engaged in the manufacture of precision components for the aerospace industry,

« on 13 December, Rolls-Royce Goodnch Engine Controls Lirmted {acquisition of 50 per cent not already held), a business engaged
w the development and manufacture of aero-engine controls, and

« 27 December, PKMJ Techmical Services, Inc, a nuclear engineering services business in the US

and disposed of

« on 27 june, Rolls-Royce Fuel Cell Systems Inc (dilution of existing shareholding to 48 per cent), and
- on 29 June, for US$1 5 billion, the equity, programme share and related goodwall of IAE International Aero Engines AG, which gave nse
to a profit befare tax of £699 nilhon
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25 Segmental analysis from 1 January 2014
As described in the Chief Financial Officer’s review on page 11, durmg the management structure of the business has been revised and the
internal reporting structure has been developed to reflect this These changes will be reflected in the segmental analysis with effect from
1 January 2014 Had they been in place during 2013, the segmental analysis shown 1n note 2 would be as follows o
Aerospace MIPS 5-
Totat o
Power  Nuclear Intra nter reportable o
Ciyil  Defence Total  Marine  Systems & Energy segment Total segment segments E
£m £m im £m £m £m £m £m £m £m iad
Year ended 31 December 2013
Underlying revenue from sale of anginal equipment 3,035 1,385 4,420 1,236 2,004 617 (72) 3,785 - 8,205
Underlying revenue from aftermarket services 3,620 1,206 4,826 801 827 921 (75) 2,474 - 7,300
Total underlymg revenue 6,655 2,591 9,246 2,037 2,831 1,538 (147) 6,259 - 15,505 -
3
Underlying operating profit excluding share of results g
of joint ventures and associates 708 424 1,132 233 296 63 2 594 - 1726 5
Share of results of yoint ventures and associates 136 14 150 - (2) 11 - 9 - 159 &
Underlywg profit before finanaing and taxation 844 438 1,282 233 294 74 2 603 - 1,885 3
o
3
Segment assets 10,011 1,606 11,617 1,837 3,935 1,727 (16) 7,489 (734) 18,372 -
Investments mn joint ventures and associates 495 17 512 5 29 55 - 89 = 601
Segment labilities 4,822} (1,092) (5914) {530) (4,864) (646) - (5,040 733 (11,221)
Netassets 5,684 531 6,215 1,312 {900) 1,136 f10) 1,538 1 7,752 9:;
Investment m mtangible assets, property, plant 3
and equipment and joint ventures and associates 891 103 994 23 142 80 - 245 1,239 2
Depreciabion amortisation and nmpairment 349 53 402 63 272 63 - 398 ano 3
g
3
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

At 31 December 2013

2013 2012°
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 3 872 717
Tangible assets 4 1,270 1,152
Investments —subsidiary undertakings 5 1,749 1,773
- Jomtventures 5 70 45
3,961 3,687
Currentassets
Stocks 6 1,237 1371
Debtors —amounts falling due within one year 7 3,447 3,216
--amounts falling due after one year 7 475 554
Other financial assets —amounts falling due within one year 8 B3 124
—amounts falhng due after one year 8 687 594
Short-term deposits 1,973 1487
Cash atbank and inhand 1,237 384
Assets held for resale 2 -
9,141 7730
Creditors —amounts fallimg due within one year
Borrowings 9 {805) (696)
Other financial habhties 8 {142) (174)
Other creditors 10 {6,940) (5,843)
{7,887) (6 713)
Netcurrent assets 1,254 1017
Total assets less current habihties 5,215 4,704
Creditors = amounts falimg due after one year
Borrowings 9 (1,951} {1229)
Other financial habilities 8 (403) (447)
Other crechtors 10 {1,130} (929)
{3,484) (2 605)
Provisions for habilities and charges 11 (140) (122)
Net assets excluding post-retirement schemes 1,591 1977
Post retrement schemes — surpluses 13 332 796
-deficits 13 - (15)
Net assets 1,923 2758
Capitaland reserves
Called up share capital i4 326 326
Share premium account 15 631 631
Revaluation reserve 15 26 29
Other reserves 15 167 167
Profit and loss account 15 773 1,605
Total sharehclders’ funds 1,923 2758

Restated —see note 1

The financial statements on pages 88 to 106 were approved by the Board on 12 February 2014 and signed onnits behalf by

lan Davis Mark Morris
Chairman Chief Financial Officer

Company's registeted number 1003142
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013

2012

£m £m
Profit attributable to the shareholders of Rolls-Royce plc 448 1394
Net movement on post-retirement schemes (561) (182)
Related tax movements 149 67
Total recogmised gains relating to the year 36 1,279
* Restated - see note 1
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

£m fm
At 1January as previously reported 1614
Effect of amendment to accounting pohcy for Risk and Revenue Sharing Arrangements —see note 1 (152)
At 1January as restated 2,758 1462
Total recogrused gains for the year 36 1279
Dwidends paid {00) -
Share-based payments —direct to equity 29 17
At 31 December 1,923 2758
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Accounting pohces

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards on the historical cost basis, modified
to include the revaluation of land and buildngs, and on a going concern basis as described on page 38

As perrmitted by the Compames Act 2006, a separate profit and loss account for the Company has not been included 1n these financial
statements

As permitted by FRS 1 Cash flow statements, no cash flow statement has been prepared, as a consoldated cash flow statement has been
prepared by the ultimate parent company

Change to accounthng pohcy

As explained n mare detail in the Chief Financial Officet’s Review on page 9, following discussions with the Financial Reporting Council,
the Group has reassessed 1ts policy for the recogmition of entry fees received from Risk and Revenue Sharing Arrangements Whilst the
impact on our historical results 1s not significant, the directors believe that the change represents an improvement in the policy

In prior years, entry fees were recognised at the time they become due and payable, on the principle that this matched 1t to the recogmtion
of costsincurred on behalf of the workshare partner This policy has been tefined, to teflect better the fact that some of these costs are
capitalised Under the amended policy, where the relevant costs in the development programme are capitahsed (ie certification costs and
participation fees pawd to awrframers), an equivalent portion of the entry fee recewved has been deferred and recognised as the related costs
are amortised after entry into service

As required by FRS 18 Accounting Pohcies, this change has been made retrospectively, the impact of the change in policy in 2012 was to
mcrease retamed profit by £27 rilion and to reduce net assets at 31 December 2012 by £125 million Had the policy not been amended,
Tetaned profit in 2013 would have been £18 milhon higher and at 31 December 2013 net assets £86 milhon higher

Revenue recogmtion
Revenues comprise sales to external customers after discounts, and excluding value added tax

Sales of products are recognised when the significant nisks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the custamer, the
sales price agreed and the receipt of payment can be assured

Sales of services and long-term contracts are recognised when the outcome of the transaction can be rehably estimated Revenue1s
recognised by reference to the stage of completion based on services performed to date as a percentage of the total contractual obligation
The assessment of the stage of completion 1s dependent on the nature of the contract, but will generally be based on costs incurred to the
extent these relate to services performed up to the reporting date, achievement of contractual milestones wherte appropnate, or flying
hours or equivalent for long-term aftermarket arrangements

Linked sales of product and services are treated as a single long-term contract where these components have been negotiated as a single
commercial package and are so closely interrelated that they do not operate independently of each other and are considered to form

a single project with an overall profit margin Revenue s recogmsed on the same basis as for other sales of products and services as
described above

Full provision 1s made for any estimated losses to completion of contracts having regard to the overall substance of the arrangements

Progress payments received on long-term contracts, when greater than recorded turnover, are deducted from the value of work in progress
except to the extent that payments on account exceed the value of work in progress on any contract where the excess 1s inchuded n
creditors The amount by which recorded turnover of long-term contracts 15 n excess of payments on account 1s classified as ‘amounts
recoverable on contracts’ and s separately disclosed within debtors

Government investment
Where a government or similar body has previously invested in a development programme, the Company treats payments to that body as
royalty payments, which are matched to related sales
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1 Accounting policies {continued)

Risk and revenue shanng arrangements {RR5As)

The Company enters into arrangements with certain workshare partners under which these supphiers (i) contnbute to the forecast costs
of developing an engime, and (n} supply components for the production phase for which they receve consideration, which 1s an agreed
propottion of the total programme Tevenues Both the suppliers’ contributions to the forecast costs and therr consideration are determined
by reference to their proportionate scopes of supply relative to that of the engine overall Once the forecast costs and the scopes of supply
have been agreed, each party 1s then accountable for its own incurred costs The supphiers’ contributions to the costs of developing the
engine inctude (1) development work, and/or (n) development components supplied, and/or {m) non-refundable cash payments No
accounting entnes are recorded where the suppliers undertake development work or where development components are supplied Cash
sums received are recogmised in the profit and loss account to match the expensing of the Group's related costs —where the cash sums are
recerved 1n advance of the related costs being expensed or where the related costs are capitahsed as mtangible assets, the recogmtion of
the cash recewed 1 deferred to match the recagmtion of the related expense or the amortisation of the related intangible asset respectively
The payments to supphers of their shares of the programme revenues for thewr production components are charged to the profit and loss
account as programme Tevenues anse

The Company has arrangements with partners who do not undertake development work or supply parts Such arrangements are
considered to be financial instruments as defined by FRS 25 Financial instruments Presentation and are accourited for using the amortised
cost method

Research and development

The charge to the profit and loss account consists of research and development expenditure incurred in the year, excluding known
recoverable costs on contracts, contnbutions to shared engineering programmes and application engineering Apphcation engineering
expenditure, incurred in the adaptation of existing technology to new products, 1s capitalised and amortised over the programme hfe,
up to a maximum of 15 years, where both the technical and commercial risks are considered to be sufficiently low

Interest
Interest recevable/payable 1s credited/charged to the profit and loss account using the effective interest method

Taxation

Provision for taxation 1s made at the current rate and for deferred taxation at the projected rate on all trming differences that have
originated, but not reversed at the balance sheet date Deferred tax 1s calculated using the enacted or substantively enacted rates that are
expected to apply when the asset or liability 15 settled

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed only to the extent that it 1s prabable that future taxable profits will be available against which the assets
can be utiised

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in overseas currencies are translated into local currency at the exchange rate ruling on the date of the transaction Monetary
assets and abilihies denorminated n foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruhing at the year-end Exchange differences
arising on foreign exchange transactions and the retranslation of assets and habilities into sterling at the rate ruling at the year-end are
taken into account in determiring profit on ordinary actwvities before taxation

Finanaal instruments
FRS 26 Finanaal instruments recognition and measurement requires the classification of financial instruments nto separate categories
forwhich the accounting requiremnent 1s different Rolls-Royce has classified its financial instruments as follows

» Short-term investments are generally classified as available for sale

- Short-term deposits (principally comprising funds held with banks and other financial institutions), trade recewables and short-term
investments not designated as avalable for sale are classified as loans and receivables

+ Borrowings, trade creditors and financial RRSPs are classified as other liabihties

- Dernwvatives, comprising foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swaps are dassified as held for trading

Financial instruments are recogmsed at the contract date and inttially measured at fair value Their subsequent measurement depends
ontherr classification

« Loans and recevables and other hahilities are held at amortised cost and not revalued (except for changes in exchange rates, which are
included in the profit and loss account) unless they are included 1n a fair value hedge accounting relationsmp Where such a relationship
exists, the mstruments are revalued 1n respect of the nisk being hedged If instruments held at amortised cost are hedged, generally by
interest rate swaps, and the hedges are effectve, the carrying values are adjusted for changes 1n fair value, which are included in the
profit and loss account
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1 Accounting pohcies (continued)

« Available for sale assets are held at fair value Changes infairvalue ansing from changes in exchange rates are included 1n the profit and
loss account All other changes in farr value are taken to reserves On disposal, the accumulated changes invalue recorded 1n reserves are
included 1n the gam or loss recorded in the profit and loss account

+ Held for trading instruments are held at fair value Changes n fair value are included n the profit and loss account unless the instrument
15 inchuded in a cash flow hedge If the instruments are included n a cash flow hedging relationship, which 1s effective, changes in value
are taken to reserves When the hedged forecast transaction occurs, amounts previously recorded in reserves are recogmised in the profit
and loss account

« Financial instruments are derecogmised on expiry or when all contractual nights and obligations are transferred

Hedge accounting
The Company does not apply hedge accounting in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts held to manage the cash flow exposures
of forecast future transactions denormmnated in foreign currencies

The Company does not apply hedge accounting in respect of commodity swaps held to manage the cash flow exposures of forecast future
transactions 1n those commeodities

The Company apphes hedge accounting n respect of transactions entered into to manage the far value and cash flow exposures of its
borrowings Forward foreign exchange contracts are held to manage the fair value exposures of borrowings denorminated 1n foreign
currencies and are designated as fair value hedges Intetest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designated
as fair value or cash flow hedges of fixed and floating rate berrowings respectively

Changes in the fair values of denivatives designated as fair value hedges and changes 1n fair value of the related hedged 1tem are recogmsed
dwectly in the profit and loss account

Changes in the fair values of denivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges and are effective are recogmsed directly in reserves Any
meffectiveness in the hedging relationships 1s included n the profit and loss account The amounts deferred in reserves are recogmsed in
the profit and loss account to match the recognition of the hedged 1item

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires ot s sold, terminated, ot exercised, or no longer quahfies for
hedge accounting At that time, for cash flow hedges and if the forecast transaction remains praobable, any cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging instrurment recognised in reserves, 1s retained 1n reserves until the forecast transaction occurs If a hedged transaction 1s nolonger
expected to occur the net cumulative gain or loss previously recogmsed in reserves 15 transferred to the profit and loss account

The portion of a gan or loss on an instrument used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation that 1s determined to be an effective
hedge 15 recognised directly 1n reserves The meffective portion is recogmsed immediately in the profit and loss account

Certification costs and participation fees

Costs mcurred 1n respect of meeting regulatory certification requirements for new civil engine/aircraft combiatiens and payments made
to airframe manufacturers for this, and participation fees, are carried forward in intangible assets to the extent that they can be recovered
out of future sales and are charged to the profit and loss account over the programme life, up to a maximumof 15 years from the entry-
into-service of the product

Software
The cost of acquining software that 1s not speaific to an item of tangible fixed assets 15 classified as an ntangible asset

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairments in value

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to write-off the cost or valuation, less the estimated residual value, over the estimated
useful hfe Estimated useful lives are as follows

1) tand and buildings, as advised by the Group's professional valuers
a} Freehold buildings — five to 45 years (average 23 years)
b) leasehold land and buildings —lower of valuers’ estimates or petiod of lease
¢) Nodepreciation s provided in respect of freehold land

n) Plant and equipment — five to 25 years (average 13 years)

m) Arrcraft and engines — five to 20 years (average 15 years)

w) No depreciation is provided on assets 1n the course of construction
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
tmpairment of fixed assets
impairment of fixed assets 1s considered in accordance with FRS 11 Imparrment of fixed assets and goodwill Where the asset does
notgenerate cash flows that are independent of other assets, mpairment 1s considered for the income-generating unit to which the o
asset belongs i
Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually Other fixed assets are assessed for any indications of %
impairment annually If any indication of impairment 1s identified, an impairment test is performed to estimate the recoverable amount 4
Recoverable amount 1s the higher of value in use or fair value less costs to sell - if this is readily available The value 1n use is the present -
value of future cash flows using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the time value of money and the nsk specific to the asset
If the recoverable amount of an asset {or Income-generating umit} 1s estimated to be below the carrying value, the carrying value 1s re—
reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss recogmised as an expense -
Operating leases §
Payments made and rentals recewved under operating lease arrangements are charged/credited to the income statementona ;—:
straight-line basis 8

3 |
Stock £ '
Stock and work 1n progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first-in, first-out basis Costcomprises direct “
matenals and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads, including depreciation of property, plant and equipment, that
have been incurred in bringing the ventonies to their present locahon and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated selhng
prices less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, sellimg and distnibution 2
[1]

Provisions i
Provisions are recogmsed when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 1s probable that the Company g
will be required to settle that obhigation Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the E
obhgation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s matenal 5

Post-retirement benefits
Pensions and similar benefits are accounted for under FRS 17 Retirernent benefits For defined benefit plans, obligations are measured at

discounted present value whilst plan assets are recorded at fair value The service and financing costs of such plans are recogmised
separately in the profit and loss account, service costs are spread systematically over the Iives of employees and financing costs are
recogmised 1n the penods 1n which they anse Actuanal gans and losses are recogmised immedrately wn the statement

of total recognised gains and lasses Surplus in schemes are recogmsed as assets only if they represent economic benefits that are available

to the Company m the future

Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

Share-based payments

The Company participates in Rolis-Royce Holdings plc employee share-based payment arrangements These are equity-settled
arrangements and are measured at fair value (exciuding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The far
value 1s expensed on a straight-hne basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of shares or eptions that will eventually
vest The costs of these share-based payments are treated as a caprtal cantribution from the parent company Any payments made by the
Company to its parent company, in respect of these arrangements, are treated as a return of this caprtal contribution

The fair values of the share-based payment arrangements are measured as follows

1) ShareSave — using the binomial pncing method,
n) Performance Share Plan — using a pricing model adjusted to reflect non-entitlernent to dwidends (or equivalent) and the Total

Shareholder Return market based condition,
m) Annual Performance Related Award plan and free shares under the Share Incentive plan — share price on the date of the award

See note 17 for further description of the share-based payment plans
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2 Emoluments of directors

2013 2012
Highest paid Other  Highest paid Other
director directers direciar directors
£000 £000 £000 £000
Aggregate emoluments excludimg deferred share plans 1,793 3,959 1960 4908
Aggregate amounts relating to deferred share plans 330 3,406 496 7,993
Aggregate vatue of Company contnibutions to Company defined contnbution
pensions schemes 50 395 123 383
Accrued pension of hughest paid director = nfa - n/a
Gans reahsed on exercise of share options - 6 - -
2013 2012
Number Number
Number of directors with accruing retirement benefits
Defined contnibution schemes 2 3
Defined benefit schernes 2 3 2
Number of directors exercising share options 1 -
Number of directors recering shares as part of long term mcentives schemes 4 5
* Includes gans under the ShareSave plan
* Oneditecter was a contributing member of both defined contribution and defmed benefst schemes (2012 two directers)
3 Intangible assets
Certification
costs and
participation  Softwareand
fees other Total
£m £m fm
Cost
At 1 fanuary 2013 654 431 1,085
Additions 185 59 244
At 31 Decernber 2013 839 490 1,329
Accumulated amortisation
At 1January 2013 224 144 368
Charge far the year 33 56 89
At 31 December 2013 257 200 457
Net book value
At 31 Decernber 2013 582 290 872
287 717

At1 January 2013 430
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4 Tangible assets
Land and Plantand  Aircraftand m course of
buildings equipment engines  construction Total
£m £m £m fm £m
Cost or valuation g
At 1January 2013 466 1,559 37 222 2,284 §
Additions 3 64 19 183 269 ¢
Reclassifications 17 85 1 (103) - §
Dhs posals - (40) - - {40) =
At 31 December 2013 486 1,668 57 302 2,513
Accumulated depredation
At 1January 2013 164 951 18 {1) 1,132 -
Impairment = - - - - E
Charge for the year 15 122 7 — 144 s
Drsposals - (34} - 1 (33) =
At 31 December 2013 179 1,039 25 - 1,243 g
Net book value v
At 31 December 2013 307 629 32 302 1,270
At 1 January 2013 302 608 19 223 1,152
2013 2012 5
£m £m =)
Tangible fixed assets include g
Net book value of finance leased assets 10 11 S
Non depreciable land 68 68
Land and buildings at cost or valuation comprise
Cost 327 320
Valuation at 31 December 1996 159 146
486 466
On an historical cost basis the net book value of land and
buildings would have been as follows
Cost 456 436
Depreciation (175) {162)
281 274
Capital expenditure commitments 145 152
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5 Investments

Subsnidiary
undertakings! Joint ventures!
Shares Shares
at cost? at cost Loans Tota!
£m £im £m £m
At 1January 2013 1,773 38 7 45
Addrtions 3 12 27 39
Business disposal (7} - - =
Transfer to subsidiary undertakings’ 14 (14) - (14)
Impairment 11) - - -
Disposals/wnite offs (23) - - -
At 31 Decernber 2013 1,749 36 34 70

! The principal subsidiary undertakings are listed on pages 107 and 108
* The pnincipal jomt ventures are hsted on pages 108 and 109
* The Company has guaranteed the uncalled share caprtal of Nightingale Insurance tmited one of its subsidiaries At 31 December 2013 this guarantee was £25m (2012 £25m)

6 Stocks

2013 2012
£m £m
Raw matenals 75 78
Work 1n progress 389 438
Long-term contracts work m progress - @)
Finished goods 764 837
Payments on account 9 22
1,237 1371

7 Debtors

fFalling due within one year Fallmg due after one year

2013 2012 2013 2012
im fm £m £m
Trade debtors 300 361 - 39
Amaunts recoverable on contracts B 10 182 165
Amounts owed by —subsidiary undertakings 1,565 1699 - =
—jomt ventures 335 319 - 3
—parentyndertaking 845 544 = -
Deferred tax assets (note 12) - - 215 318
Other debiors 328 210 - -
Prapayments and accrued income 66 73 78 29

3,447 3216 475 554
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8 Other finanaial assets and liabilities
Details of the Company's policies on the use of financial instruments are given in the accounting policies on pages 91 and 92
The fair values of cther financial instruments held by the Company are as follows
(=)
foreign Interest Derivative Financial i
exchange Commodity rate finandal RRSPs s
centracts contracts contracts  instruments Total I}
£m im £m £m £m £m ]
At 31 Decernber 2013 §
Assets  —amounts falling due within one year 81 2 - 83 - 83
—amounts falling due after one year 644 - 43 687 - 687
Liabilities = amounts falling due within one year (85) 16 {1) {102) (40) {142)
—amounts falling due after one year (143) 25 (48) (216) (187) {403)
497 39) {6} 452 227) 225 ;T
At 31 December 2012 2
Assets  —amounts falling due withwn one year 113 6 5 124 = 124 :'_-._'
—amounts falling due after one year 500 4 90 594 - 594 &
Liabilities —amounts faliing due within one year (124) (8) — (132) (42} (174) ‘3
—amounts falling due after one year (241) (15) {7) (263) {L84) (447) &
248 13) 28 323 (226) 97
Denvative finanaial instruments g
The Company uses various financial instruments to manage 1ts exposure to movernents in foreign exchange rates The Company uses 2
commodity swaps to manage 1ts exposure to movements inthe price of commodities (jet fuel and base metals) To hedge the currency risk S
associated with a barrowing denormnated i US dollars, the Company has currency derivatives designated as part of a fair value hedge Fl
The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and interest rate caps to manage 1ts exposure to movements in interest ’g’

rates Where the effectiveness of the hedge relationsmip in a cash flow hedge 1s demonstrated, changes in the fair value that are deemed
effective are ncluded in the hedging reserve and released to match actual payments on the hedged 1tem

Movements in the fair values of denvative financial imstruments were as follows

Foreign

exchange  Commedity  mierestrate Total

instruments  instruments instruments im

£m £m £m £m
At1lJanuary 2012 (437) (12) 81 (368)
Movements in fair value hedges ! (8) - 6 (2)
Mavernents in cashflow hedges () - - )
Movements in gther derrvatve contracts 686 3} 1 684

Contracts settled 11 2 - 13
At 1January 2013 243 {13) 88 323
Movements in fair value hedges * 3 - (91) (88)
Movements in cashflow hedges - - - -
Movements 1n other dernvatwe contracts 278 35) - 243
Contracts settled (32) 9 (3 (26)
At 31 December 2013 497 (39) () 452

1 Gainonrelated hedged items £88m {2012 £2m)

Where applicable, market values have been used to determine fair values Where market values are not available, fair values have been

calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and translating at prevailing exchange rates

Financial nisk and revenue sharing arrangements (RRSAs)

The Company has financial habihities ansing from financial RRSAs These financial habilities are valued at each reporting date using the
amortised cost method This involves calculating the present value of the forecast cash flows of the arrangements using the internal rate

of return at the inception of the arrangements as the discount rate
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8 Other financial assets and habilities {continued)
The amortised cost values of financial RRSAs were as follows

2013 2012
£m im
At 1 January {226} (265}
Cash pawd to partners 50 51
Financing charge (16} {17}
Exchange adjustments (35) 12
Changes n forecast payments - {7}
At 31 December (227) (226)

9 Borrowings

Falling due within one year

Falling due after one year

2013 2012 2013 2012
£m Em £m im
Unsecured

Overdrafts 605 549 - —
Bank loans 200 - 200 400
72/4% Notes 2016 £200m - - 200 200
6 38% Notes 2013 US55230m? - 147 - -
6 55% Notes 2015 LIS583m! — - 55 53
6 75% Notes 2019 £500m ? - - 535 571
2125% Notes 2021 €750m ! - - 611 =
3 375% Notes 2026 £375m 2 - - 350 -
B0S 696 1,951 1229

Repayable — otherwise than by installments
Between one and two years 55 -
Between two and five years 200 458
After five years 1,696 771
1,951 1229

! These notes are the subject of mietest rate swapagreements under which the Company has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest, and currency swaps which form a farvalue hedge
? These notes are the subject of interest rate swap agreements under which the Company has undertaken to pay floating rates of interest which form a fairvalue hedge

10 Other creditors

Falling due within cheyear

falling due after one year

2013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m £m

Payments receved on account ! 444 331 651 609
Trade creditors 555 548 14 -
Amounts owed to  —subsidiaty undertakings 3,458 2,688 - -
~ joint ventures 182 194 1 2

Corporate taxation 84 39 - =
Qther taxation and social secunty 33 34 - -
QOther creditors 1,181 1,000 84 87
Accruals and deferred income 1003 959 380 231
6,940 5843 1,130 929

Includes payments received from jomt ventures 65 151 151 162
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11 Provisions for habilities and charges
At Unused Charged At
31 December Disposal amounts  toprofitand 31 Decemnber
2012 of business reversed  loss account Utilised 2013
im £Em £m £Em £m £m =]
Warranties and guarantees 29 (2) - 3 {2) 28 e
Contract loss 17 — - - - 17 g
Customer fimancing 72 - (8) 21 (14) 71 ,g
Restructuring a 9 - 14 (3) 24 =
122 7 7] 38 (19) 140
Provisions for warranties and guarantees primarily relate to products sold and generally cover a period of up to three years —
Provisions for contract loss and restructuring are generally expected to be utiised within two years -
3
Customer financing provisions cover guarantees provided for asset values and/or financing as descnibed in note 18 Tirming of utihisation §
15 uncertain -
a
12 Deferred taxation 3
£m ol
At 1January 2013 8S
Amount charged to profit and loss account (102)
Amaount charged to statement of total recogmsed gains and losses 149 2
At 31 December 2013 132 &
3
There are other deferred tax assets totalling £102m (2012 £102m) that have not been recogmsed on the basis that their future econormic %
benefit1s uncertain z
3

The 2013 Budget announced that the UK corporation tax rate will reduce to 21 per cent from 1 Apnil 2014 and to 20 per cent from

1 Apnl 2015 These reductions were substantively enacted on 2 July 2013 As the reduction to 20 per cent was substantively enacted prior
to the year end, the closing deferred tax assets and habilibies have been calculated at this rate The resulting charges or credits have been

recognised in profit and loss except to the extent that they relate to items previously charged or credited to reserves Accordingly, n 2013,
£22m has been credited to the profit and loss account, and £10m has been credited to the statement of total recogrised gains and losses

The analysis of the deferred tax position is as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Fixed asset timing differences {84) {#3)
Other timing differences 17 57
Pensions and other post-retirement schemne benefits (83) {233)
Foreign exchange and commodity financial assets and habilities (92) {56)
Losses 307 349
Advance corporation tax 61 61
Research and development expenditure credit 6 -
132 85
mctuded withim
Debtors —amounts falling due after one year 215 318
Post-retirement scheme —surpluses (83) (238)
-deficits - S
132 85

The above figures exclude taxation payable on capital gains which rmght anse from the sale of fixed assets at the values at which they are
stated in the Company’s balance sheet
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13 Post-retirement benefits

Defined benefit schemes
For the defined benefit schemes the assets are held m separate trustee adrmmistered funds and employees are entitled to retwement
benefits based on either their final or career average salaries and length of service

The valuations of the defined benefit schemes are based on the most recent funding valuations, updated by the scheme actuanes
to 31 December 2013 The most recent funding valuations of the main schemes were

Scheme Valuation date
Rolls-Royce Pension Fund 31 March 2012
Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme 5 April 2013
Vickers Group Pension Scherne 31 March 2013

The principal actuarial assumptions used at the balance sheet date were as follows

2013 2012

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 45 41
Discount rate 44 44
Expected rate of return on scheme assets 40 31
Inflatyon assumption® 35 30

* For the UK schemes this s the assumptions for the Retail Price Index The Consumer Price Index s assumed tobe 1 percentlower

The discount rates are determined by reference to the market yields on AA rated corporate bonds For the mam schemes, the rate 1s
deterrmined by using the profile of forecast benefit payments to derive a weighted average discount rate from the yield curve Forless
sigmficant schermnes the rate 1s determined as the market yield at the average duration of the forecast benefit payments The discount rates
above are the weighted average of those for each scheme, based on the value of their respecte habilities

The overall expected rate of return s calculated by weighting the individual returns expected from each asset class (see balow)in
accordance with the actual asset balance in the schemes’ investment portfolios

The mortaiity assumptions adepted for the pension schemes are derived from the SAPS actuanal tables, with 80 per cent of long cohort,
pubhished by the Institute of Actuaries, projected forward and, where appropniate, adjusted to take account of the Televant scheme’s actual
experience The resulting range of hife expectancies in the principal schemes are as follows

Life expectancy from age 65

2013 2012
Current male pensioner 225 2286
Future male pensioner currently aged 45 24 2 244

Other demographtc assumptions have been set on advice from the relevant actuary, having regard to the latest trends in scheme experience
and other relevant data The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the periodic actuanal valuation of the schemes

2013 2012
£m £fm

Present value of funded oblwgations {8,970) (8533)
Fair value of schemne assets 9,539 9,734
Unrecogmsed surplus? {154) (187)
Surplus 415 1014
Related deferred tax habiity (83) (233)
Net asset recogmsed m the balance sheet 332 781
Analysed as
Post retirerment scheme surpluses 332 796
Post retirement scheme deficits - {15)

332 781

t where a sutplus has ansen on a scheme 1 accordance with FRS 17 Retirement benefits the surplus is recognised as an asset only if it represents a future econormic benefit available
to the Lompany Any surplusin excess of this benefit1s not recogmsed in the balance sheet Surpluses have arsenlargely as a result of differences between the actuanaland FRS 17
valuation assumptions
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13 Post-retirement benefits (continued)
Changes 1 present value of defined benefit obhgations
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2013 2012
£m £m
At 1January (8,533) {7,713)
Current service cost {138) (122)
Past service credit (66) i)
Finance cost (370) (356)
Contributions by employees (3) )
Benefits paid out 334 323
Actuarial losses {194) (660)
At 31 December (8,970) (8 533)
Changes wn far value of scheme assets
2013 2012
£m im
At 1January 9,734 9519
Expected return on assets 301 315
Contnibutions by employer 235 250
Contributions by employees 3 4
Benefits paid out (334) (323)
Actuarial gans (400) (31)
At 31 December 9,539 9,734
Actual return en plan assets {99) 284
The fair value of the scheme assets and the expected rates of return at 31 December were as follows
2013 2012
Expected rate Expected rate
of return Market value of return  Marketvalue
% £m % £m
LD portfolio? 36 7,592 28 7924
Longevity swap? 44 (156} 44 {126)
Equities 69 1,151 59 1083
Sovereign debt 36 169 27 214
Corporate bonds 41 527 36 320
Other 36 256 27 319
40 9,539 32 9734

1 A portfolio of giltand swap contracts backed by LIBOR generating assets thatis designed to hedge the majenity of the interest rate and inflation risks associated with the schemes
obligations

# Under thelongevity swap the scheme has agreed an average ife expectancy with a counterparty If pensioners hve longer than expected the counterparty will make payments tothe
scheme to offset the additional cost of paying pensians If the reverse applies the cost of paying pensions will be reduced but the scheme will be required to make payments tc the
counterparty

The scheme assets do not include any financiabinstruments of the Rells-Rayce Holdings plc group, nor any property occupied by, or other
assets used by, the group

The expected rate of return for LDI portfolios is determined by the imphcit yield on the portfolio at the balance sheet date

The expected Tates of returnon mdividual categories of scheme assets are determined by reference to gilt yields Equities and corporate
bonds are assumed to generate returns that exceed the return from gilts by 3 25 per cent and 0 5 per cent per annum respectively

The expected rates of return above are the weighted average of the rates for each scheme
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13 Post-retirement benefits {continued)

Future contnbutions
The Company expects to contribute approximately £250 rilhon toits defined benefit schemesm 2014

Sensitivities
The investment strategies are designed to hedge the risks from interest rates and mflation on an economic basis The impacts of the
principal senswvities are

2013 2012
£m im
Defined benefit obligations = ¢ 25% reduction in discount rate? {406) (315)
Defined benefit assets —0 25% reducton in interest rates! 461 453
Defined benefit obligations — 0 25% increase ininflation (196) -
Defined benefit assets — 0 25% increase i nflation 181 -
Defined benefit obligations ~ longevity 1ncreases by one year (210) {198)
Defined benefit longevity swap —longevity increases by one year 86 63
Defined benefit sbhigations — 0 25% increase n rate of Increase in salaries {20) (193)
History of defined benefit schemes
The history of the schemes for the current and prior years 1s as follows
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Balance sheet
Presentvalue of defined benefit obhigations (8,970) {8,533) (7,713) {7039) (6,714}
Fair value of scheme assets 9,539 9734 9,519 7,783 7048
Unrecogmsed surplus (154) {187) {696) (164) {75}
Assat 415 1014 1110 580 259
Experience gains/{losses)
Actuarnal gains/{losses) on scheme assets (400} (31) 1,407 444 (311)
Expenence (losses)/gams on scheme liabihities {194) (660) (617) (142) (865)
Movement in unrecogmsed surplus 33 509 {(532) (89) 491
Total amount recogmsed mn the statement of total recogmsed gams and losses (561) (182) 258 213 (685)
Cumulative amount tecogmsed n the statement of total recogmised gans and losses ! (765} {204) (22) (280) (493)
} Singe January 1 2002
Defined contnbution schemes
The Company operates a number of defined contribution schemes The total expense recognised in the profit and ioss account was
£23 milhon (2012 £18 million)
14 Share capital
Equity
ordinary shares Nominal
of 20p each value
Millions £m
Authonsed
At1January and 31 Decernber 2013 2,000 400
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January and 31 Decernber 2013 1,631 326
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15 Movements in capital and reserves
Non distributable reserves —
Share Share  Revaluation Other Profitand Total
capital premium Teserve TEseTVes loss account equity g
im £m £m £m £m £m a
At 1January 2013 326 631 29 167 1,605 2,758 g
Total recognised gans relating to the year - - - - 36 36 3
Dwidend paid = = - - (500) 1900) 2
Transfers between reserves - — (3) - 3 —
Share based payments — direct to equity - - - - 29 29
At 31 December 2013 326 631 26 167 773 1,923 p—
16 Operating lease annual commitments %
[
2013 2012 ‘E
£m im w
Leases of land and buildings which expire ;
Within one year 1 - &
Between one and five years 2 1
After five years 10 3
QOther leases which expire Q
Wathin one year 2 1 g
Between one and five years 5 ::;
After five years - - 3
§
17 Share-based payments
Effect of share-based payment transactions on the Company’s results
2013 2012
£m im
Total expense recognised for equity-settled share based payment transactions 37 30

Share-based payment plans in operation dunng the year
During the year, the Company participated n the following share-based payment plans operated by Rolls-Royce Holdings ple

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

This pian involves the award of shares to participants subject to performance conditions Vesting of the performance shares 1s based on
the achievement of both non-market based conditions (EPS and cash flow per share) and a market based performance condition (Total
Sharehalder Return — TSR} over a three-year period

Share5ave share option plan

Based on a three or five year monthly savings contract, ehgible employees are granted share options with an exeraise price of up
1020 per cent below the share price when the contract is entered inte Vesting of the options s not subject to the achievement of
a performance target The plan is HM Revenue & Customs approved

Executive Share Option Plan {ESOP)

This plan involved the grant of market value share options to participants It termmated m 2009 and no further grants may be made
Remaiming options under the plan are subject to a non-market based performance condition (growth in EPS) and have a maximum
contractual ife of ten years

Annual Performance Related Award (APRA) plan deferred shares

A proportion of the APRA annual incentive scheme 1s delivered in the form of a deferred share award The release of deferred share awards
1s not dependent on the achievement of any further performance conditions other than that participants remain employed by the
Company for two years from the date of the award in order to retan the full number of shares During the two year deferral penod,
participants are entitled to recewve dividends, or equivalent, on the deferred shares
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17 Share-based payments (continued)
Movements in the Company’s share-based payment plans during the year

ShareSave ESOP [14 APRA
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exerciseprice Number exerciseprice Number Number
Mmillions Pence Millions Pence Millions Millions
Qutstanding at 1 January 2012 169 445p 02 106p 113 18
Granted - - - - 24 11
Additional entitlements arismg from TSR perfromance - - - - 17 -
Forfeited {02) 454p - - 0s) -
Exercised o1 409p {01) 133p (70} 07)
Outstanding at 31 December 2012 166 445p 01 77p 79 22
Qutstanding at 31 December 2012 - - 01 77p - -
Outstanding at 31 December 2012 16 6 445p o1l 77p 79 22
Cranted 57 g6lp - - 14 10
Additronal entitlements arising from TSR perfromance — - - - 06 -
Forfeited {03) 499p - - {03) (01)
Exercised (63) 405p {01) 77p (28) (13)
Outstanding at 31 December 2013 157 646p - - 68 18

As share options are exercised throughout the year, the weighted average share price during the year of 1123p (2012 836p) 15 representative
of the weighted average share price at the date of exercise The riddle market closing price at 31 December 2013 was 1275p (2011 873 5p)

There were no exercisable options as at 31 December 2013 The average remaimng contractual iife of exercisable options as at
31 December 2013 1s 0 years (2012 0 2 years)

Fair values of share-based payment plans
The weighted average fair values per share of equity-settled share-based payment plans granted during the year, estimated at the date of
grant are as follows

2013 2012
PSP — 25% TSR uphft 1128p 885p
PSP —50% TSR uphft 1254p 985p
ShareSave — 3 year grant 287p nfa
ShareSave - 5 year grant 349p nfa
APRA, 1027p 809p

Expected volatility 1s based on the listorical volatiity of Rolls-Royce Holdings plc’s share price over the seven years prior to the grant or
award date Expected dwidends are based on Rolls-Royce Holdings plc's payments to shareholders in respect of the previous year

PSP

The fair value of shares awarded under the PSP 1s calculated using a pricing model that takes account of the non-entitlement to dividends
{or equivalent) during the vesting period and the market-based performance condition based on expectations about volatility and the
correlation of share price returns in the group of FTSE 100 companies and which incorporates into the valuation the interdependency
between share price performance and TSR vesting This adjustment increases the fair value of the award relative to the share price at the
date of grant

ShareSave

The fair vahue of the ophiens granted under the ShareSave plan 1s calculated using a binormal pncing model that assumes that partiopants
will exercise their options at the beginning of the six month window 1f the share price 1s greater than the exercise price Otherwise 1t
assumes that options are held until the expiration of their contractual term This results m an expected ife that falls somewhere between
the start and end of the exercise window

APRA
The fair value of shares awarded under APRA 15 calculated as the share price on the date of the award, excluding expected dividends
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18 Contingent habilities

In connection with the sale of i1ts products the Company will, on some occasions, provide financing support for 1its customers The
Company's contigent habihties relating te financing arrangements are spread over many years and relate to a number of customers and a
broad product portfoho

Contingent habihities are disclosed on a discounted basis As the directors consider the hkelthood of these contingent habilities crystallising
to be remote, this amount does not represent a value that 1s expected to crystallise However, the amounts are discounted at the Company’s
borrowing rate to reflect better the time span over which these exposures could arise The contingent habilities are denormnated m US
dollars As the Company does not adopt cash flow hedge accounting for forecast foreign exchange transactions, this amount 1s reported
together with the sterling equivalent at the reporting date spot rate

The discounted value of the total gross contingent habihties refating to fimancing arrangements on all delivered amcraft less insurance
arrangements and relevant provisions were

2013 2012

£m $m £m sm

Graoss contingent habilities 356 589 569 925
Value of secunty? {217) (360) (381) 620}
Indemmities (80} (132) (118) {192}
Netcommitments 59 97 70 113
Netcommitments with security reduced by 20%? 78 129 133 216
*Secunty includes cash collateral of 50 83 64 104

1 Although sens:tivty caleulations are complex the reduction of the relevant security by 20% 1llustrates the sensitiaty of the contingent liability to this assumption

There are also net contingent liabilities in respect of undelvered aircraft, but 1t 1s not considered practicable to estimate these as delveries
can be many years n the future, and the relevant financing will only be put in place at the appropriate time

On 6 December 2012, the Company announced that it had passed infarmation to the SFO relating to concerns in overseas markets
Since that date the Company has contmued 1ts mvestigations and 1s engaging with the SFO and other authorrties in the UK, the USA and
elsewhere In December 2013, the Company announced that 1t had been informed by the SFO that 1t had commenced a formal investigation

The conseguence of these disclosures will be decided by the regulatory authorities It remains too early to predict the outcomes, but these
could include the prosecution of indwiduals and of the Group Accordingly, the potential for fines, penalties or other consequences
(including debarment from government contracts, suspension of export privileges and reputational damage} cannot currently be
assessed As the investigation 1s ongoing, it1s not yet possible to identify the timescale m which these 1ssues rmght be resolved

Contingent habihties exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Company mn the ordary course of business for product delwery,
performance and rehabiity The Company has, in the normal course of business, entered into arrangements in respect of export finance,
performance bonds, countertrade obligatons and minor miscellanecus items The Company 1s party to legal actions and daims which anse
n the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial amounts As a consequence of the insolvency of an insurer as
previously reported, the Company 1s no longer fully insured agarnst known and potential claims from employees who worked for certam of
the Company’s UK based businesses for a period prior to the acquisition of those businesses by the Company While the outcome of some
of these matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after allowing
for provisions already made, to result m sigmficant loss to the Company

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its group, the
Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee
contract as a contingent labihity until such time as 1t becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the
guarantee At 31 December 2013, there were Company guarantees in respect of joint ventures amounting to £7m (2012 £12m)

The Company participates 1n a Cash Pooling Arrangement Under the Pooling Arrangement the Company benefits from more favourable
interest rates than would be available outside of the Pooling Arrangement as well as more streamhined treasury functions As partof the
Poohng Arrangement, the Company cross-guarantees the borrowings of other pooling participants At 31 December 2013 these guarantees
amounted to £8m (2012 £24m)
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19 Related party transactions

The Company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Rolls-Royce Group plc and therefore has taken advantage of the exemption n FRS & Related
party disciosures not to disclose related party transachons with its parent company and other wholly owned group compamies

Therte are no significant related party transactions with nen wholly owned group companies

The aggregated balances with joint ventures are shown m notes 7 and 10

20 Ultimate holding company

The ultimate holdmg company 1s Rolls-Royce Holdings plc, incorporated m Great Britain The financial statements for Rolls-Royce
Holdings plc may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Rolls-Royce Holdings plc, 65 Buckingham Gate, London SW1E 6AT
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(=
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES 2
At 31 Decerber 2013 %
Subsidiaries incorporated within the UK — directly held unless marked *
Compasite Technology and Apphcations Limited Bevelopment of aero engime fan blades and fan cases
MTU UK Limited® Sales and service of of f highway diesel engines (50%)
Optimized Systems and Solutions Linuted Equipment health management and advanced data management services o
Rolls Royce Controls and Data Services Lirmited” Development and manufacture of aero engine controls E-:'-:
Rolls Royce International Limited International support and commercial infermation services g
Rolls Royce Leasing Limited Engme leasing 3
Rolls Royce Marine Electrical Systems Limited* Marnine electrical systems -g
Rolls Royce Marine Power Operations Limited Nuclear submarme propulsion systems
Rolls Royce Power Development Limited Generation of electnicity from independent power projects
Rolls Royce Power Engineering plc Energy and marine systems
Rolls Royce Total Care Services Limited Aeto engine aftermarket support services
Vinters Engineering Limited* Production, repair and overhaul of power generation, transmission and conversion 5
equipment for military and commercial actwities 2
5,
The above compames operate pnnaipally m the UK and the effective Group interest 1s 100 per cent gf
(i)
3
Subsidiaries mncorporated overseas — directly held unless marked * v
Brazil Rolls-Royce Brasi Limitada Industnal gas turbines and aero engine repair and overhaul, energy and marine aftermarket
support services o
Canada Rolls-Royce Canada Limited® Industnal gas turbines and aero engine sales, service and overhaul Ed
China MTU Engineering {Suzhou) Company Lirited” Service centre and spare parts {(50%) i
China Rolls-Royce Marine Manufacturing Manufacture and supply of marine equipment and manne aftermarket support services g
{Shanghai) Lirmited® =
Finland Rolls-Royce OY AB* Manufacture of marne winches and propeller systems g
France Rolls-Royce Civil Nuclear SAS* Instrumentation and control systems and life- cyde management for nuclear power plants
France Rolls-Royce Technical Support SARL Aero engine project support
Germany LOrange GmbH" Development and production of high-pressute injection systems for diesel engines (50%)
Germany MTU Friedrichshafen GmbH-* Development, production and distribution of gas turbmes and engines (50%)
Germany MTU Onsite Energy GmbH* Sales and service of gas engines (50%
Germany Rolls-Royce Deutschland Ltd & Co KG* Aero engine design development and manufacture
Germany Rolls-Royce Power Systems AG® Supplier of engines and power trans for marine propulsion, distnibuted power generation
and industrial off highway sectors (50%)
Guernsey Nightingale Insurance Limited* Insurance services
Hong Kong  MTU Hong Kong Limited* Distnibutor for of -mghway products and after sales service (50%)
India Rolls-Royce India Private Limited* Diesel engine project management and customer support
ndia Rolts-Royce Matine India Private Limited” Provision of marine support services
india Rells-Royce Operations (India) Private birmited” Engineering support setvices
India MTU Itaha Srl* Distnibutor for all off highway applications and after sales service (50%)
Netherlands MTU Benelux BV* Sales and after sales support for diesel engines (50%)
Italy Europea Mictofusion Aetospaziahi 5 p A Manufacture of gas turbine engine castings
Norway Rolls-Royce Marine AS® Designand manufacture of ship equipment
Norway Bergen Engimes AS" Design and manufacture of medum-speed diesel engines (50%)
Singapore Rolls-Royce Singapore Pte Lirmited® Aero engine parts manufactunng and engine assembly energy and marine aftermarket
support services
Singapore  Tognum Asia Pte Limited® Distributor of diesel engines and spare parts (S0%)
Spamn MTU Iberica Propulsidny Energia S L” Sales and service of transmission equipment with diesel and gas engines (S0%)
Sweden Rolls-Royce AB* Manufacture of manne propeiler systems
Turkey MTU Motor Turbin Sanayive Tic AS* Production of diesel engines and manufacturer of control systems (50%)
Us Data Systems & Solutions LLC* Instrumentation and control systems and hfe- cycle management for nuclear power plants
us Optimized Systems and Solutions Inc* Equipment health management and advanced data management services
s PKMJ Technical Services Inc® Nuclear engineering services and software solutions
us R Brocks Associates Inc® Specialist ovil nuclear reactor services
Us Rolls-Royce Corporation® Design, development and manufacture of gas turbine engines
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Subsidianes mcorporated overseas —directly held unless marked * {continued)

U5 Rolls-Royce Crosspointe LLC* Manufacturning faciity for aero engine parts

uUs Rolls-Royce Energy Systems Inc* Energy turbine generator packages

uUs Rolls-Royce Engime Services— Oakland Inc*  Aero engine repar and gverhaul

us Rolls-Royce Defense Services Inc.” Aeto engine tepar and everhaul

us Rolls-Royce Marine North America inc* Design and manufacture of marine equipment and marme aftermarket services
us MTU America Inc* Sales and service of engines and systemns (50%)

The above compames operate pnncipally in the country of thewr incorporation and the effective Group interest1s 100 per cent unless
otherwise stated

Jontly controlled entities and associates incorporated within the UK — directly held unless marked *

%of % of total

Lass class held equity held
Awrtanker Holdings Lirited Ordinary 20 20
Strateqic tanker arcraft PFl project
Airtanker Holdings Lirmted Qrdinary 22 22
Provision of aftermarket services for strategic tanker arcraft
Alpha Partners Leasing Limited” A Ordinary 160 50
Aero engine leasing B Ordinary =
Genistics Holdings Lirmited A Ordinary 160 50
Trailer mounted field mobile generator sets B Ordinary -
Rolls-Royce Snecma Limited (UK & France) AShares —
Aero engine collaboration BShares 100 50
Rolls-Royce Turbomeca Limited (UK & France) AShares - 50
Adour and RTM 322 Aero engine ¢ollaboration BShares 100
Rolls Wood Group (Repair and Overhauls) imited A Ordinary 100 5Q
Industnal gas turbime repair and overhaul B Ordinary -
TRT Limited A Ordinary -
Aero engme turbime blade repair services B Ordinary 100 495
Turbine Surface Technologies Limited A Ordinary -
Aeto engine turtbine surface coatings BOrdinary 100 50
Turbo-Union Limited (UK, Germany & Italy) Ordnary 40
RB199 engine collaboration AShares 375 4p

The above compames are incorporated and aperate in the UK unless otherwise stated
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Jontly controlled entities and associates incorporated overseas — directly held unless marked *
% of % of total
Class class held equity held
Australia MTU Detroit Diesel Australia Pty Lirmited” Ordinary S0 50
Sales and servicing of diesel engines (effective interest 25%) g
China Xian XR Aero Camponents Co Lirmted Ordinary 49 49 gi
Manufactuning faciity for aeto engine parts f
China Shanxi North MTU Diesel Co 1td* Ordmary 49 49 ﬁ
Manufacture and sale of MTU engines (effective interest 24 5%) -
Germany EPI Europrop International GmbH (effective interest 35 5%) Ordinary 28 28
A400M engsne collaboration
Germany EURCHIET Turbo GmbH (UK, Germany, italy & Span} (effective interest 39%) Ordinary 33 33
EJ200 engine collaboration
Germany MTU Turbomeca Rolls-Royce GmbHM (UK France & Germany) Qrdinary 333 333 %‘
MTR390 engine collabotation 3
Germany MTU Onsite Energy Systems GmbH* (effective interest 375%) Ordwnary 75 75 =
Manufactuning and distnibution of diesel-powered generating sets g
Germany N3 Engine Overhaul Services GmbH & Co KG” Qrdinary 50 50 3
Aero engine reparr and gverhaul g
Hong Kong Hong Kong Aero Engine Services Limited® Ordnary 45 4s
Aero engme teparr and averhaul
India International Aerospace Manufacturing Private Limited” Ordinary
Manufacture of compressor shrouds, compressor rings, turbine blades and nozzle 50 50 Q
guide vanes z
Istael Techjet Aetoforls Limited* A Ordmary 50 50 g
Manufacture of compressor aetofoils for gas turbines 8 Ordinary 50 3
Malaysia Advanced Gas Turbine Solutions Sdn Bhd* Ordmnary 49 49 gr
industrial gas turbine aftermarket services 3
Singapore international Engine Component Overhaul Pte Limited* Ordinary 50 50
Aero engine repair and overhaul
Singapore Singapote Aeto Engine Services Private lirmited {effective interest 39%)* Ordinary 30 30
Aerc engmne reparr and overhaul
Spam Industna de Turbo Propulsotes SA Ordinary 469 469
Aero engine component manufacture and mamtenance
us Alpha Leasing {US) LLC* Alpha Leasing (US) (No 2) LLC* Alpha Leasmg {US} (No 4) LLC®, Partnerships 50 -
Alpha Leasing {US) (No 5) LLC* Alpha Leasing {US) (No 6) LLC*
Alpha Leasing {US) (No 7) LLC* Alpha Leasing {US} {No 8) LLC*
Rolls Royce & Partners Finance (US) LLC", Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance {US) (No 2) LLC*
Aero engme leasing
us Exostar LLC* Partnership 185 -
Business to business internet exchange
us LG Fuel Cell Systems Inc.® Commen Stock 399 399
Development of fuel cells
us Texas Aero Engine Services, LLC* Partnership 50 -

Aero engine repair and overhaul

Unincorporated overseas — held by subsidiary undertaking

us Light Helicopter Turbime Engme Company (LHTEC}
Rolls-Royce Corporation has a 50 per cent interest in this urincorporated partnership which was formed to develop and market
jointly the TB00 engime

The above companies cperate principally in the country of their incorporation The countries of principal operations are stated in brackets
after the name of the company, if not the country of thewr mcorporation

in accordance with Section 410 of the Companes Act 2006, the subsidianes, jointly controlled entities and asseciates listed on pages 107 to
10915 of those whose results or financial position, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the fimancial statements Ahstof all
related undertakings will be included 1n the Company's annual return to Compamies House
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

to the members of Rolis-Royce plc

We have audited the financial statements of Rolls-Royce plc for

the year ended 31 December 2013 set out on pages 40 to 106

The financial reporting framework that has been apphied in the
preparation of the group financial statements s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the EU The financial reporting framework that has been applied

n the preparation of the parent company financial statements

15 apphicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, m
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are requited to state to them
i an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibihity to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as

a body, for our audst work, forthis report, or for the oprmons we
have formed

Respective responsibihties of directors and auditor

As explamed more fully in the chrectors’ responsibilities statement
set out on page 38, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s to audit, and express an
opimien on, the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements
15 provided on the Finanaial Reporting Counol's website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeuk private

Opimion on financial statements
In our opinion

« the financral statements give a true and fair view of the state
of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at
31 December 2013 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended,
- the group financial statements have been propertly prepared m
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the €U,
« the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared n accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice,
» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Compames Act 2006
In our opinion the information gven in the Strategic Report and the
Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial

statements are preparad 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in Tespect of the following matters
where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1f, in
our opmmon

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent

company, ot returns adequate for our audit have not been receved

from branches not visited by us, or

+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

- we have not recewved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Jmmy Daboo (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audrt Plc, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square,
London,

E14 5GL

12 February 2013
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ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Foreign exchange

Foreign exchange rate movements imfluence the reported income
statement, the cash flow and closing net cash balance The average
and spot rates for the principal trading currencies of the Group are
shown inthe table below

2013 2012 Change
Year end spot rate 165 163 +1%
p
USDperGaP Aiarage spotrate 156 159 2%
EUR per GBP Year end spot rate 120 123 -2%
Average spot rate 118 123 -4%
Taxation

The Board 15 Involved i setting the Group’s tax polhicies which
govern the way 1ts tax affairs are managed In summary, this means

{) the Group manages 1ts tax costs through maxirmsing the tax
efficiency of business transactions This mcludes taking
advantage of available tax incentives and exemptions,

{u} this must be done m away which is aligned with the Group's
commeraal objectives and meets its legal obhigations and
ethical standards,

(i) the Group also has regard for the intentien of the legislation
concerned rather than just the wording tself,

(1) the Group 15 committed to building constructive warking
relationships with tax authorities based on a policy of full
disclosure m order to remove uncertainty in its business
transactions and to allow the authorities to review passible risks,

(v} where appropnate and possible, the Group enters into
consultation with tax authorities to help shape proposed
legislation and future tax pohcy, and

{v1) the Group seeks to price transactions between Group compamnies
as if they were between unrelated parties, m comphance with
the OECD Transfer Pricing Guidehines and the laws of the
relevant junsdictions

The Group's global corporate mcome tax contribution

Over 95 per cent of the Group’s underlymg profit before tax
(excluding joint ventures) 1s generated 1n the United Kingdom,
Umited States of America, Germany, Norway, Finland and Singapore
The remaiming profits are generated across more than 40 other
countnes This reflects the fact that the majonty of the Group's
busmess 1s undertaken, and employees are based, 1n the above
countnes

In common with most multmational groups the total of all profits in
respect of which corporate tax 15 paid 1s not the same as the
consohdated profit before tax reported on page 76 The mam
reasons for this are

() the consoldated mcome statement is prepared under IFRS
whereas tax 1s paid on the profits of each Group company, which
are determined by local accounting rules,

(n) accounting rules require certam income and costs relating to our
commercial activities to be ehminated from, or added to, the
aggregate of all the profits of the Group companies when
preparing the consohdated incomne statement (‘consolidation
adjustments’}, and

{m) speafic tax rules mcuding exemptions or incentives as
determined by the tax laws in each country

The Group's total corporation tax payments in 2013 wete

£23g milbon The level of tax paid in each country 1s rmpacted by
the above Inmost cases, (1) and (1) are only a matter of timing and
therefore tax will be paid in an earler or later year As a result they
only have a neghgible impact on the Group's underlying tax rate
which, excluding jomt ventures, would be 271 per cent (the
underlying tax rate, including joint ventures, can be found on page
10) This 1s due to deferred tax accountmng, details of which can be
found 1n note 5 to the financial statements The impact of (n} will
often be permanent depending onthe relevant tax law

Investments and capital expenditure

The Group subjects all major investments and capital expenditure
to a nigorous examimation of nisks and future cash flows to ensure
that they create shareholder value All major investments require
Board approval

The Group has a portfolio of projects at different stages of thew hfe
cycles Discounted cash flow analysis of the remairmng Iife of
projects s performed on a regular basis

Sales of engines in production are assessed agamst cntenan the
orginal development programme to ensure that overall value 1s
enhanced

Fimancial sk management

The Board has an estabhished and structured approach to financial
risk management The Financial risk committee (Frc)1s accountable
for managing, reporting and mitigating the Group’s financial nsks
and exposures These nsks mclude the Group's pnncipal
counterparty, currency, intetest rate, commedity price, iquidity and
credit rating nisks outlined mn more depth in note 16 The Frcis
chaired by the Chief Financial Officer The Group has a
comprehensive financial nsk policy that advocates the use of
financial instruments to manage and hedge business operations
nsks that anse from movermnents in financial, commodities, credit or
money markets The Group’s palicy 1s not to engage in speculative
financial transactions The Frc sits quarterly to review and assess the
key risks and agree any mitigating actions required

Capital structure 2013 2012
Caprtal summary —£ milhon £m £m
Total equity 8,134 6716
Cash flow hedges 68 63
Group capital 8,202 6,779
Net funds 1,939 1316

Operations are funded through various shareholders’ funds, bank
borrowngs, bonds and notes The capital structure of the Group
reflects the jJudgement of the Board as to the appropniate balance of
fundng requited Funding is secured by the Group’s continued
access to the global debt markets Borrowings are funded 1n various
currencies using dervatves where appropniate to achieve a
required currency and interest rate profile The Board’s objective 15
to retan sufficient financial mvestments and undrawn facihties to
ensure that the Group can both meet its medum-term operational
commtments and cope with unforeseen obhgations and
opportumties
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The Group holds cash and shott-term investments which, together
with the undrawn committed facilities, enable 1t to manage its
hquedsty nisk

During the year, the Group 1ssued €750 miilien 2 125% Notes
matunng i 2021 and £375 rmilion 3 375% Notes matunngn 2026

At year end, the Group retained aggregate hquidity of £5 6 bilhon
This hquidity compnised net funds of £1 9 billon and aggregate
borrowing fachties of £3 6 iflon, of which £1 2 lilion remamed
undrawn

The matunity profile of the borrowing facilities 1s regularly reviewed
to ensure that refinancing levels are manageable in the context of
the business and market conditions The only facihty to mature n
201415 a £200 mlhon EIB loan There are norating triggers n any
borrowing facility that would require the facihity to be accelerated or
repaid due to an adverse movement in the Group's credit ratimg

The Group conducts some of 1ts business through a number of joint
ventures A majot proportion of the debt of these joint ventures 15
secured on the assets of the respective companies and 15 non-
recourse to the Group This debt s further outhined in note 10

Credit Rating

Rating Agency Rating Qutlook Grade
Moody s Investors Service A3 Stable Investment
Standard & Poor's A Stable Investment

The Group's helding company, Rolls-Royce Holdings plc, subscribes
to both Moody’s Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s for
independent long-term credit ratings At 31 December 2013, the
Group mamtained investment grade ratings from both agencies

As a capital-mtensive busmess making long-term commitments
to our customers, the Group attaches sigmificant importance to
maintaining or improving these current investment grade
credit ratings

Accounting and regulatory

The consohdated financial statemnents have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
as adopted by the EU

The following changes in accounting pohcy have been applied
vetrospectively

+ as described in the Chief Financral Officer’s review and in note 1,
the Group has revised its accounting for nisk and revenue sharing
arrangements, and

- the Group has adopted Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits
There were no other revisions to IFRS that became applicable in
2013 which had a significant impact on the Group's financial
statements

A summary of changes which have not been adopted 1n 2013
15 mcluded within the accounting pohcies innote 1

Governments and regulators around the world continue to
implement reforms to the financial markets with the aim of
improving transparency and reducing systermic risk Although the
reforms are predorminantly directed at financial institutions, they
will also affect non-financial institutions such as the Group

The primary concern has been the reform of the over-the-counter
(OTC) dervatives market, and wn particular a proposal i the EU
European Market Infrastructure Regulation (EMIR) that parties to
future OTC dervatwve transactions would be required to use an
exchange to clear the transactions and post cash collateral to reduce
counterparty risk The proposal could adversely affect the Group's
future fundmg requitements and make cash flow more volatile

The final EMIR rules have now been released, which exempt
non-financial institutions engaged in hedging actvity from
this requarement
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